
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

 

 
Meeting of the 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 

NOVEMBER 24, 2008 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Submitted By 

      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are suggested or 
requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible 
amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by department 
directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight 
and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
 
Identified below are outcome statements for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on course with 
these goals. 
 

Outcome Statements 

 
I. Troy enhances the health and safety of the community 

 
II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure 

and quality of life venues 

 
III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community 

in a changing and interconnected world 

 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your deliberations may 
require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 

 



NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
      

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  AGENDA 

November 24, 2008 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Pastor AC Phipps – Evanswood Church 

of God 1 

ROLL CALL 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Citizens Academy Class XII Graduation/Presentation of Certificates to Mary 
Lou Banat, Nancy Bradley, Barbara Coffer, Joe Coffer, Bette Gay, Jim 
Howell, Pat Howell, Margaret Julian, Josh Keagle, Richard Kucejko, Dorothy 
Pietron, Marshall Rennick, Rhonda Robertson, Bradley Scott, Gursharon 
Shergill, Radha Srinivasan ................................................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 No Public Hearings 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

D-1 No Postponed Items 2 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov


 

 

 -  -  

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 2 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Downtown 
Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities and Parks & Recreation Board 2 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 
Nominations: Planning Commission (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory 
Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Board of Zoning Appeals; and Historic 
District Study Committee 3 

E-3 NLC Prescription Discount Card Program 5 

E-4 Amended Consent Order and Judgment – Proposed Parking Lot Expansion and 
Building Addition, Existing Heartland of Oakland Skilled Nursing Facility, 
Southeast Corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 
(File Number SP-883 C) 5 

E-5 Amended Consent Order and Judgment – Proposed McDonald’s Restaurant with 
Drive-Up Facilities, Northwest Corner of Rochester Road and Big Beaver Road, 
Section 22 – B-2 and B-3 (File Number SU-361) 6 

E-6 Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance 7 

E-7 Transit Center Cost Sharing Agreement 8 

CONSENT AGENDA: 8 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 9 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 9 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 9 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 9 



 

 

 -  -  

F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 9 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 
Specifications – Breathing Air Compressor .......................................................... 9 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Options – Vehicle 
Wash Services ................................................................................................... 10 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Uniform Rental 
Services .............................................................................................................. 10 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan MiDEAL 
Program – Lawn & Garden, Commercial and Agricultural Equipment ................ 10 

F-5 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 
#21 – Sidwell #88-20-14-351-008 – BS&G Management Company/George and 
Maria Zivan 11 

F-6 Application to Transfer a Resort Class C and Brewpub License to Granite City 11 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement and Regrading & Temporary Construction Permit – 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 
#43 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-080 – Pomponi’s Real Estate Investments 12 

F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement and Regrading & Temporary Construction Permit – 
Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – 
Parcel #18 – Sidwell #88-20-23-100-081 – Marvin Brown, Jr., and Waltraud Brown12 

F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 
Public Utility Easement – Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – 
Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #15 – Sidwell #88-20-23-100-078 – Harmony 
Christian Care & Learning Center, LLC 13 

F-10 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 
125 E. Long Lake Road 13 

F-11 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 
1980 E. Big Beaver Road 14 

F-12 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 
2045 South Boulevard 15 



 

 

 -  -  

F-13 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 
4963 John R Road 15 

F-14 Second Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement – Wattles Road, 
1,000’ East and West of Rochester Road – Project No. 01.106.5 16 

F-15 Second Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement – Rochester Road, 
Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 16 

F-16 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – Troy-Rochester Properties, 
LLC – Sidwell #88-20-22-426-057 16 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 17 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 17 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted 17 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 17 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 17 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 17 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 17 

REPORTS: 17 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 17 

a) Joint Local Development Finance Authority/Final – April 28, 2008 .................... 17 

b) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 4, 2008 .................. 17 
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 16, 2008 ....................................... 17 
d) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – October 13, 2008 ........................................ 17 
e) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 15, 2008 ... 17 
f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 21, 2008 ........................................... 17 
g) Local Development Finance Authority/Final – October 27, 2008 ....................... 17 
h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 28, 2008 ......................... 17 
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 28, 2008 ......................... 17 

j) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 28, 2008 ................................. 17 



 

 

 -  -  

k) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – November 5, 2008 .... 17 
l) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 5, 2008 .............................. 17 

m) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 10, 2008 .................................... 17 

J-2 Department Reports: 17 

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of October 2008 ........ 17 
b) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML 110

th
 

Annual Conference on October 1-5, 2008 .......................................................... 17 
c) City Council Expense Report – November, 2008 ............................................... 17 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 17 

a) Letter of Thanks from Kathryn Brodt Regarding the Medical Equipment Loan 
Closet ................................................................................................................. 17 

b) Letter to Chief Nelson from Senator John Pappageorge Regarding the Troy 
Fire Department Earning a Life Safety Achievement Award from the 
Residential Fire Safety Institute .......................................................................... 17 

c) Letter from St. Alan’s Church Commending the Precinct Workers at Precincts 
19 and 28 ........................................................................................................... 17 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 18 

J-5  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – 
Quarterly Report – October 2008 18 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – 
Case No. U-15677 18 

STUDY ITEMS: 18 

K-1 Preliminary Discussion No. 2 of the 2009/10 Budget – Authorization for City 
Management to Implement Items from the Deficit Reduction Survey 18 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 19 

CLOSED SESSION: 20 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 20 

ADJOURNMENT 20 



 

 

 -  -  

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 20 

Monday, December 1, 2008 Regular City Council ................................................. 20 
Monday, December 15, 2008 Regular City Council ............................................... 20 

Monday, January 5, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................... 20 
Monday, January 26, 2009 Regular City Council .................................................. 20 
Monday, February 2, 2009 Regular City Council ................................................... 20 
Wednesday, February 11, 2009 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 20 
Monday, February 16, 2009 Regular City Council ................................................. 20 

Wednesday, February 18, 2009 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 20 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   Pastor AC Phipps – Evanswood 

Church of God 

ROLL CALL  

(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming 
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 
(b) Excuse Absent Council Members 
 

Resolution to Excuse Mayor Pro Tem Howrylak  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem Martin 
Howrylak at the Special City Council meeting of November 11, 2008 due to  . 
 
Yes:   
No:   
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 

a) Citizens Academy Class XII Graduation/Presentation of Certificates to Mary Lou Banat, 
Nancy Bradley, Barbara Coffer, Joe Coffer, Bette Gay, Jim Howell, Pat Howell, Margaret 
Julian, Josh Keagle, Richard Kucejko, Dorothy Pietron, Marshall Rennick, Rhonda 
Robertson, Bradley Scott, Gursharon Shergill, Radha Srinivasan  

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 

the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 10“E” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 10 “E”.  
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Downtown 

Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 

Persons with Disabilities and Parks & Recreation Board 

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 
appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  
 

(a) Mayoral Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Downtown Development Authority  
Appointed by Mayor (13-Regular) 4-Year Term 
 
Laurence G. Keisling Term Expires 09/30/2012 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Council Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
 
Jeffrey Stewart Term Expires 11/01/2011 

  

Derek Mackie - Alternate Unexpired Term 11/01/2009 

 

Parks & Recreation Board  
(7-Regular) 3-Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) 1-Year Term; (1-Troy Daze Committee) 1-Year 
Term; (1-Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens) 1-Year Term 
 

Jeffrey Stewart -  Troy Daze Rep Term Expires 11/30/2009 

 
Yes: 
No: 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: Planning Commission (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory 

Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Board of Zoning Appeals; and Historic 

District Study Committee    

 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Planning Commission 
Appointed by Mayor  (9-Regular) – 3-Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 12/31/2010 

  
 Term Expires 12/31/2011 

  
 Term Expires 12/31/2011 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council  hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
  

Alternate Unexpired Term 11/01/2009 

 

Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by  Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
 Unexpired Term 04/30/2010 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

Historic District Study Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) Ad Hoc; (2) Historic District Commission; (1) Local Historic 
Preservation Organization 
 Ad Hoc 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-3 NLC Prescription Discount Card Program 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress makes paying for prescriptions difficult; 
 
WHEREAS, A need for prescription assistance may be prevalent in tough economic times; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is the position of the City Council and Administration to provide needed services 
to the residents of Troy; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
implementation of the NLC Prescription Discount Card. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-4 Amended Consent Order and Judgment – Proposed Parking Lot Expansion and 

Building Addition, Existing Heartland of Oakland Skilled Nursing Facility, 

Southeast Corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B 

(File Number SP-883 C) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the revised Preliminary Site Plan for 
Heartland Health Care 160 Bed Nursing Home and Rehabilitation Facility, located on the 
southeast corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3, as indicated on Preliminary Site 
Plan Sheet SP1, prepared by Nowak & Fraus; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Stipulated Third 
Amendment to the Consent Order and Judgment in the matter of Rodney D. Hyduk, DDS, 
MSD, Trustee of the Rodney D. Hyduk Trust Agreement, dated 2/19/82 as amended and 
successors in trust, successor to Rodney D. Hyduk   v.  City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal 
corporation and Healthcare and Retirement Corporation of America an Ohio corporation, as 
Intervening Plaintiff (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 83-265736-CZ), and hereby 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

AUTHORIZES the Assistant City Attorney to execute the document on behalf of the City of 

Troy, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-5 Amended Consent Order and Judgment – Proposed McDonald’s Restaurant with 

Drive-Up Facilities, Northwest Corner of Rochester Road and Big Beaver Road, 

Section 22 – B-2 and B-3 (File Number SU-361) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

(a) Proposed Resolution (with an outdoor seating area and relocated handicapped 

parking spaces, as per the Planning Commission recommendation) 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Stipulated Second Amendment to 
the Consent Order and Judgment in the matter of City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal 
corporation, as Plaintiff  v. Troy Commons, a Michigan Co-partnership, as Defendant (Oakland 

County Circuit Court Case No. 82-235070-CC), and hereby AUTHORIZES the Assistant City 
Attorney to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the revised 
Preliminary Site Plan for a McDonald’s Restaurant with Drive-up Facilities, with an outdoor 
seating area and relocated handicap parking spaces, as per the Planning Commission 
recommendation, located on the northwest corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Roads, Section 
22, as indicated on Preliminary Site Plan Sheet C1, prepared by Dorchen/Martin Associates, Inc., 

and hereby GRANTS Special Use Approval.  
 

OR  

 

(b) Proposed Resolution (with handicapped parking spaces on the southeast side of 

the building, as preferred by the applicant) 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Stipulated Second Amendment to 
the Consent Order and Judgment in the matter of City of Troy, a Michigan Municipal 
corporation, as Plaintiff  v. Troy Commons, a Michigan Co-partnership, as Defendant (Oakland 

County Circuit Court Case No. 82-235070-CC), and hereby AUTHORIZES the Assistant City 
Attorney  to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the revised 
Preliminary Site Plan for a McDonald’s Restaurant with Drive-up Facilities, with handicap 
parking spaces on the southeast side of the building, as preferred by the applicant, located on 
the northwest corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Roads, Section 22, as indicated on Preliminary 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

Site Plan Sheet C1, prepared by Dorchen/Martin Associates, Inc., and hereby GRANTS Special 
Use Approval. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

E-6 Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance 
 

a) Resolution to Amend Chapter 61 – Transient Merchants 
 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 61, 

Transient Merchants, as prepared by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting; and   
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The effective date of the amendment is January 1, 2009.  
 
Yes: 
No:  
 

b) Resolution to Amend Chapter 3 – Administrative Service 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 3, 
Administrative Service, Section 1.141(6), as prepared by City Administration, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The effective date of the amendment is January 1, 2009.  
 
Yes: 
No:  
 

c) Resolution to Amend Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 60, 
Fees and Bonds Required, Section 60.03, as prepared by City Administration, a copy of which 

shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The effective date of the amendment is January 1, 2009.  
 
Yes: 
No:  
 

d) Resolution to Amend Chapter 69 – Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 69, 
Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses, by deleting Sections 1 through 5 and renumbering the 

remainder of chapter, as prepared by City Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The effective date of the amendment is January 1, 2009.  
 
Yes: 
No:  
 

E-7 Transit Center Cost Sharing Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Agreement between the 
City of Troy and the City of Birmingham, which equally divides the cost of a Project Manager for 
the proposed Troy/Birmingham Intermodal Transit Center; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute the Interlocal Service Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 12 “F”.  

 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11-  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of November 10, 2008 and the Minutes of the 10:00 AM Special City 
Council Meeting of November 11, 2008 as submitted. 
 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
   
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting 

Specifications – Breathing Air Compressor                      
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish and install one (1) 
Breathing Air Compressor at Fire Station #1 to the low bidder meeting specifications, Southeast 
Equipment, Inc. of Troy Michigan, for an estimated total cost of $21,973.80; and 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Options – Vehicle Wash 

Services                     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 
WHEREAS, On May 14, 2007, contracts to furnish two-year requirements of City Vehicle Wash 
Services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years was awarded to the following 
bidders:  Tunnel O’Suds Car Wash, Your Car Wash, Pro Enterprise, Inc. and Jax Kar Wash as 
a result of a best value process at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 
23, 2007, a copy of which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting (Resolution 
#2007-05-142-E4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Tunnel O’Suds Car Wash, Jax Kar Wash and Pro Enterprise, Inc have 
agreed to exercise the two-year option to renew their exterior wash contracts under the 
same pricing, terms and conditions; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the 
option to renew the contracts with Tunnel O’Suds Car Wash, Jax Kar Wash and Pro 
Enterprise, Inc. to provide two-year requirements of City Vehicle Exterior Wash Services 
under the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contracts to expire 
December 31, 2010.    
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Uniform Rental Services                     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish two (2) year 
requirements of Uniform Rental Services for various City of Troy union employees, with an 
option to renew for two (2) additional years to the alternate proposal from Unifirst Corporation 
of Auburn Hills, Michigan  as a result of a best value process in cooperation with Oakland 
County, which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest, at unit prices at or 
below those contained in the tabulation opened September 3, 2008, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting,  with the contract expiring October 31, 
2010; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor submission 
of properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.   
 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – 

Lawn & Garden, Commercial and Agricultural Equipment                     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase one (1) 2008 
John Deere Backhoe from JDE Equipment Company, of New Hudson, MI, through the State of 
Michigan MiDEAL program for $83,757.00 plus additional options not covered under MiDEAL 
of $6,585.00, less trade-in of $16,000.00, for an estimated net total cost of $74,342.00; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Fleet 
Maintenance Division to accept or reject the trade-in offer of $16,000.00 for the backhoe, 
pending the results to offer the equipment for sale on the open market at an amount greater 
than $16,000.00. 
 

F-5 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit 

Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 

#21 – Sidwell #88-20-14-351-008 – BS&G Management Company/George and Maria 

Zivan 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and Temporary 
Construction Permit in the amount of $100.00 from BS&G Management Company and George 
and Maria Zivan, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-14-351-008. 
 

F-6 Application to Transfer a Resort Class C and Brewpub License to Granite City 
 

(a) Transfer License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Granite City Restaurant Operations, Inc. (a Minnesota Corporation) to transfer ownership of 
2008 Resort Class C licensed business (MCL 436.1531(2) and SDM license in conjunction with 
Official Permit (Food) located in escrow at 7568 S US-31, Alanson, MI 49706, Emmet County, 
from Lester’s Inc.; transfer location (Governmental Unit) to 699 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, 
Oakland County; and request a new Brewpub license to be held in conjunction; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Granite City Restaurant Operations, Inc. (a Minnesota Corporation) to transfer ownership 
of 2008 Resort Class C licensed business (MCL 436.1531(2) and SDM license in conjunction 
with Official Permit (Food) located in escrow at 7568 S US-31, Alanson, MI 49706, Emmet 
County, from Lester’s Inc.; transfer location (Governmental Unit) to 699 W. Big Beaver, Troy, 
MI 48084, Oakland County; and request a new Brewpub license to be held in conjunction;  and 

hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall 

be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement and Regrading & Temporary Construction Permit – 

Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel 

#43 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-080 – Pomponi’s Real Estate Investments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Pomponi’s Real Estate Investments, owners of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-22-226-080, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $52,926.00, plus closing 
costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $6,374.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $60.00 from Pomponi’s Real Estate Investments, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-080; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement and Regrading & Temporary Construction Permit – 

Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – 

Parcel #18 – Sidwell #88-20-23-100-081 – Marvin Brown, Jr., and Waltraud Brown 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Marvin Brown, Jr., and Waltraud Brown, owners of property having 
Sidwell #88-20-23-100-081 and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Wattles 
Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington in the amount of $24,400.00, plus closing costs; 
and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $1,300.00 and the Regrading and Temporary Construction 
Permit in the amount of $200.00 from Brentwood Land Development, LLC, owner of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-23-100-081; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent 

Public Utility Easement – Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – 

Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #15 – Sidwell #88-20-23-100-078 – Harmony Christian 

Care & Learning Center, LLC 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Harmony Christian Care & Learning Center, LLC, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-23-100-078 and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for 
Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington in the amount of $104,800.00, plus closing 
costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $14,400.00 from Harmony Christian Care & Learning Center, 
LLC, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-23-100-078; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 

125 E. Long Lake Road 
 

(a) Transfer License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC to transfer ownership of 2008 SDM licensed business located at 
125 E. Long Lake, Troy, MI; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC to transfer ownership of 2008 SDM licensed business 

located at 125 E. Long Lake, Troy, MI, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-11 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 

1980 E. Big Beaver Road 
 

(a) Transfer License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC to transfer ownership of 2008 SDM licensed business located at 
1980 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC to transfer ownership of 2008 SDM licensed business 

located at 1980 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-12 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 

2045 South Boulevard 
 

(a) Transfer License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC to transfer ownership of 2008 SDM licensed business located at 
2045 South Boulevard, Troy, MI; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC to transfer ownership of 2008 SDM licensed business 

located at 2045 South Boulevard, Troy, MI, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 

Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 

F-13 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 

4963 John R Road 

 

(a) Transfer License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC to transfer ownership of 2008 SDM licensed business located at 
4963 John R, Troy, MI; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 

application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 

(b) Agreement 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2008-11- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC to transfer ownership of 2008 SDM licensed business 

located at 4963 John R, Troy, MI, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-14 Second Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement – Wattles Road, 1,000’ 

East and West of Rochester Road – Project No. 01.106.5 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Amendment No.2 to Preliminary 
Engineering Agreement No. 01-5477/S1, with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC) for preliminary 
engineering services required in connection with the reconstruction of Wattles Road, 1,000’ 

East and West of Rochester Road and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the amendment, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the 
meeting.  
 

F-15 Second Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement – Rochester Road, 

Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Amendment No.2 to Preliminary 
Engineering Agreement No. 00-5024/S1, with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. (HRC) for preliminary 
engineering services required in connection with the reconstruction of Rochester Road, from 

Torpey to Barclay and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the 

amendment, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting.  
 

F-16 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – Troy-Rochester Properties, 

LLC – Sidwell #88-20-22-426-057 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the water main easement from property 
owner Troy-Rochester Properties, LLC, having Sidwell # 88-20-22-426-057; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 

G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted   

 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  

a) Joint Local Development Finance Authority/Final – April 28, 2008 

b) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 4, 2008  

c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 16, 2008  

d) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – October 13, 2008  

e) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 15, 2008  

f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 21, 2008  

g) Local Development Finance Authority/Final – October 27, 2008  

h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 28, 2008 

i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 28, 2008  

j) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 28, 2008  

k) Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – November 5, 2008  

l) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 5, 2008  

m) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 10, 2008 
 

J-2 Department Reports:   

a) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of October 2008  

b) Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML 110
th

 Annual 
Conference on October 1-5, 2008  

c) City Council Expense Report – November, 2008   
  

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  

a) Letter of Thanks from Kathryn Brodt Regarding the Medical Equipment Loan Closet  

b) Letter to Chief Nelson from Senator John Pappageorge Regarding the Troy Fire 
Department Earning a Life Safety Achievement Award from the Residential Fire Safety 
Institute  

c) Letter from St. Alan’s Church Commending the Precinct Workers at Precincts 19 and 28  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 18 - 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 

J-5  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – 

Quarterly Report – October 2008 
 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – 

Case No. U-15677 

 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 Preliminary Discussion No. 2 of the 2009/10 Budget – Authorization for City 

Management to Implement Items from the Deficit Reduction Survey 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2008-11- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, City Management requested City Council’s input on the Deficit Reduction Survey, 
which is a list of staff suggestions for new revenue sources and expenditure savings; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council submitted their ratings of these items and staff compiled the results to 
determine suggestions that a majority of Council indicated they will consider; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City 
Management to implement the following items from the Deficit Reduction Survey: 
 

 Transfer excess Special Assessment funds 

 Increase DDA charge for services 

 Implement Police arrest booking fee 

 Implement property damage auto crash recovery fee 

 $1.00 service charge on all parks and recreation transactions 

 Charge seniors the full cost of all programs 

 Implement business occupancy permit and annual renewal fee 

 Raise building permit fees by 5% 

 Implement auto injury accident cost recovery fee   

 Charge non-profit groups for use of Community Center meeting rooms 

 Implement structure fire response fee 

 Implement a single-family residential rental inspection program 

 Implement fire re-inspection and revised plan review fee 

 Implement suspicious fire response and investigation fee 

 Implement downed wire fire response fee (electric company pays) 

 Charge youth groups full cost for field usage 

 Increase shelter fees 

 Charge admission to museum grounds (currently a donation is requested) 

 Charge non-resident fee for Internet usage at Library 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 19 - 

 Implement a fuel surcharge on traffic tickets 

 Freeze positions through retirement incentives (2009/10) 

 Eliminate community agency contributions 

 Return maintenance of all county roads back to the county 

 Eliminate all irrigation except athletic fields, DDA and City Hall 

 No snow removal on overtime (City property) 

 Reduce part-time staff in the parks by 25% 

 Reduce number of right-of-way mowing from 6 to 3 cuttings per year 

 Eliminate City calendar 

 Limit the snow plowing of subdivisions to straight time, with minimal overtime 

 Reduce Civic Center maintenance levels 

 Eliminate employee tuition reimbursement 

 Eliminate the annual boards and committees appreciation banquet 

 Reduce mowing in parks/public grounds 

 Eliminate annual plantings, mulch, street island maintenance except DDA and Civic 
Center 

 Eliminate family festival 

 Eliminate the Citizens Academy 

 Operate City Hall on a four ten hour day schedule, closing one day a week 

 Negotiate hiring part-time personnel in lieu of full-time 

 Direct city manager and department directors to eliminate lowest priority services 

 Re-evaluate Troy Daze event (in totality) - including size, location, duration, purpose, etc 

 Consider the benefits of alternative fuel vehicles (i.e. liquid propane, natural gas, 
hybrids, etc) 

 Develop and promote energy saving policy 

 Buy distressed property in Troy and use to rebuild for the future 

 Promote Troy to the film industry - reap the benefits 

 Privatize City Attorney’s Office 

 Operate the Nature Center as a park 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 

during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  November 24, 2008 

 

- 20 - 

 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, December 1, 2008 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, December 15, 2008 .................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, January 5, 2009 .......................................................... Regular City Council 

Monday, January 26, 2009 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Monday, February 2, 2009 ........................................................ Regular City Council 

Wednesday, February 11, 2009 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 

Monday, February 16, 2009 ...................................................... Regular City Council 

Wednesday, February 18, 2009 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 

 



 

 
 
                             
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration  

Monica Irelan, Administrative Intern  
 
SUBJECT:  NLC Prescription Discount Card Program  
 
 
Background: 
 

 Michigan’s tough economic times make it difficult for residents to pay for prescriptions. 

 National League of Cities (NLC) along with CVS Caremark has launched a free prescription discount card 
for residents of NLC member cities. 

 This card can be used by residents without health insurance; those with a traditional pharmacy benefit 
plan; or residents whose health insurance does not cover prescriptions. 

 The average savings on prescriptions is 20% and can go up to 50% off. 

 There are well over 100 pharmacies within a 10 mile radius of the city that will accept the discount card 
along with 9 out of 10 pharmacies nationwide. 

 One discount card covers the card holder and all family members. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 none 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 none 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 Troy enhances the livability and safety of the community 
 
Options: 
 

 To accept and implement the NLC Prescription Discount Card. 

 
 
 
 
 
[MSI/ NLC Prescription Discount Card Program] 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



Offer this FREE Program to your residents to help them
save money on their prescriptions and manage their everyday life.

It's all
   about
lifestyle!



Overview

National League of Cities (NLC) has launched a FREE prescription discount card program for 

member cities to help residents cope with the high cost of prescription drugs. Now it is possible 

for your city to offer savings on prescription drugs to your residents who are without health 

insurance, a traditional pharmacy benefit plan, or have prescriptions not covered by insurance. 

The NLC Prescription Discount Card program is administered by CVS Caremark, an experienced 

prescription discount card provider who has administered these programs since 1992.
 

There is no cost to your city to sponsor the program in collaboration with NLC. CVS Caremark 

will produce and provide the city with personalized (with your city name and logo) prescription 

discount ID cards as well as other template marketing materials. There is no contract to sign. 

You will receive a letter and Exhibit A from NLC which does not require a signature.   
 

Following the launch in your city, your residents will have access to the program which includes:

     •   Average savings of 20%

     •   Savings of up to 50% on prescriptions through mail service

     •   Coverage for ALL family members 

     •   No limit on how many times the card can be used

     •   No age requirements 

     •   No income requirements

     •   No enrollment fees

     •   No membership fees

     •   Easy access, nine out of 10 pharmacies nationwide participate in the program

National League of  Cities
Prescription Discount Card



City Sponsorship

The NLC Prescription Discount Card program is a member service of the National League 

of Cities. Your city must be a member of NLC to sponsor the program and offer the discount 

card to your residents.

Program Launch

To launch the program successfully, maximize the program benefits and generate good will 

for your city requires city promotion and support of the program. As a member city of NLC, 

a dedicated implementation team will be assigned to assist the city with the program launch. 

To implement the program is approximately eight weeks from receipt of the completed form 

that is included in this brochure.

The program has been established to have a simple turn-key launch for the city, by utilizing 

the following steps to launch:

1. Promote the program to the local media outlets: print, television and radio. Take this 

    opportunity to leverage existing media relationships with mutually approved communications. 

    Template materials provided include:  

         a. Pre-launch press release

         b. Launch press release

         c. Public Service Announcement

2. Promote the program throughout various city venues and incorporate the program benefits 

    in communication vehicles the city currently uses for outreach to the residents. Some ideas 

    for these communications include, but are not limited to: bill stuffers, posters, flyers, and 

    electronic communications. All communications must be reviewed and approved by NLC 

    and CVS Caremark unless the city is using communications supplied by CVS Caremark.

3. Provide city wide ID card distribution points to distribute the ID cards that will be printed 

    with the relevant City’s name and logo. Stands will be provided to display the cards.

4. The city should provide a dedicated page on the city web site that includes a list of 

    locations where prescription discount cards are available and a link to the co-branded 

    web site www.caremark.com/nlc.



Web Support

The co-branded web site contains the program 

information and useful tools for city residents. 

Residents can use the web site as a resource to 

find a local participating pharmacy, look up a 

drug price, access health and wellness information 

and print a dynamic web card. 

The web card is offered as an option for your residents to have easy access to the prescription 

discount card. The personalized web card is generated when the resident completes a simple 

form. City residents can print the card on their home computer and use the card immediately 

at a participating pharmacy.

 

Customer Care Support

Following the program launch your resident’s have access to a dedicated toll-free number to 

contact CVS Caremark’s award winning customer care. Service representatives are trained in 

handling customer interactions for the prescription discount card.

This is not insurance. Discounts are only available at participating pharmacies. By using this card, participants
agree to pay the entire prescription cost less any applicable discount. Savings may vary by drug and pharmacy.

106-008201 09/08

To obtain more information 

about the program, please 

contact Marc Shapiro at NLC 

(shapiro@nlc.org) or visit 

www.nlc.org; additional program 

information can also be obtained 

at www.caremark.com/nlc. 

Cities may also sign-up for the 

program by completing the form 

included in this brochure, or on 

NLC's website www.nlc.org.





 
 
DATE: November 19, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Amended Consent Order and Judgment – Proposed Parking Lot Expansion and Building 

Addition, Existing Heartland of Oakland Skilled Nursing Facility, Southeast corner of South 
Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B (File Number SP-883 C) 

 
 
Background: 
 

 The applicant ManorCare Health Services Inc. intends to amend the consent judgment for the 
above referenced property to permit the expansion of the existing 120-bed nursing home and 
rehabilitation facility.  The applicant intends to add a 40-bed addition and a 1,593 square foot 
physical therapy/occupational therapy addition, plus add additional parking spaces.  This 
includes an additional 1.7 acre expansion of the existing property, thus including the entire 
5.48 acre “Hyduk” parcel. 
 

 The applicant prepared a Preliminary Site Plan application for the proposed project. 
 

 The existing facility is deficient in the number of parking spaces provided on site, based on 
parking space demand.  Visitors and employees park off site on adjacent properties including 
across South Boulevard to the north.  The applicant prepared a parking study to determine 
future parking demands and proposes additional parking spaces on site to address this issue.  

 

 The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Preliminary Site Plan at the 
November 11, 2008 Regular meeting. 

 

 The application is consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with adjacent 
zoning districts and land uses. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04



Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1 Special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve the amended consent judgment and site plan. 
 

 City Council can approve the amended consent judgment and site plan, with conditions. 
 

 City Council can deny the amended consent judgment and site plan. 
 
 

 

 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Planning Commission report, dated November 5, 2008.  
3. Minutes from the November 11, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
4. Letter of support from Meadowland Estates Subdivision Homeowners Association. 
5. Third Amendment to the Consent Order and Judgment. 
 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /SP 883-C 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 883-C Heartland Health CJ Sec 3\CC Action Report 11 24 08.doc 
 
 



AD
AM

S

FOURTEEN MILE

MAPLE MAPLE

MA
IN

CR
OO

KS
CR

OO
KS

STEPHENSON

I75

I75

BIG BEAVER
LIV

ER
NO

IS

SQUARE LAKE

WATTLES

SOUTH BLVD

JO
HN 

R
JO

HN 
R

LONG LAKE

DE
QU

IN
DR

E
DE

QU
IN

DR
E

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

CO
OL

ID
GE



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



LIV
ER

NO
IS

W SOUTH BLVD

NUTHATCH

OM
AR 

CT

WHITE TAIL

WILDWOOD LANE

INGRAM

DO
NA

LD
SO

N

FIELDSTONE

SITE PLAN REVIEW & CONSENT JUDGMENT AMENDMENT
ADDITION & PARKING LOT EXPANSION
EX. HEARTLAND OF OAKLAND SKILLED NURSING FACILITY
SE CORNER SOUTH BLVD. & LIVERNOIS
SEC. 3  (SP-883 C)

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³



LIV
ER

NO
IS

W SOUTH BLVD

NUTHATCH

OM
AR 

CT

WHITE TAIL

WILDWOOD LANE

INGRAM

DO
NA

LD
SO

N

FIELDSTONE

CJ-3O-1
B-1

R-1B

SITE PLAN REVIEW & CONSENT JUDGMENT AMENDMENT
ADDITION & PARKING LOT EXPANSION
EX. HEARTLAND OF OAKLAND SKILLED NURSING FACILITY
SE CORNER SOUTH BLVD. & LIVERNOIS
SEC. 3  (SP-883 C)

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 200 30050
Feet ³



 1 

DATE:  November 5, 2008 
 
TO: The Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 883 C) – Proposed Parking Lot 

Expansion and Building Addition, Existing Heartland of Oakland Skilled Nursing 
Facility, Southeast corner of South Blvd. and Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-
1B (controlled by Consent Judgment). 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is ManorCare Health Services Inc. 
 
Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the southeast corner of South Blvd. and Livernois, in Section 3. 
 
Size of Subject Parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 5.48 acres in area.   
 
Proposed Use of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to expand the existing 120-bed (31,360 square feet) nursing 
home and rehabilitation facility by adding a 40-bed (16,285 square feet) addition and a 
1,593 square foot PT/OT addition. 
 
Parcel History: 
The use of the parcel is controlled by a consent judgment, which will need to be amended 
to accommodate the revisions to the site plan.  City Council is responsible for approving 
the amended consent judgment, which includes Final Site Plan Approval authority.  The 
Planning Commission has been asked to review and make a recommendation on the 
revised site plan. 
 
This item was on the July 8, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting and was 
postponed to a future meeting at the applicant’s request.  The applicant subsequently 
obtained an option to purchase the 1.7-acre parcel to the west, thereby expanding the 
parcel from 3.8 acres to 5.48 acres.  They propose to add an additional 40 beds onto the 
expanded parcel and add additional parking to accommodate the parking demands for the 
entire facility.  
  



 2 

Current Zoning Classification: 
The west approximately 70 feet of the parcel is zoned O-1 Office Building.  The balance of 
the parcel is zoned R-1B One Family Residential.  The entire nursing home parcel is to be 
treated as RM-1 Multiple Family Low Rise Residential under the consent judgment. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A 120-bed nursing home is located on the property. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Animal Medical Center (City of Rochester Hills). 
South:  Single family residential (Meadowland Estates Subdivision). 
East: Single family residential (Meadowland Estates Subdivision). 
West: Day care and pet supply store. 
 
Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-2 General Business and R-2 One Family Residential (City of Rochester Hills). 
South: R-1B One Family Residential.  
East: R-1B One Family Residential. 
West: B-1 Local Business. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Future Land Use Plan as Low Rise Office. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with the Consent Judgment 
The consent order and judgment will need to be amended to include the proposed 
improvements on the additional 1.7-acre parcel to the west.  The development on the 
original 3.8-acre parcel is required to comply with the provisions of the consent judgment 
and the provisions of the RM-1 Multiple Family Low Rise Residential Zoning District and 
the provisions of the approved site plan.  The RM-1 provisions have been applied to the 
entire parcel, including the proposed addition. 
 
Area and bulk requirements of the RM-1 district: 
Lot Area: Not applicable in the RM-1 district. 
Lot Width: Not applicable in the RM-1 district. 
Height: Maximum permitted height is 2 stories. 
Setbacks: Front: 50 foot minimum setback required.  The building is set back 75 feet 

however the fixed entrance canopy is set back only 38.33 feet. 
 Side: 50 foot minimum setback required. 98.08 feet (east) and 71.18 feet 

(west) provided.   
 Rear: 50 foot minimum setback required.  70.44 feet provided.  
Landscaping: The applicant meets the requirement of at least 800 square feet of lot area 

and 300 square feet of open space per bed. 
  



 3 

Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements:  
The off-street parking requirement for the 160-bed facility is 80 spaces.  The applicant 
proposes 212 spaces.  Note that the existing facility was deficient in the number of parking 
spaces provided on site, and the applicant has addressed this issue by constructing 
additional parking spaces. A parking study was completed for the applicant by Midwestern 
Consulting, LLC.  The study indicated there were sufficient spaces to accommodate the 
facility’s parking demands.  The firm of OHM Engineering Advisors, the City’s Traffic 
Consultant, reviewed the report and agreed that the 212 spaces would accommodate the 
development. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
Vehicular access is provided by an existing entry drive on South and a proposed drive on 
Livernois.  
 
There is an 8-foot wide sidewalk along Livernois and South.  In addition, 5-foot wide 
connecting sidewalks have been provided.   
 
Storm Water Detention: 
The site plan indicates that underground detention will be provided. 
 
Environmental Provisions: 
A screened dumpster is provided on the west side of the existing building. 
 
The application exceeds the minimum 10% landscaping requirement and greenbelt tree 
requirement.   
 
The applicant indicated that buffering along the southern and eastern property lines was 
designed with input from abutting property owners, including representatives of the 
Meadowland Estates Subdivision and the owners of 6908 Livernois.  
 
Natural Features and Floodplains: 
There are no significant natural features located on the property.  
 
 
CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposed development is generally consistent with the Consent Judgment, as 
amended.  City Management recommends approval of the site plan, as submitted. 
 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP-883 C 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 883-C Heartland Health CJ Sec 3\Heartland Addition PC Report 11 11 08.docx 
 









PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 11, 2008 
  

 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

10. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 883-C) – Proposed Addition and Parking Lot 
Expansion and Consent Judgment Amendment, Heartland Health Care Skilled 
Nursing Facility (925 South Blvd.), South side of South Blvd., East of Livernois, 
Section 3, Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) and O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
Districts (controlled by Consent Judgment) 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
approve the site plan as submitted.  Mr. Savidant addressed the placement of 
speed humps along the south parking thoroughfare lanes of the Heartland Health 
property as a deterrent to cut-through traffic. 
 
Peter DeLoof, attorney, 301 N. Main Street, Ann Arbor, was present to represent 
the petitioner.  Also present were Brion Harrigan of HCR ManorCare and George 
Ostrowski of Nowak & Fraus.  A colored rendering was displayed.  Mr. DeLoof 
addressed conversations with the neighboring property owners and homeowners 
association.  He indicated groundbreaking is projected for early spring.   
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Jill Duggan of 4702 Rivers Edge, Troy, was present.  Ms. Duggan spoke 
unfavorably of the existing parking situation. 
 
David Merrill of 6908 Livernois, Troy, was present.  Mr. Merrill expressed his 
concern with cut-through traffic, and spoke favorably of the petitioner working with 
this concern. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-11-134 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to a proposed Amendment to Consent 
Judgment, for a revised site plan, located at the southeast corner of South 
Boulevard and Livernois Road, being 5.48 acres in size, within Section 3, within 
the R-1B and O-1 zoning districts, be approved. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Maxwell, Vleck, Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 







 

 1 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND 

 
RODNEY D. HYDUK, DDS, MSD, 
Trustee of the Rodney D. Hyduk 
Trust Agreement, dated 2/19/82,    Case No. 83-265736-CZ 
as amended and successors in trust,   HON. JOHN J. MACDONALD 
successor to Rodney D. Hyduk, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 
v. 
 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
Municipal corporation,  
 

Defendant, 
 
and 
 
HEARTLAND-OAKLAND MI, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company, 
and successor in interest to 
HEATHCARE AND RETIREMENT 
CORPORATION OF AMERICA, 
an Ohio corporation, 

Intervening Plaintiff. 
                                                                                                                                                    / 
KALAS KADIAN, P.L.C.    LORI GRIGG BLUHM (P46908) 
By:  THOMAS KALAS (P41805)   CHRISTOPHER J. FORSYTH (P63025) 
Attorney for Plaintiff  Attorneys for Defendant 
40900 Woodward Ave., Ste. 315   500 W. Big Beaver Road  
Bloomfield Hills, MI  48304    Troy, Michigan  48084 
(248) 203-7174     (248) 524-3320 
 
DeLOOF, HOPPER, DEVER & WRIGHT, PLLC 
By:  PETER H. DeLOOF (P12654) 
Attorney for Intervening Party 
301 N. Main Street, Suite 250 
Ann Arbor, Michigan  48104 
(734) 994-1295 
                                                                                                                                                     / 



 

 2 

 
 

 THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE CONSENT ORDER AND JUDGMENT 

 
 At a session of said Court held 
 in the City of Pontiac, 
 County of Oakland, State of Michigan 
 
 on _______________________, 2008 
 
 Present:  Hon. John J. MacDonald, Circuit Court Judge 
 

Whereas, Plaintiff RODNEY D. HYDUK, DDS, MSD, Trustee of the Rodney D. Hyduk Trust 

Agreement, dated February 19, 1982, as amended, and successors in trust, successor to Rodney D. 

Hyduk (hereinafter referred to as "Hyduk") was the previous owner of 5.48 acres of real property, 

which is legally described in the attached Exhibit A, Parcel I.D. No. 20-03-102-001 (hereinafter 

referred to as the "Parcel"), located in Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, which was the subject of the 

December 26, 1983 Consent Order and Judgment; and 

Whereas, Intervening Plaintiff HEALTHCARE AND RETIREMENT CORPORATION OF 

AMERICA, an Ohio corporation (hereinafter referred to as HRCA) purchased the east 3.78 acres of 

the Parcel previously owned by Hyduk which is legally described in the attached Exhibit B 

(hereinafter referred to as the "Property"); and 

Whereas, Plaintiff Hyduk retained the westernmost 1.70 acres of the Parcel (hereinafter 

referred to as the Remainder Property), which 1.70 acres are legally described in the attached 

Exhibit C; and 

Whereas, Heartland-Oakland MI, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, (hereinafter 

referred to as "Heartland") is the successor in ownership interest of HRCA for the Property and has 

entered into a Purchase Agreement with Hyduk to acquire the Remainder Property. The Property 

and the Remainder Property when combined (hereinafter referred to as the "Combined Property") is 

legally described on the attached Exhibit D; and 



 

 3 

Whereas, the First and Second Amendments to the Consent Order and Judgment were 

entered by this Court which allowed the Intervening Plaintiff to develop the Property in accordance 

with proposed site plans submitted to the Defendant City of Troy which were attached to the 

respective First and Second Amendments to the Consent Order and Judgment. Development of 

those respective site plans required amendments to the Consent Order and Judgment of December 

26, 1986, which is controlling for the Property; and 

Whereas, the parties have agreed to further amend certain provisions of the Consent Order 

and Judgment as amended by the First and Second Amendments thereto, to allow for the revision of 

the previous site plans for Intervening Plaintiff to expand the existing one hundred twenty (120) bed 

skilled nursing home and rehabilitation facility by adding a forty (40) bed, 16,285 square foot 

addition, a 1,593 square foot physical and occupational therapy addition, and additional parking 

spaces for a total of 212 parking spaces on the Combined Property. 

Now Therefore, pursuant to stipulation of the parties, by and through their respective 

counsel, and this Court being otherwise duly advised in the premises, 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that all terms and conditions set out in the December 26, 1986 

Consent Order and Judgment, the September 27, 2005 First Amendment to Consent Order and 

Judgment, and the November 27, 2006 Second Amendment to the Consent Order and Judgment, 

between the parties, which are incorporated herein by reference, shall remain in effect, unless 

expressly modified by this Third Amendment to the Consent Order and Judgment (Third 

Amendment); and 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Intervening Plaintiff be allowed to revise the previous 

site plans to expand the existing skilled 120 bed nursing home and rehabilitation facility.  The 

additions and the parking spaces shall be developed on the Combined Property so as to comply 

with the provisions of the revised final site plan for the Combined Property, which is attached as 



 

 4 

Exhibit E and incorporated herein by reference ("Site Plan"), and which Site Plan was duly approved 

by the Troy City Council at its City Council meeting of November 24, 2008. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Heartland shall install a sewage grinder on the Combined 

Property as depicted on the Site Plan to minimize the discharge of garbage and other waste into the 

sanitary sewer system on or before the first to occur of (a) the grant to Intervening Plaintiff of a 

Temporary Certificate of Occupancy for the approved additions, or (b) twelve (12) months from the 

date this Third Amendment to the Consent Order and Judgment is entered with this Court.  

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a certified copy of this Third Amendment to the Consent 

Order and Judgment, including Exhibits, shall be recorded in the Oakland County Register of Deeds 

against the Combined Property. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction over this action. 

 
                                                                    

_____________________________ 
John J. MacDonald 
Circuit Court Judge 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 5 

Approved as to form, substance and entry: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Thomas Kalas (P41805) 
Attorney for Plaintiff, Rodney D. Hyduk 
Trust u/a/d 2/19/82 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Peter H. DeLoof (P12654) 
Attorney for Heartland-Oakland MI, LLC 
 
Rodney D. Hyduk Trust u/a/d/ 2/19/82 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Rodney D. Hyduk, Trustee 

CITY OF TROY, Defendant 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Christopher J. Forsyth 
Its: Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 

 
After recording return to: 
 
Peter H. DeLoof, Esq. (P12654) 
DeLoof, Hopper, Dever & Wright, PLLC 
301 N. Main Street, Suite 250 
Ann Arbor, Michigan 48104 
Phone: (734) 994-1295 
 



 
 
 
 
 

Plans are included with  
Council agenda packets 

and available for viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



 
 
DATE: November 19, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Amended Consent Order and Judgment – Proposed McDonald’s Restaurant with drive-

up facilities, Northwest corner of Rochester Road and Big Beaver Road, Section 22 – 
B-2 and B-3 (File Number SU-361) 

 
 
Background: 
 

 The applicant Troy Commons LLC intends to amend the consent judgment for the above 
referenced property to permit a McDonald’s Restaurant with drive-up facilities.  The applicant 
prepared a Preliminary Site Plan application for the proposed project. 

 

 The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Preliminary Site Plan at the October 
28, 2008 Special/Study meeting, subject to the following:   
 
1. The current area noted as handicap parking will be converted to outdoor patio space. 
2. The handicap parking spaces will be moved to a convenient location which will result in 

loss of approximately five (5) parking spaces. 
 

 The applicant submitted two site plans.  Site Plan A provides an outdoor seating area and 
relocated handicap parking spaces, as per the Planning Commission recommendation.  Site 
Plan B provides handicap parking spaces on the southeast side of the building, as originally 
proposed and as preferred by the applicant.  This relocation would require users of handicap 
parking spaces to traverse the traffic maneuvering lane to enter the restaurant. 

 

 The application is consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with adjacent 
zoning districts and land uses. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1 Special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve the amended consent judgment and Site Plan A (with outdoor 
 seating, as recommended by the Planning Commission). 
 

 City Council can approve the amended consent judgment and Site Plan B (without outdoor 
 seating, as preferred by the applicant). 
 

 City Council can approve the amended consent judgment and site plan, with conditions. 
 

 City Council can deny the amended consent judgment and site plan. 
 

 

 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 

Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Planning Commission report, dated October 21, 2008.  
3. Minutes from the October 28, 2008 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
4. Letter of Opposition. 
5. Amendment to Consent Judgment. 
 

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File /SU 361 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU-361 McDonald's Restaurant Sec 22\CC Action Report 11 24 08.doc 



JO
HN 

R

CO
OL

ID
GE

CR
OO

KS

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

LONG LAKE

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75
MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

AD
AM

S



CITY OF TROY

PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



SPECIAL USE REQUEST
PROPOSED McDONALDS RESTAURNT W/ DRIVE UP
NW CORNER BIG BEAVER & ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 22  (SU-361) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 20050
Feet ³



O-1

B-3

C-F

M-1

R-1E

H-S

B-2

P-1

SPECIAL USE REQUEST
PROPOSED McDONALDS RESTAURNT W/ DRIVE UP
NW CORNER BIG BEAVER & ROCHESTER RD.
SEC. 22  (SU-361) 

SUBJECT SITE

0 100 20050
Feet ³



 1 

DATE: October 21, 2008 
 
TO: The Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: CONSENT JUDGEMENT (SU-361) – McDonalds Restaurant with Drive-up 

Facilities, Northwest corner of Big Beaver & Rochester Road, Section 22, 
B-2 (Community Business) and B-3 (General Business) Districts 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of owner / applicant: 
The owner of the property is Troy Commons LLC.  The applicant is McDonald’s USA.  
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the northwest corner of Big Beaver Road and Rochester 
Road in section 22. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The subject parcel is approximately 0.97 acres in area.   
 
Proposed Use of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing to develop a McDonald’s restaurant with drive-thru windows 
on the parcel. 
 
The use of the property is controlled by consent judgment. 
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
A vacant Big Boy Restaurant building and off street parking spaces presently sit on the 
property.   
 
Current Zoning Classification: 
The property is currently zoned B-2 Community Business District and B-3 General 
Business District.  The entire building will be located within the B-2 district. 
 
Current Use of Adjacent Parcels: 
North: Retail/restaurant. 
South: Restaurant with drive-thru. 
East: Park/retention basin (City owned). 
West: Parking for retail shopping center. 
  



 2 

Zoning Classification of Adjacent Parcels:  
North: B-2 Community Business District and B-3 General Business District. 
South: H-S Highway Service District and B-2 Community Business District. 
East: C-F Community Facility District. 
West: B-2 Community Business District. 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The Future Land Use Plan classifies the property as Non-Center Commercial. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the B-2 District: 
 
Lot Area:   Minimum required area of 1.0 acre for a restaurant with drive thru in B-2  
  district (Section 21.30.02.B).  The parcel is 0.97 acres in area.  
 
Lot Width:   Minimum 150 foot width required for a restaurant with drive thru in B-2 

district (Section 21.30.02.B).  The parcel width is 174 feet. 
 

Height:  Maximum height permitted is 2 stories and 30 feet.  The proposed height is 
one story and 21 feet, 4 inches.   

 
Setbacks:  Front: 75 feet required.  81 feet 4 inches (south) and 76 feet 10 inches 

(east) provided. 
Side: 20 feet required.  55 feet 11 inches (west) provided. 

  Rear: 30 feet required.  55 feet (north) provided. 
 
The applicant does not meet the minimum lot area of the B-2 district. 
 
Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements:  
The restaurant requires 50 off-street parking spaces; 50 spaces are provided.  The 
applicant proposed 16 stacking spaces for the two proposed drive thru windows. 
 
A loading/unloading area is proposed for the north side of the building. 
 
Vehicular and Non-motorized Access: 
Vehicular access will be provided by two-way access drives on the west and north side 
of the property.  Additionally, an exit drive is proposed for the north and west sides of 
the property.  No additional curb cuts are proposed for either Big Beaver Road or 
Rochester Road, as access to the parent parcel is provided to the north on Rochester 
and to the west on Big Beaver.  
 
The owner of the parent parcel Troy Commons LLC proposes to modify the northern 
site entrance on Rochester Road.  They propose to shorten the length of the existing 



 3 

island so that traffic entering the site can turn left (south) directly, without having to 
complete a U-turn to do so.  This proposed improvement is shown on Sheet C1. 
 
There is an existing sidewalk on the north side of Big Beaver and the west side of 
Rochester.  The applicant proposes a connecting sidewalk from the building entrance to 
the intersection of Big Beaver Road and Rochester Road.  Perimeter sidewalks are also 
proposed for the north and east sides of the building, and on the north side of the 
parking area south of the building. 
 
Storm Water Detention: 
The applicant proposes to utilize the existing off-site detention pond. 
 
Landscaping: 
The application meets the 10% landscaping requirement and minimum greenbelt tree 
requirement.   
 
A note on the site plan indicates that the landscaping near the intersection will be 
coordinated with the City’s intersection enhancement project.  Additionally, street trees 
along Rochester and Big Beaver will be positioned per the intersection enhancement 
project.  
 
Environmental provisions: 
The site plan shows a screened trash corral on the west side of the restaurant. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are no significant natural features located on 
the property. 
 
Compatibility with adjacent land uses: 
The proposed restaurant is surrounded by compatible land uses.  The restaurant will 
replace an unsightly vacant restaurant building. 
 
Compatibility with Big Beaver Corridor Study 
The site is located within the Big Beaver Corridor.  The Big Beaver Corridor Study was 
adopted by the Planning Commission as part of the City of Troy 2008 Master Plan and 
includes the following Key Concepts: 

 
1. Gateways, districts and transitions. 
2. Trees and landscape as “ceilings and walls”. 
3. Walking becomes entertainment. 
4. Mixing the uses turns on the lights. 
5. The automobile and parking are no longer #1. 
6. Civic art as the wise sage of the boulevard. 

 
The proposed restaurant has a stronger relationship with the intersection than the 
existing building on site.  The restaurant has 16 stacking spaces and two drive-thru 



 4 

windows, however the main entrance at the front of the building is oriented to the 
intersection, including a sidewalk connection.  Site landscaping is integrated with the 
proposed landscape improvements at the intersection and in the right of way. 
 
 
CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
The use of the property is controlled by consent judgment.  Therefore, City Council has 
approval authority and the Planning Commission is a recommending body for this 
application. 
 
The Planning Department recommends approval of the special use request and site 
plan, as submitted. 

 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File\ SU 361 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU-361 McDonald's Restaurant Sec 22\McDonalds Restaurant Report 10 28 08.docx 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

SITE PLAN 
 
8. CONSENT JUDGMENT AMENDMENT AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPROVAL – 

McDonald’s Restaurant with Drive-up Facilities, Northwest corner of Big Beaver and 
Rochester Road, Section 22, B-2 (Community Business) and B-3 (General Business) 
Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the item. 
 
Stuart Frankel, Troy Commons LLC, the owner of the subject parcel, introduced the 
project team. 
 
Otis Carter, McDonald’s USA, 1021 Karl Greimel Drive, Brighton, briefly described the 
project. 
 
Michael Kazarian, McDonald’s USA, 1021 Karl Greimel Drive, Brighton, stated they 
expect approximately 140 vehicles during the lunch rush, between the hours of 11:00 
a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Strat suggested the applicant eliminate the three handicap parking spaces on the 
east side of the building and provide an outdoor seating area in this location. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor to the public for comment. 
 
There was no one who wished to speak. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-125 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the proposed 
Amendment to Consent Judgment and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for 
the proposed McDonald’s Restaurant with drive-up facilities, located on the northwest 
corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Roads, located in Section 22, within the B-2 and B-
3 zoning districts, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The current area noted as handicap parking will be converted to outdoor patio 
space. 

2. The handicap parking spaces will be moved to a convenient location which will result 
in loss of approximately five (5) parking spaces. 

 

Yes: Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann, Vleck 
No: Maxwell 
Absent:  Wright 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained he did not support the resolution because he has concerns with 
traffic volumes and the lack of inconsistency with the Big Beaver Road Corridor Study. 

 





STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

OAKLAND COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT 
 
CITY OF TROY, a Michigan 
municipal corporation, 
 
  Plaintiff,      Case No. 82-235070 CC 
         Hon. Shalina Kumar 

v 
 
TROY COMMONS, a Michigan 
co-partnership, 
 
  Defendant.  
 
______________________________/ 
 
City of Troy – City Attorney’s Office 
Lori Grigg Bluhm  (P46908) 
 Christopher J. Forsyth (P63025) 
Attorneys for Defendant 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
______________________________/ 
 

 
 
 

STIPULATED SECOND ORDER AMENDING THE CONSENT JUDGMENT 



 
At a session of said Court  

Held in the Courthouse in the  
City of Pontiac, Oakland County, MI 
on:__________________________ 

 
PRESENT: HONORABLE SHALINA KUMAR 

 
The Parties hereby stipulate and agree to this amendment to the First Amended 

Consent Judgment as to Parcel 60 dated January 7, 1998, which replaced the Consent 

Judgment as to Parcel 60 entered on May 2, 1985, as set forth below: 

 WHEREAS, Plaintiff initiated this case to acquire right of way from Defendant for 

drainage purposes and to widen Big Beaver Road; and 

 WHEREAS, the Parties resolved a portion of the condemnation case by entry of 

a consent judgment on May 2, 1985; and 

 WHEREAS, the Parties negotiated a final settlement of the case, which was 

reduced to the First Amended Consent Judgment as to Parcel 60, and which was 

entered by the Court on January 7, 1998. The First Amended Consent Judgment 

replaced the consent judgment entered on May 2, 1985; and 

 WHEREAS, subsequent to the entry of the First Amended Consent Judgment, 

Defendant acquired additional property which has been combined with the property that 

is subject to the First Amended Consent Judgment; and  

WHEREAS, Defendant has made a proposal to demolish one of the structures 

(the Big Boy Restaurant) on the property that is subject  to this First Amended Consent 

Judgment  (Troy Commons Shopping Center, hereinafter “Center”) and replace it with a 

restaurant with drive thru facilities; and  



WHEREAS, the First Amended Consent Judgment does not allow for restaurants 

with drive thru facilities; and  

 WHEREAS, the construction of a restaurant with a drive thru facility would also 

require egress and ingress improvements from the Rochester Road entry points to the 

Center; and  

 WHEREAS, the parties are desirous of amending this First Amended Consent 

Judgment to accommodate a proposed restaurant with drive thru facilities; and  

WHEREAS, this Court has retained jurisdiction over this action, including any 

matters arising out of the performance of the First Amended Consent Judgment As to 

Parcel 60;  

 NOW THEREFORE, 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the First Amended Consent Judgment as to 

Parcel 60, is further amended as follows: 

1. Although a restaurant with drive thru facilities would not otherwise be 

permitted by the terms of the Consent Judgment, the Troy City Council has 

the option of giving special use approval simultaneous with a subsequent site 

plan approval for the Center.     

2.  Prior to the issuance of a temporary certificate of occupancy for any 

restaurant with drive thru facilities, Defendant shall modify the existing 

Rochester Road entry to the Property that is subject to this Consent 

Judgment.  This modification includes, but is not limited to the removal of a 

portion of the existing island, the relocation of the existing light pole, and the 

striping of directional arrows at the existing drive. 



3. Except as specifically provided, the First Amended Consent Judgment as to 

Parcel 60 shall otherwise remain in full force and effect, and without further 

modification.  Any reference to the Consent Judgment includes all properly 

executed amendments to the Consent Judgment. 

4. The Court shall continue to retain jurisdiction over the matter. 

5. This Stipulated Second Order Amending the Consent Judgment shall be 

recorded with the Oakland County Register of Deeds.  

IT IS SO ORDERED 

  
      _______________________ 
      Honorable Shalina Kumar 
      Oakland County Circuit Court 
 

 Approved as to form and content: 
 
 
 CITY OF TROY 
 
 
 _______________________ 
 Christopher J. Forsyth 
 Assistant City Attorney 
  

 
TROY COMMONS, a Michigan Co-partnership 

 
 __________________________ 
 Stuart Frankel, Partner 



 
 
 
 
 

Plans are included with  
Council agenda packets 

and available for viewing at the 
City Clerk’s Office and the Troy Public Library 



 
 
DATE: November 20, 2008 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark S. Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance 
 
Background: 
 

 At the June 16, 2008 Regular meeting, City Council directed City Management to “investigate 
the possibility of expanding Chapter 61 – Transient Merchant(s) or a similar means to include 
a mobile service vehicle”.   
 

 City Management proposes to amend Chapter 61 – Transient Merchants to expand the uses 
regulated by this ordinance, including sidewalk sales and Christmas tree sales, which are 
presently regulated under Chapter 69.  Chapter 61 will be renamed Temporary Merchant 
Businesses. 
 

 Chapter 3 – Administrative Service will be amended to add Chapter 61 to the list of City Codes 
that are enforced by the Building Department (see page 10 of Chapter 3). 
 

 Chapter 60 Fees and Bonds Required will be amended to add fees for Temporary Indoor Uses 
and Temporary Outdoor Uses, and to delete reference to Transient Merchants (see pages 5-
6). 
 

 Chapter 69 – Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses will be amended to remove sidewalk sales 
and Christmas tree sales, since these uses will be regulated by Chapter 61. 
 

 Chapter 39 – Zoning Ordinance will need to be amended in the future, since it presently states 
that sidewalk sales are regulated by Chapter 69. 

 

 In responding to questions raised at the last City Council meeting, City Management discovered 
that mobile windshield repair businesses would not be permitted under the version of the 
Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance that was presented to City Council.  Section 7(a) was 
modified so that mobile windshield repair businesses in the B-2, B-3 and H-S districts are 
permitted.     

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



 At the request of the City Attorney’s Office, the Annual Renewal Fee for Massage Therapist 
Registration in Chapter 60 was revised from “n/a” to $10.00.  This was omitted in the September 
8, 2008 Massage Therapy Ordinance adoption. 
 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 

 There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

 City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

 The application is consistent with the following “Outcome Statements” as established at the 
July 1 Special Council meeting: 

 

II. Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and 
quality of life venues. 

III. Troy is rebuilding for a healthy economy reflecting the values of a unique community in a 
changing and interconnected world. 

 
 
Options: 
 

 City Council can approve the proposed amendments.   
 

 City Council can deny the proposed amendments. 
 

 City Council can direct City staff to modify the proposed amendments. 
 

 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachments: 
1. Chapter 61 – Temporary Merchant Businesses (formerly Transient Merchants) proposed 

amendments. 
2. Chapter 3 – Administrative Service proposed amendments (excerpt). 
3. Chapter 60 – Fees and Bonds Required proposed amendments (excerpt). 
4. Chapter 69 – Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses proposed amendments.  
5. Resolution from the June 16, 2008 City Council Regular meeting.  

 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File  
 
G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\CC Regular Meeting 11 24 08.doc 



1 
 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 61 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 61 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 

 
CHAPTER 61 – TRANSIENT MERCHANTS TEMPORARY MERCHANT 

BUSINESSES 
 
1. License Required. 
 

 No person shall engage in a temporary business of selling goods, wares or merchandising 
at retail within the City from any lot, premises, building room or structure, including railroad 
cars, without first obtaining a license therefor.  No such license shall be granted except 
upon certification of the Police Chief and City Treasurer. License fees shall be in 
accordance with Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

 
 (Rev. 03-17-03) 
 

2. Temporary Business Defined. 
 

 Every person engaged in the  retail sale and delivery of goods, wares or merchandise, 
shall be deemed to be engaged in carrying on a temporary business unless his business 
establishment shall have been assessed for taxation in the City during the current year. 

 
7.63 Indebtedness to the City. 
 

 No license shall be granted to any person owing any personal property taxes or other 
indebtedness to the City, or who contemplates using any personal property on which 
personal property taxes are owing, in the operation of such business. 

 
7.65 Exemption. 

 Persons conducting a business licensed under another provision of this Code shall be 
exempt from the requirements of this Chapter. 

 
1. Definitions 

 
The following definitions shall apply to this Chapter: 

 

 Applicant means a person that submits an application for a Temporary 
Merchant Business License. 



2 
 

 

 Christmas Tree Sales means the retail sale of real Christmas trees. 
 

 Lot means a parcel of land occupied, or intended to be occupied, by a 
main building or a group of such buildings and accessory buildings, or 
utilized for the principal use and uses accessory thereto, together with 
such open spaces as are required under the provisions of Chapter 39. A 
lot may or may not be specifically designated as such on public records. 

 

 Mobile windshield repair means a temporary outdoor use involving the 
injection, curing and polishing of specially formulated resins into a 
damaged area of an automobile windshield. 

 

 Person means any individual, firm, partnership, limited liability 
company, or corporation. 

 

 Sidewalk Sales means a promotional sales event conducted on the 
sidewalk or other hard surface along the front or side of the particular 
establishment in which such business is normally conducted.   

 

 Temporary means a business that operates for ninety (90) days or less. 
 

 Temporary Indoor Use means a person that engages in selling goods 
and wares or providing a service from any lot or premises indoors on a 
temporary basis.   

 

 Temporary Outdoor Use means a person that engages in selling goods 
and wares or providing a service from any lot or premises outdoors on 
a temporary basis, not including sidewalk sales or Christmas tree 
sales.  

 
2. License Required 

 
 No person shall operate a Temporary Merchant Business in the City of Troy 

without first obtaining a license pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter.  The 
following shall be considered Temporary Merchant Businesses: 

 
a. Temporary Indoor Uses;  

 
b. Temporary Outdoor Uses; 

 
c. Sidewalk Sales; 

 
d. Christmas Tree Sales. 

 
 



3 
 

3. Application for Temporary Merchant Business License 
  

a. An applicant shall submit to the Clerk’s Office a fully completed application, 
on a form furnished by the City Clerk.   
 

b. The application, at a minimum, shall include the following information: 
 

i. The full and complete name and current address of the 
applicant(s).  

 
1. If the applicant is a partnership, the name and address of each 

partner shall be listed, and a copy of any partnership agreement 
shall be attached to the application. 
 

2. If the applicant is a privately held corporation, the name and 
address of each corporate officer, member of the board of 
directors, and stockholder shall be listed, and a copy of the 
articles of incorporation shall be attached to the application. 

 
3. If the applicant is a publicly held corporation, the name and 

address of each corporate officer, member of the board of 
directors and stockholder who owns ten (10) percent or more of 
the corporate stock shall be listed on the application. 

 
4. If the applicant is a limited liability company, the name and 

address of each member, manager, or person with a 
membership interest shall be listed, and the articles of 
organization shall be attached to the application. 

 
ii. The complete name, permanent address, and telephone number of 

the proposed licensed business. 
 

iii. A written statement as to the applicant’s experience in operating 
similar businesses in Troy or other communities. 

 
iv. A concise statement as to the individual applicant’s past 

employment or business practice including identification of other 
communities where the proposed licensed was operated. 

 
v. Information related to the business’s operation, which includes the 

following:  
 

1. Requested length of license; 
 

2. Proposed use; 
 



4 
 

3. The days and hours of operation. 
 

vi. Any other information pertinent to the applicant and the proposed 
business operation. 

 
c. The applicant shall also attach a sketch plan, drawn to scale, which shows 

the following information: 
 

i. The parcel boundaries of the property where the proposed 
business will be located. 
 

ii. The footprint and dimensions of all existing and proposed buildings 
and structures on the subject property. 
 

iii. All curb cuts, drive aisles, and parking spaces on the property. 
 

iv. All sidewalks on the property. 
 

v. The exact location of the proposed Temporary Merchant Business, 
including the exact location of any and all of the following: signage, 
sales, display or service areas, staff and customer parking areas, 
required restroom facility, and other activities associated with the 
proposed Temporary Merchant Business. 

 
4. Licensing 

 
 Temporary Merchant Business Licenses shall also comply with the provisions of 

Chapter 59 of this Code. 
 

5. License Fees 
 
 The fee for a Temporary Merchant Business License application is listed in 

Chapter 60 of this Code. 
 

6. Application Review and Investigation 
 

a. After the City Clerk has received a completed Temporary Merchant Business 
application, said application shall be forwarded to the following City 
Departments for review and investigation: 

 
i. Police;  
 
ii. Fire; 

 
iii. Building Inspection; 

 



5 
 

iv. Planning Department; 
 

v. Risk Management; 
 

vi. Any additional City Department that the City Manager or his/her 
 designee deems necessary. 

 
b. During regular business hours or at another mutually agreeable time, City 

representatives shall be granted access onto the property to complete the 
necessary application investigation. 
 

c. The City Clerk shall be responsible for determining whether the application 
meets the standards for approval of this ordinance. 
 

7. Standards for Approval 
 
Each Temporary Merchant Business shall meet all of the following Standards for 
Approval: 
 
a. The proposed use is permitted as a principal use within the underlying zoning 

district, as set forth in the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 39 of this 
Code.  The only exceptions are the following: 
 

i. Christmas tree sales within the B-1, B-2 and B-3 Zoning Districts as 
well as locations licensed before 1993. 
 

ii. Mobile windshield repair within the B-2, B-3 and H-S Zoning 
Districts. 

 
b. The applicant has provided written evidence that he or she owns or leases 

the premises at which the applicant will operate, or the applicant has 
permission from the property owner to operate temporarily on the property.  
Any restrictions imposed by the property owner shall be clearly identified. 

 
c. The location of the proposed Temporary Merchant Business does not 

negatively impact public health, safety and welfare, including but not limited to 
traffic flow, pedestrian circulation, and off-street parking.  

 
d. Proposed signage complies with the provisions of Chapter 85 Signs. 

 
e. The applicant shall maintain insurance (demonstrated with a certificate of 

insurance), and shall name the City as an additional insured, for general 
liability insurance coverage in the amount of at least $1,000,000.00.  No 
cancellation or reduction in coverage may occur during the operation of the 
Temporary Merchant Business.   

 



6 
 

f. The Temporary Merchant Business shall be located within 500 feet of a 
restroom that is accessible to employees and customers. 
 

8. Restrictions 
 

a. No license shall be issued to:   
 

i. An applicant whose previous Temporary Merchant Business 
License was revoked by the City of Troy for cause. 

ii. An applicant who does not satisfy the current ordinance 
requirements, even if previously granted a license. 

 
iii. A co-partnership, unless all of the members of such co-partnership 

qualify to obtain a license. 
 

iv. A corporation if any officer, manager or director or a stock owner or 
stockholders owning more than five (5) percent of the stock of such 
corporation would not be eligible to receive a license. 
 

v. An applicant whose business is operated by a manager or agent, 
unless such manager or agent possesses qualifications similar to 
those required of the licensee. 
 

vi. An applicant who has been convicted or found responsible for a 
violation of any federal, state, or local law involving moral turpitude, 
fraud, theft, violence, or controlled substances. 
 

vii. An applicant who does not own the premises for which a license is 
sought or does not have a lease therefore for the full period for 
which the license is issued, or does not have permission to operate 
at the location. 

 
viii. An applicant who is in default to the City.  

 
b. The license shall expire after ninety (90) consecutive days in one calendar year.  

Licenses shall be renewable once per calendar year.  The total operational period 
per license shall not exceed one-hundred eighty (180) days per calendar year. 

 
c. The hours of operation shall be limited to the hours between 9 a.m. and 9 p.m. 

 
d. If the applicant operates a temporary outdoor use, the operation shall be broken 

down and removed entirely from the site every day.  No overnight storage of any 
kind shall be allowed.  This requirement shall not apply to approved Christmas 
Tree Sales or Sidewalk Sales. 

 



7 
 

e. Sidewalk Sales are permitted only within B-1, B-2 and B-3 Zoning Districts.  
Licenses for sidewalk sales shall not be issued more than once during any 
consecutive thirty (30) day period on any individual parcel or within any shopping 
center.  Each permit shall be valid for not more than seventy-two (72) hours.  The 
applicant shall certify to the City Clerk that he/she has notified all other commercial 
establishments within said shopping center at the time the application is submitted.  
Outdoor sales areas shall be designed in accordance  with accessibility 
requirements of the Michigan Building Code.  Outdoor sales areas shall occur and 
shall occupy that portion of the sidewalk that is immediately adjacent to the front of 
the business establishment.  Displays shall not extend beyond said sidewalk either 
into a drive or parking lot or laterally beyond the limits of the establishment to which 
a license has been issued.  
 

9. Display of License 
 
 A Temporary Merchant Business License issued pursuant to this Chapter’s 

provisions shall be displayed in a prominent location visible to customers or 
clients at all times. 

 
10. Bond Required 

 
No license shall be issued until the applicant deposits a five hundred dollar 
($500.00) bond for each lot where the business will be operated.  Each bond 
shall be retained by the Clerk’s Office for a period of not less than ten (10) days 
after the date of expiration of the license.  Said bond shall then be returned to the 
applicant upon its release being approved by the Building Inspector certifying in 
writing that the licensed premises to which said bond was applicable is cleared of 
all left-over equipment, vehicles and debris. This clean up shall occur within ten 
(10) days or City shall cause such clean up to be completed, and shall charge 
costs back to the applicant.  The bond shall be used first to recoup these costs 
and additional amounts required shall be collected in any manner allowed by law.  
In the event that any licensee fails to clear the premises, the Building Inspector 
may cause the premises to be cleared and the cost thereof shall be deducted 
from the bond and the balance, if any, shall be returned to the licensee. 

 
11. Revocation and Suspension of License 

 
 The City Manager, or his or her designee, may immediately revoke or suspend a 

Temporary Merchant Business License if the applicant violates any of this 
Ordinance’s provisions, or for other good cause.  The procedure for the 
suspension and revocation of the license shall be governed by the provisions of 
Chapter 59 of this Code. 

 



8 
 

 
12. Violations and Penalties 

 
a. A violation of any section of this Chapter is a Municipal Civil Infraction subject 

to the provisions of Chapter 100 of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 

b. Each day that a violation continues is a separate Municipal Civil Infraction 
violation.  Sanctions for each violation of said sections shall include a fine of 
not more than $500, costs, damages and injunctive orders as authorized by 
Chapter 100. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on 
_________________. 
 



9 
 

 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk   

 
 
 

G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\Draft Temporary Merchant Ordinance 11 19 08.doc 
 



1 

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3 of the Code of 
the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
1.141(6)  A City of Troy Building Department Inspector shall have authority to issue and 

serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil Infraction notice of 
violation, and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if he/she has reasonable 
cause to believe that the person has committed a violation of any of the following 
provisions of the Troy City Code.  
 
Chapter 2: House Numbering and Street Naming 

 
Chapter 13: Historic Preservation 

 
Chapter 16: Garbage and Rubbish 

 
Chapter 18: City Water Utility 

 
Chapter 19: City Sewer Service 

 
Chapter 20: Water and Sewer Rates 

 
Chapter 39: Zoning  
 
Chapter 47: House Trailers and Trailer Courts 

 
Chapter 48: Litter  
 
Chapter 61: Temporary Merchant Business 
 
Chapter 64: Gasoline Stations 

 
Chapter 67: Dances and Dance Halls 

 
Chapter 68: Amusements and Recreation Places 

 
Chapter 69: Miscellaneous Licensed Businesses 



2 

 
 Chapter 70: Self Service Laundries and Dry Cleaners 

 
 Chapter 71: Auto Wash 

 
 Chapter 73: Drive-In Restaurant 

 
 Chapter 76: Adult Use Businesses Licenses (07-09-07) 
 
 Chapter 77: Smoking Lounges (08-06-07) 
 
 Chapter 79: General Building Regulations 

 
 Chapter 82: Property Maintenance Regulations 
 
 Chapter 82-A: Rental and Dwelling Inspection and Enforcement 

 
 Chapter 82-B: Dangerous Buildings 
 
 Chapter 83: Fences 
 
 Chapter 85: Signs 
 
 Chapter 88: Nuisances 
 
 Chapter 93: Fire Prevention (provisions related to building codes) 
 
 Chapter 97: Coin-Operated Amusement Devices and Arcades 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or 
abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any 
ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this 
penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and 
new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of 
this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 

 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 



3 

Section 5.  Effective Date 
 

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on 
_________________. 

 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 

 
G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\CHAPT003 Draft Amendments.doc 

 

 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  
CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 

 

60.03 Fee Schedule. 
 
Massage Therapist Registration  

Registration Fee $  10.00 

Annual Renewal Fee n/a $ 10.00 

 

 

Temporary Indoor Uses (Chapter 61) 

Per application $  100.00 

Per extension $  100.00 

 

Temporary Outdoor Use (Chapter 61) 

Per application $  100.00 

Per extension $  100.00 

 

Transient Merchant (Chapter 61) – Per week $   50.00 
 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 



Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on  _________________. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    

 
 

 
G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\CHAPT060 Draft Amendments.doc 



 

 1 

 
CITY OF TROY 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 69 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 69 of the Code 
of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 

 
1. Sidewalk Sales. 
 

No person or business shall engage in the outdoor display of goods for sale without first 
obtaining a license therefore.  Such license shall issued by the City Clerk upon approval 
by the Fire and Building Departments. 

 (Rev. 06-16-97) 
 
2. Restrictions. 
 

Sidewalk Sales may be permitted only within B-1, B-2 and B-3 Zoning Districts. No 
license for sidewalk sales shall be granted except upon certification of the Building 
Inspector and Fire Chief.  No licenses for sidewalk sales shall be issued more than once 
during any consecutive 30 day period within any shopping center or within 700 feet of any 
other commercial establishment during said 30 days, and each permit shall be valid for 
not more than 72 hours. The applicant shall certify to the City Clerk that he has notified all 
other commercial establishments within said shopping center of said 700 foot distance at 
the time application for the sidewalk sale is submitted.  Outdoor sales shall not block or 
obstruct more than one-half (l/2) the width of the sidewalk on which such sales shall occur 
and shall occupy that portion of the sidewalk (l/2 width) which is immediately adjacent to 
the front of the business establishment. Displays shall not extend beyond said sidewalk 
either into a drive or parking lot or laterally beyond the limits of the establishment to which 
a license has been issued. License fees shall be in accordance with Chapter 60, Fees 
and Bonds of the City of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

 
 (Rev. 03-17-03) 
 
4. Christmas Tree Sales. 
 

No person shall engage in the business of selling Christmas trees at retail or operate or 
maintain a building or yard where Christmas trees are sold at retail without first obtaining 
a license.  No license shall be granted except upon certification of the Building Inspector 
and Fire Chief.  Applications for license shall be made in accordance with Chapter 59 of 
this Code and the fee shall be as prescribed in Chapter 60 of this Code. Christmas tree 
sales may be permitted within B-1, B-2 and B-3 Zoning Districts, as well as at locations 
licensed for 1993. 



 

 2 

 
  (Rev. 08-08-94) 
 
 5. Cash Deposits. 
 

No license for the retail sale of Christmas trees shall be granted until the applicant 
shall make a clean-up deposit for each retail sales lot to be operated, said deposit 
to be retained by the City for a period of not less than ten (10) days after Christmas 
of the year in which the license was granted.  Said deposit shall then be returned 
to the applicant upon its release being approved by the Building Inspector 
certifying in writing that the licensed premises to which said deposit was applicable 
have, within ten (10) days after Christmas of the year for which the license was 
granted, been cleared of all left-over trees, branches, paper, waste and debris.  In 
the event that any licensee shall fail to so clear the premises, the Building 
Inspector may cause the premises to be cleared and the cost thereof shall be 
deducted from the deposit and the balance, if any, shall be returned to the 
licensee. 

 
  (Rev. 08-26-91) 
 

81. Registration of Dealers in Precious Metal, Gems and Items. 
 

81.1 Definitions as used in this section: 
 

 (a) "Agent or employee" means a person who, for compensation or valuable 
 consideration is employed either directly or indirectly by a dealer. 

 
 (b) "Dealer" means any person, corporation, partnership, or association, which, 

 in whole or in part, engages in the ordinary course of repeated and 
 recurrent transactions of buying or receiving precious items from the public 
 within this state. 

 
 (c) "Gold" means elemental gold having an atomic weight of 196.967 and the 

 chemical element symbol of Au, whether found by itself or in combination 
 with its alloys or any other metal. 

 
 (d) "Jewelry" means an ornamental item made of a material that includes a 

 precious gem. 
 
   (e) "Local police agency" means the police agency of the City of Troy. 
 

 (f) "Platinum" means elemental platinum having an atomic weight of 195.09 
 and the chemical element symbol of Pt, whether found by itself or in 
 combination with its  alloys or any other metal. 

 
 (g) "Precious gem" means a diamond, alexandrite, ruby, sapphire, opal, 

 amethyst, emerald, aquamarine, morganite, garnet, jadeite, topaz, 
 tourmaline, or pearl. 

 
 (h) "Precious item" means jewelry, a precious gem, or an item containing gold, 



 

 3 

silver,  or platinum.  Precious item does not include the following: 
 

 (i) Coins, commemorative medals, and tokens struck by, or in behalf of, 
 a government or private mint. 

 
   (ii) Bullion bars and discs of the type traded by banks and commodity  

   exchanges. 
 

 (iii) Items at the time they are purchased directly from a dealer registered 
 under this act, a manufacturer, or a wholesaler who purchased them 
 directly from a manufacturer. 

 
   (iv) Industrial machinery or equipment. 

 
 (v) An item being returned to or exchanged at the dealer where the item 

 was purchased and which is accompanied by a valid sales receipt. 
 

 (vi) An item which is received for alteration, redesign, or repair in a 
 manner that does not substantially change its use and returned 
 directly to the customer. 

 
 (vii) An item which does not have a jeweler's identifying mark or a serial 

 mark and which the dealer purchases for less than $5.00. 
 

 (viii) Scrap metal which contains incidental traces of gold, silver, or 
 platinum which are recoverable as a by-product. 

 
 (ix) Jewelry which a customer trades for other jewelry having a greater 

 value, and which difference in value is paid by the customer. 
 

(i) "Silver" means elemental silver having an atomic weight of 107.869 and the 
chemical element symbol of Ag, whether found by itself or in combination with its 
alloys or any other metal. 

 
  (Rev. 08-24-81) 
 
81.2 Administration of Ordinance. 
 

The Chief of Police for the City of Troy or his or her designee shall be responsible for 
reviewing all applications for a certificate of registration. 

 
81.3 Application by a Dealer 
 
 (a) A dealer who applies for a certificate of registration shall submit the following 

information on the form provided: 
 

(i) His or her name, home address, phone number, driver's license number, 
date of birth, and right thumb print (print to be affixed to the application by 
the police department).  Applications for more than one establishment shall 
be made on separate application forms. 



 

 4 

 
  (ii) The name, address, telephone number, and hours of the dealer's business. 

 If the dealer's business is a corporation, an updated copy of the Articles of 
Incorporation or a valid certified copy of the assumed name certificate from 
the Clerk of Oakland County must be provided. 

 
  (iii) The name, address, date of birth and right thumb print of each employee or 

agent of the dealer. 
 
 (b) The dealer shall also submit a signed statement indicating that he or she has read 

and understands the provisions of Act No. 95 of the Public Acts of 1981, as 
provided to him or her  by the Police Department, and further that said dealer has 
informed his or her agents or employees, and will immediately inform all new 
agents or employees, as to the provisions of said Public Act 95 of 1981.  

 
 (c) The dealer shall submit a signed statement that neither he or she, nor any of his or 

her agents or employees has been convicted of a felony under Act No. 95 of the 
Public Acts of 1981, or under section 535 of Act No. 328 of the Public Acts of 
1931, as amended, within the five year period preceding the date of the 
application, or convicted of a misdemeanor under said laws within a one year 
period preceding the date of this application. 

 
(d) The dealer shall submit proof of proper zoning or other special exception permits 

as required by the Zoning Board of Appeals and Planning Commission of the City 
of Troy. 

 
 (e) The dealer shall pay a fee for each licensed establishment in the City of Troy. 

License fees shall be in accordance with Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds of the City 
of Troy Code of Ordinances. 

   
 (Rev. 8-24-81) 

 
 

Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or 
abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any 
ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this 
penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and 
new prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of 
this ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 

 
 Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
 Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 



 

 5 

invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon publication, 
whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at a 
regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on  
_________________. 
 
 
______________________________ 
Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    

 

 

 

 
G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\CHAPT069 Draft Amendments.doc 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  June 16, 2008 

 

E-10 Mobile Windshield Repair 
 

Vote on Resolution to Take No Action 
 
Resolution #2008-06-192 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Schilling  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council received a proposal for preparing a procedure to permit mobile 
windshield repair;  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council referred the item to the Planning Commission for evaluation; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended that City Council take no action on this 
item; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby takes NO ACTION on this 
item. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Schilling, Fleming  
No: Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Howrylak 
Absent: Broomfield  
 

MOTION FAILED  

 

Vote on Resolution to Develop Licensing Procedure 

 
Resolution #2008-06-193 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council received a proposal for preparing a procedure to permit mobile 
windshield repair; 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council referred the item to the Planning Commission for evaluation; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommended that City Council take no action on this 
item; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Management 
to investigate the possibility of expanding Chapter 61 - Transient Merchant or a similar means 
to include a mobile service vehicle. 

 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin  
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
G:\Transient Merchant Ordinance\CC Minutes 06 16 08.doc 



campbellld
Text Box
E-07



















CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, November 10, 2008, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Pro Tem Howrylak called the Meeting to order at 7:33 PM. 
 
Pastor Bill DesRochers of Calvary Chapel gave the Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag was given.  

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling (Absent) 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 

 

Resolution to Excuse Mayor Louise Schilling  
 
Resolution #2008-11-324 
Moved by Broomfield   
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Louise Schilling 
at the Regular City Council and Study Session meetings of November 10, 2008 due to illness. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin  
No: None  
Absent: Schilling  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations: 
a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program (September), 

Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director presented a check in the amount of 
$520.00 to Michael Silverstein, President and Rich Maziasz, Treasurer for Troy 
Foundation for Educational Excellence. 

b) On behalf of the City of Troy, Mayor Pro Tem Howrylak presented a proclamation to 
Pam Brady in recognition of America Recycles 2008.  

c) Mayor Pro Tem Howrylak presented the MML Education Award to Council Member Mary 
Kerwin. 

 

CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2009 Application 
The Mayor Pro Tem opened the Public Hearing for public comment. 
The Mayor Pro Tem closed the Public Hearing after receiving no comment from the public. 
 
Resolution #2008-11-325 
Moved by Beltramini   
Seconded by Kerwin  
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County is preparing an Annual Action Plan to meet application 
requirements for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, and other 
Community Planning and Development (CPD) programs; 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has requested CDBG-eligible projects from participating 
communities for inclusion in the Action Plan; 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has duly advertised and conducted a public hearing on November 
10, 2008 for the purpose of receiving public comments regarding the proposed use of PY 2009 
Community Development Block Grant funds (CDBG) in the approximate amount of 
$158,321.00; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy found that the following projects meet the federal objectives of the 
CDBG program and are prioritized by the community as high priority need: 
 

Account Number Project Name Amount 
172170-730744  Flood Drain Improvements  $84,811.00 
172160-732170 Public Services (Yard Services) $71,010.00 
172140-730789 General Program Administration $2,500.00 

  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City of 
Troy CDBG application be submitted to Oakland County for inclusion in Oakland County’s 
Annual Action Plan to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and hereby 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute all documents, agreements, or contracts 
which result from this application to Oakland County. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Beltramini  
No: None  
Absent: Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 No Postponed Items 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 3 - 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Marvin Reinhardt 

 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 

E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 

Development Authority (No action taken) b) City Council Appointments: Advisory 

Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Cable Advisory Committee; Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board; and Troy Daze Committee 

 

(a) Mayoral Appointments – No Action Taken 
 
Resolution  
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Downtown Development Authority  
Appointed by Mayor (13-Regular) 4-Year Term 
 
Laurence G. Keisling Term Expires 09/30/2012 

 

(b) City Council Appointments  
 
Resolution #2008-11-326 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
 
Angela Done Term Expires 11/01/2011 

 

Cable Advisory Committee  
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 

 
Lisa Martinico Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 

Ethnic Issues Advisory Board  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) 2 & 3 Year Terms  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 4 - 

Aries Tao - Student Term Expires 07/01/2009 

 

Troy Daze Committee  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Jim Hattan Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 
Alison Miller Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 
Robert S. Preston Term Expires 11/30/2011 

 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: None  
Absent: Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral 

Nominations: None (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee for Persons 

with Disabilities and Parks & Recreation Board  

 

(a) Mayoral Nominations – None  
 

(b) City Council Nominations  
 
Resolution #2008-11-327 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Beltramini  

 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
 
Jeffrey Stewart Term Expires 11/01/2011 

  

Derek Mackie - Alternate Term Expires 11/01/2009 

 

Parks & Recreation Board  
(7-Regular) 3-Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) 1-Year Term; (1-Troy Daze Committee) 1-Year 
Term; (1-Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens) 1-Year Term 
 
Jeffrey Stewart                *Troy Daze Rep. Term Expires 11/30/2009 

*Rec’d recommendation from Troy Daze Committee  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 5 - 

Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: None  
Absent: Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-3 Acceptance of Kresge Foundation’s Detroit Program: Arts and Culture General 

Support Grant of $40,000.00 
 
Resolution #2008-11-328 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy Historical Museum to 
receive the Kresge Foundation’s Detroit Program: Arts and Culture General Support Grant, for 
$40,000.00, to be distributed over a two-year period from July 1, 2008—June 30, 2010. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
No: None  
Absent: Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

E-4 Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive Programs 
 

a)  Voluntary Separation Defined Contribution (DC) to Defined Benefit (DB) Program 

for Retirement 
 
Resolution #2008-11-329 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012;  
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness;  
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire;  
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 13 Troy Command Officer Association (TCOA) employees will meet 
the eligibility criteria for retirement from City employment as of December 31, 2008; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, The proposed Voluntary Separation Defined Contribution (DC) to Defined Benefit 
(DB) Program for Retirement has been reviewed and is recommended by City management as 
a mechanism to reduce workforce levels, create position vacancies, and provide City 
management with the opportunity to reduce costs, reorganize and restructure operations; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Voluntary Separation DC to DB Program for Retirement to be 
offered to TCOA DC bargaining unit retirement system members who will be eligible to retire on 
or before December 31, 2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Voluntary Separation DC to DB Program for 
Retirement may be offered during a 45-day window of opportunity beginning November 15, 
2008 and ending December 30, 2008; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Voluntary Separation DC to DB Program for 
Retirement shall be obtained from the funds contained in the members’ DC accounts; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That interested employees meeting eligibility requirements must 
accept the Voluntary Separation DC to DB Program for Retirement offer and written application 
to retire must be filed with the City on or before December 30, 2008. In no event will the 
retirement date be later than December 31, 2008; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to collectively bargain participation in the Voluntary Separation DC to DB Program for 
Retirement with the TCOA union who represent members of the Defined Contribution Plan. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak  
No: Kerwin 
Absent: Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED  
 

b) Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  

 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2009, 2010 and 2011;  
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 7 - 

WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 
WHEREAS, Approximately 70 City of Troy employees will meet the eligibility criteria for a direct 
retirement and approximately 24 City of Troy employees meet the early retirement eligibility 
criteria from City employment as of December 31, 2008; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement has been 
reviewed and is recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce 
levels, create position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce 
costs, reorganize and restructure operations; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement to be 
offered to non-represented retirement system members, represented retirement system 
members whose collective bargaining agreement provides for a ―me, too‖ and to all other 
collective bargaining unit members who will be eligible to retire on or before December 31, 
2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement 
may be offered during a 60-day window of opportunity beginning November 1, 2008 and ending 
December 30, 2008, with said incentive being a lump sum payment of one week of base salary 
plus service increment, determined as of December 31, 2008 for each full year of retirement 
service as of December 31, 2008; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for 
Retirement shall be obtained from surplus funds available in the existing City of Troy 
Employees’ Retirement System retirement account; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees on the Defined Benefit and Defined 
Contribution retirement plans desiring to participate in the Voluntary Separation Incentive 
Program for Retirement must file written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of 
their requested retirement date which shall be no later than December 31, 2008 with the 
Employees’ Retirement System on the appropriate form, but in no event shall the application 
form be filed later than November 30, 2008; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive 
pay shall not be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the 
Defined Benefit Plan. Contributions will be made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan 
by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement with 
represented Employees’ Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 8 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2008-11-330 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution for Voluntary Separation 
Incentive Program for Retirement by: 
 

STRIKING ―60-day‖ and INSERTING ―61-day‖ in the first BE IT FURTHER 
RESOLVED; and 

 

STRIKING ―November 1, 2008‖ and INSERTING ―December 1, 2008‖ in 
the first BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED; and 
 

STRIKING ―December 30, 2008‖ and INSERTING ―January 30, 2009‖ in 
the first BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED; and 
 

STRIKING ―December 31, 2008‖ and INSERTING ―February 28, 2009‖ in 
the third BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED; and 
 

STRIKING ―November 30, 2008‖ and INSERTING ―January 30, 2009‖ in 
the third BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED. 

 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin  
No: None 
Absent: Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

 

Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2008-11-331 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing rising unemployment and reductions in the taxable value of 
real estate are adversely affecting the City of Troy’s operating revenues;  
 
WHEREAS, Michigan’s continuing economic distress has led City management to project 
significant budget short-falls for fiscal years 2009, 2010 and 2011;  
 
WHEREAS, Economic uncertainty demands that the City of Troy government reduce 
operational expenses while improving efficiency and effectiveness; 
 
WHEREAS, One recognized means of reducing operational expenses while simultaneously 
creating opportunities for reorganization and restructuring is to provide a voluntary separation 
incentive for City employees to retire; 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 9 - 

WHEREAS, Approximately 70 City of Troy employees will meet the eligibility criteria for a direct 
retirement and approximately 24 City of Troy employees meet the early retirement eligibility 
criteria from City employment as of December 31, 2008; and  
 
WHEREAS, The proposed Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement has been 
reviewed and is recommended by City management as a mechanism to reduce workforce 
levels, create position vacancies, and provide City management with the opportunity to reduce 
costs, reorganize and restructure operations; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES 
implementation of the following Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement to be 
offered to non-represented retirement system members, represented retirement system 
members whose collective bargaining agreement provides for a ―me, too‖ and to all other 
collective bargaining unit members who will be eligible to retire on or before December 31, 
2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement 
may be offered during a 61-day window of opportunity beginning December 1, 2008 and ending 
January 30, 2009, with said incentive being a lump sum payment of one week of base salary 
plus service increment, determined as of December 31, 2008 for each full year of retirement 
service as of December 31, 2008; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That funding for the Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for 
Retirement shall be obtained from surplus funds available in the existing City of Troy 
Employees’ Retirement System retirement account; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That employees on the Defined Benefit and Defined 
Contribution retirement plans desiring to participate in the Voluntary Separation Incentive 
Program for Retirement must file written application to retire no less than 30 days in advance of 
their requested retirement date which shall be no later than February 28, 2009 with the 
Employees’ Retirement System on the appropriate form, but in no event shall the application 
form be filed later than January 30, 2009; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the lump sum Voluntary Separation Retirement Incentive 
pay shall not be included in the final average compensation (FAC) for employees on the 
Defined Benefit Plan. Contributions will be made to an employee’s Defined Contribution Plan 
by the City of Troy and the employee as a result of this lump sum payment; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Management 
to negotiate participation in the Voluntary Separation Incentive Program for Retirement with 
represented Employees’ Retirement System members in collective bargaining proceedings. 
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak, Kerwin  
Absent: Schilling 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 10 - 

E-5 2009 City Council Meetings 
 
Resolution #2008-11-332 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Regular meetings in 2009 according to the 
following schedule at 7:30 PM: 
 

Monday, January 5 & 26 
Monday, February 2 & 16  
Monday, March 2, 23 & 30 
Monday, April 6 & 20  
Monday, May 11 & 18 
Monday, June 1 & 15 
Monday, July 6 & 20 
Monday, August 3, 17 & 31 
Monday, September 14 & 28 
Monday, October 5 & 19 
Monday, November 9 & 23 
Monday, December 7 & 21 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Special Study sessions for the purpose of 
budget discussions in 2009 according to the following schedule at 7:30 PM: 

 
Monday, April 27 
Monday, May 4 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Regular Liquor Violation Hearing meetings 
in 2009 according to the following schedule at 7:30 PM: 
 

Wednesday, February 11 
Wednesday, February 18 

 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD a mid-winter retreat in January or February, 
2009 at a date, time and place to be determined; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council MAY SCHEDULE other Special 
Meetings as needed. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Beltramini, Broomfield  
No: None 
Absent: Schilling  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 11 - 

E-6 Donation of the Old Stone School Property to the City of Troy – Section 6, Sidwell 

#88-20-06-101-001 
 
Resolution #2008-11-333 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to donate the Old 
Stone School property by Finn and Mary Louise Bergishagen to the City of Troy, having Sidwell 
#88-20-06-101-001; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and 
City Clerk to sign the Donation Agreement on behalf of the City of Troy; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
reimbursement of expenses to the donors as stated in the Agreement in an amount not to 
exceed $9,950.00; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete the transfer 
of ownership not to exceed $500.00; and  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed conveying title of the property to the City with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher  
No: None 
Absent: Schilling  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  
 

F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 

presented with the exception of Item F-13, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (F) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming   
No: None 
Absent: Schilling  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 12 - 

F-3 City of Troy Proclamation: 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-3 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 
a)  America Recycles 2008 
  
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Troy Hall of Justice HVAC 

Upgrade of Major Mechanical Systems      
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-4a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide HVAC System 
Upgrades for the Troy Hall of Justice including Alternate #1, the gun range, to the highest rated 
bidder, Heights Heating & Cooling, Inc. of Auburn Hills, MI, as a result of a best value process 
at prices contained on the tabulation opened October 1, 2008, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and to MCMI of Sterling Heights, MI for the 
temperature controls for a combined total project cost of $1,385,689.00, as detailed in 
Appendix I; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates, bonds, and 
all other specified requirements. 
 

F-5 Approval of Purchase Agreement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to 

Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #59 – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-044 – ALIF 

Corporation 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-5 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between ALIF Corporation, owner of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-401-
044, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road Improvements, 
Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $1,400.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 13 - 

F-6 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility 

Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 

99.203.5 – Parcel #28 – Sidwell #88-20-22-277-026 – Dennis E. Bushon and Mary 

Josephine Bushon 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-6 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Dennis E. Bushon and Mary Josephine Bushon, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-22-277-026, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $38,100.00 plus closing 
costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $2,700.00 from Dennis E. Bushon and Mary Josephine 
Bushon, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-277-026; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-7 Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Rochester Road 

Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #1 – Sidwell #88-

20-23-303-001 – Rochester Development Group, LLC 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-7 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public Utility Easement 
in the amount of $15,000.00 from Rochester Development Group, LLC, owner of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-23-303-001; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 

which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-8 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility 

Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 

99.203.5 – Parcel #45 – Sidwell #88-20-22-226-043 – Gordon P. Meldrum and Carol 

A. Meldrum 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-8 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Gordon P. Meldrum and Carol A. Meldrum, owners of property 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 14 - 

having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-043, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for 
Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $15,100.00, plus closing 
costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $4,000.00 from Gordon P. Meldrum and Carol A. Meldrum, 
owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-22-226-043; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-9 Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility 

Easement – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 

99.203.5 – Parcel #27 – Sidwell #88-20-22-401-018 – Trombly Investment Company 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-9 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Trombly Investment Company, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-22-401-018, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for Rochester Road 
Improvements, Torpey to Barclay in the amount of $57,700.00, plus closing costs; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Real Estate 
and Development Department to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase 
according to the agreement; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Public 
Utility Easement in the amount of $3,700.00 from Trombly Investment Company, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-22-401-018; and 
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to record 
the Warranty Deed and Permanent Public Utility Easement with the Oakland County Register 

of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

F-10 Smith Middle School to Temporarily Waive Parking Restrictions 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-10 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES the no parking restrictions on Donaldson 
from Square Lake to Cotswald on November 12 and 13, 2008, between the hours of 12:30 PM 
and 3:30 PM, and 6:30 PM and 9:30 PM, March 6, 2009, between the hours of 6:30 PM and 
8:30 PM, March 12, 2009, between the hours of 12:30 PM and 3:30 PM, and 6:30 PM and 9:30 
PM, and June 16, 2009, between the hours of 9:00 AM and 12:00 Noon. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 15 - 

F-11 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-11 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request that the City transfer 
Municipal Credit funds in the amount of $76,084.00 and Community Credit funds in the amount 
of $110,732.00 to Troy Medi-Go Plus for the operation of transportation service for senior 

citizens and persons with disabilities, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 

execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

F-12 Approval of 2008 Request to Waive Recapture Form 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-12 
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28

th
);  

 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing 
communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years to help comply with this 
regulation;  
WHEREAS, All unobligated 2006 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2008; 
 
WHEREAS, Troy may protect unobligated 2006 funds from recapture for one additional year by 
requesting a waiver; and  
 
WHEREAS, A separate Waiver request form must be submitted for each 2006 line item to the 
Manager of the Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Division no later than 
Friday, December 15, 2008; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS to waive 
recapture of 2006 CDBG funds as follows: 
 

Account Number Project Name Amount 
731815 Special Assessment $93,816.00 
732170 Yard Services $35,023.05  

 

F-14 Contract Amendment: Extended Warranty In-Car Video System 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-14 
 
WHEREAS, On October 16, 2006, a contract to purchase a digital in-car video system 
including hardware, software, installation and training from International Police Technologies 
was approved for an estimated total cost of $291,000.00, (Resolution #2006-10-392-F2);  
 
WHEREAS, On December 17, 2007, a contract to purchase an additional twelve (12) in-car 
digital video cameras including hardware and software from International Police Technologies 
was approved for an estimated total cost of $67,068.00 (Resolution #2007-12-359-E2); and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 16 - 

WHEREAS, The units are either out of warranty or will be out of warranty in April 2009, and 
require an extended warranty to cover all costs for any repairs;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the contract to 
purchase the extended warranty program for the in-car digital cameras directly from the 
manufacturer, International Police Technologies at an estimated total cost of $68,900.00 to be 
paid over five years.  
 

F-15 Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization Status from Lawrence Feld, Secretary of 

the Benevolent Association of AFSCME – Local 574 
 
Resolution #2008-11-334-F-15 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from The Benevolent 
Association of AFSCME Local 574, asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization 
operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license. 
 

F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Resolution #2008-11-335  
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of October 20, 2008 as corrected. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak   
No: None 
Absent: Schilling  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 

F-13 Private Agreement for Tim Horton’s – Project No. 08.915.3 
 
Resolution #2008-11-336 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Kerwin  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Troy Rochester 
Properties, L.L.C., for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer manhole, concrete right turn 
lane, approach, and sidewalk on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and hereby 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 

ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin    



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 17 - 

No: None 
Absent: Schilling  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Scheduled 
      

G-2 Memorandums:  
a) Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance – November 24, 2008  

Noted and Filed 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 

Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1 Council Comments:  
 
Council Member Kerwin is pleased to receive grand opening invitations due to the rebirth of 
some of former local businesses into new businesses. 
 
Council Member Beltramini referred to Linda Rivetto’s great assessment of the Old Stone 
School and believes that the city would also be well served to offer volunteer opportunities to 
residents in developing parks and cultural institutions. Council Member Beltramini asked staff to 
research the possibilities of formulating a policy that would permit this type of volunteerism. 
 
Council Member Beltramini congratulated the Clerk and her staff in successfully processing the 
large number of absentee ballots and precinct voters on Election Day. 
 
Council Member Beltramini reported that the dies she placed before Council Members are from 
Zeeland, Michigan’s presentation for the Creative Community Awards. She explained that she 
also used the die when she spoke with her new Michigan Municipal League Board. She said 
the board talked about the current economic difficulties in Michigan but added that they also 
agreed that there is a lot of things right with Michigan. She believes that there is also more that 
is right in Troy than is wrong. She noted that there are no negative phrases on the die and she 
believes these are the types of phrases that everyone needs to use when talking about Troy. 
Council Member Beltramini believes that criticism can be made in a helpful manner and that it 
is the positive stories that need to be told. Council Member Beltramini is bringing this to 
everyone as a reminder that solutions to problems are first tried, tested and perfected in local 
communities. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Howrylak concurred with Council Member Beltramini and added that despite 
the philosophical differences on Council that when the chips are down, Council members work 
together. He added that Council Member Beltramini’s desire to provide a streamlined 
mechanism for volunteer opportunities to Troy residents should be a high priority because Troy 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 18 - 

has a lot of residents that could invest in the development of the large amount of undeveloped 
land during a time when funding is limited. 

  

REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Cable Advisory Committee/Final – April 17, 2008 
b) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – July 15, 2008 
c) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – August 26, 2008 
d) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – September 2, 2008  
e) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – September 3, 2008  
f) Library Advisory Board/Final – September 11, 2008  
g) Special Joint Meeting Birmingham Planning Board and Troy Planning Commission – 

September 22, 2008 
h) Youth Council/Final – September 24, 2008  
i) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – October 1, 2008  
j) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – October 14, 2008  
k) Planning Commission/Draft – October 14, 2008  
l) Planning Commission/Final – October 14, 2008  
m) Cable Advisory Committee/Draft – October 16, 2008 
n) Youth Council/Draft – October 22, 2008  

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Troy Historical Museum Annual Report 2007-2008  
b) Troy Public Library Annual Report 2007-2008 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Chief Craft from Michael Farrug Commending the Professionalism of Officer 

Christina Giovannoni  
b) Letter of Thanks to Troy Police Department from Dale Dawkins Regarding the Support 

of the 2008 Woodward Dream Cruise  
c) Letter to Jennifer Lawson from SEMCOG Regarding Participation with the Low Impact 

Development (LID) Manual  
d) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft and Staff for Participation in the CREST Radiation 

Exercise  
e) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Gary Mayer from Terry Nerbonne Regarding the 

Assistance with the Ferris State University Criminal Justice Summer 2008 Internship 
Program  

f) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from the Royal Oak Police Department Regarding the 
Support of the 2008 Woodward Dream Cruise  

g) Letter of Thanks to Officers Rockafellow and Raymer from Denise Geromette  
Noted and Filed 

 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 10, 2008 

 

- 19 - 

J-5  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding the City of Troy 

Master Plan 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-6  Troy Youth Assistance Board Meeting Final Minutes – September 18, 2008 
Noted and Filed 

 

J-7 Communication from City Engineer Steve Vandette Regarding Inter-Modal Transit 

Facility Project Scope – Concept and Preliminary Engineering Design Services to 

Construction   
Noted and Filed 

 

J-8  Unofficial Results – November 4, 2008 Election 
Noted and Filed 

 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:30 PM. 
 

The meeting RECONVENED at 9:44 PM. 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 

K-1 Preliminary Discussion of the 2009/10 Budget 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 No Closed Session Requested 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:45 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  November 11, 2008 

 

- 1 - 

A Special Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Tuesday, November 11, 2008, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 10:04 AM. 

ROLL CALL  

 Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher (Arrived 10:14 AM) 
Wade Fleming  
Mayor Pro Tem Martin Howrylak (Absent) 
Mary Kerwin 

DISCUSSION ITEM: 

1. Meeting with Congressman-Elect Gary Peters to discuss City Matters of Mutual 

Interest and Assistance 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 

ADJOURNMENT: 

The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:40 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

pallottaba
Text Box
F-02



 

 
November 10, 2008 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:   Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting  
    Specifications – Breathing Air Compressor 

Background 

 On October 24, 2008, bids were received and opened for ITB-COT 08-35 to provide a Breathing 
Air Compressor for the Fire Department.   

 106 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with five (5) bid responses received, as well as 
two statements of no bid. 

 The bids were examined and compared to the bid specifications.  

 Breathing Air Systems was the overall low bidder but could not be considered for award, as the 
carbon monoxide detection system specified was not included in the bid price.  

 

Financial Considerations 

 Funds are budgeted in the Fire Department’s General Equipment Capital Account # 
401.336.337.7978.010 

 

Legal Considerations 

 ITB-COT 08-35 to furnish and install a breathing air compressor at Fire Station #1 was 
competitively bid as required by Chapter 7 of the City Code. 

 

Policy Considerations 

 The purchase of this air compressor supports the volunteer firefighters who help to make this a 
safe community. (Outcome Statement 1) 

 Awarding this bid meets Council’s ongoing goal of maintaining the safety and effectiveness of the 
firefighters. (Outcome Statement 1) 

 

Options 

 City management recommends awarding a contract to purchase and install the Airetex W4-7-408-
FP6M air compressor from Southeast Equipment, Inc. of Troy, MI, for an estimated total cost of 
$21,973.80. 

 
 
Prepared by Keith Lenderman, Assistant Fire Chief 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 08-35
Opening Date -- 10/24/08 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 11/10/08 sl BREATHING AIR COMPRESSOR

VENDOR NAME: ** Southeast Air Source One Douglass West Shore
Equipment, Inc. Inc Safety Systems LLC Fire, Inc.

Check # 0102236 0045368 837234961 143 8058 843
Check Amount $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

PROPOSAL: Furnish & Install One (1) Breathing Air Compressor for the Troy Fire Department- Station #1

QTY   DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1 ea Furnish & Install One Air Compressor
at Station #1 in accordance with the revised
Specifications.
COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 21,973.80$       22,997.50$       24,000.00$         38,132.00$        

Quoting on Model: W4-7-408-FP6M BAM06H HP6000-NA6-E3 Raptor RSA10F-3
Manufactured By: Airetex MAKO Hypres Eagle 

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE:  Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

INSURANCE:   Can Meet XX XX XX XX
  Cannot Meet

TERMS: Net 10 Net 20 days Net 30 days Net 30
1 yr- Parts & Labor 2 years - pump

WARRANTY: 1 Year 2nd yr-Defect parts only 1 year - System 1 year

DELIVERY DATE: 45 Days 4 - 6 Wks ARO 30 Days 30 Days

EXCEPTIONS: Programable logic Attached to Bid None Includes a 50'
Control with LCD Touch "Bid integrated hose reel
Screen add $800.00 Clarifications"

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:      Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

ADDENDUM #1     Y or N Yes No Yes Yes

DMS:
Breathing Air Systems ($21,527.10) Reason: No carbon monoxide detection system as specified.

No Bids:
 Argus Hazco ** DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
 Brehob Corporation

ATTEST:
Diane Fisher
William Nelson _____________________________
Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPB

Purchasing Director
G:ITB-COT 08-35 Breathing Air Compressor



  
 
  November 11, 2008 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Options – Vehicle Wash Services 
 
Background 
 On May 14, 2007, Troy City Council awarded contracts to furnish two (2) year requirements of Vehicle 

Wash Services with an option to renew for an additional two (2) years to all four bidders, as a result of a 
best value process to expire 12/31/2008. {Resolution #2007-05-142-E4a} 

 The recommendation to award a two (2) year contract to all four (4) facilities gave greater accessibility to 
wash sites for employees throughout the City, which reduced travel time and fuel. (See Car Wash 
Locations) 

 Renewal notices were faxed to all four vehicle wash facilities.  Two of the four vendors have agreed to 
renew their contracts under the same pricing, terms and conditions for an additional two years.  In addition, 
Jax Kar Wash has offered to renew their current pricing for exterior washes only.  As a result, the City no 
longer has a provider for interior/exterior wash services. 

 Approximate number of interior/exterior washes per year is expected to drop from 450 due to the interior 
complexity of police vehicles. 

 With the reduced number of interior\exterior washes down from 450 to 111 per year, interior\exterior 
washes will be handled on a vehicle by vehicle basis.   

 A market survey indicated two vendors chose not to renew their current contracts at the original bid prices 
due to rising operating costs and/or lack of volume.   

Financial Considerations 
 Funds for this service are available in Fleet Maintenance – Equipment Operation and Maintenance 

Account, Outside Maintenance #5507802150 
 
Legal Considerations  
  ITB-COT 06-54, to furnish two-year requirements of Vehicle Wash Services was competitively bid and 

vendors were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in providing services for the City’s 
fleet vehicles, in accordance with Chapter 7 of the City Code. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 It is anticipated that multiple awards will allow employees to keep their vehicles clean, reflecting a positive 

image of the City to the general public and increase the longevity of the vehicles. (Outcome Statement 2) 
 
Options 
 City management recommends renewing contracts for two (2) additional years to provide for exterior 

washes only (car/mid size SUV, truck/van) to the following local vehicle wash facilities: Tunnel O’Suds, Jax 
Kar Wash and Pro Enterprises, Inc under the same prices, terms and conditions expiring 12/31/2010.  
 

SPL S: Murphy’s review/Agenda 11.24.08 –SPR3.Exercise renewal option–Vehicle Wash Services  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04b











CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final May 14, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of April 16, 2007; 
the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Special City Council Meeting of April 23, 2007; the Minutes of the 
7:30 PM Special Meeting of April 30, 2007; and the Minutes of the 10:02 PM Special Meeting of 
April 30, 2007 be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Approval of City of Troy Proclamations:   
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-3 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) National Transportation Week – May 13-19, 2007 
b) Welcome Home Proclamation – Sergeant Michael Ullmann  
c) Welcome Home Proclamation – Lance Corporal Thomas Stenger  
d) Welcome Home Proclamation – Lance Corporal Cameron Mattox 
e) Welcome Home Proclamation – Lance Corporal Brock Brani 
f) Mental Health Month – May, 2007 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Vehicle Wash Services                  
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish two (2) year 
requirements of City Vehicle Wash Services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years 
to the following bidders:  Tunnel O’Suds Car Wash, Your Car Wash, Pro Enterprise, Inc. and 
Jax Kar Wash as a result of a best value process, which the Troy City Council determines to be 
in the public interest, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 23, 2007, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with the contracts 
expiring December 31, 2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.   
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Rebuild Electro-

Mechanical Axle Scale                  
 
Resolution #2007-05-142-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to furnish all labor, materials, 
and equipment to rebuild the City of Troy’s electro-mechanical axle scale to the low bidder, 
NuWeigh, Inc. of Davisburg, MI, for an estimated total cost of $17,575.00; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor 
submission of proper contract and bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 



 

 

 April 10, 2007 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   Susan A, Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
      
SUBJECT:                Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Vehicle Wash Services 
 
Background 
 On January 23, 2007, bids were received and opened for ITB-COT 06-54, to furnish two (2) year 

requirements for Vehicle Wash Services with an option to renew for an additional two (2) years. 
 50 vendors were notified via the MITN system. 
 Four (4) vendors responded and one (1) late bid received. 
 The recommendation to award a two (2) year contract to all four (4) facilities will give greater accessibility 

to wash sites for employees throughout the City, which will reduce travel time and fuel. (See Attachment I – 
Car Wash Locations) 

 Approximate number of washes per year is 3,550 exterior washes and 450 interior\exterior washes. 
 Test vehicle washes were performed, and favorable evaluations completed, using a cross section of city 

vehicles and operators from several departments. 
 

Financial Considerations 
 Funds for this service are available in Fleet Maintenance – Equipment Operation and Maintenance 

Account, Outside Maintenance #550.7802.150 
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 06-54 was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond with their level of 

interest providing vehicle wash services for the City’s fleet vehicles. 
 The award is contingent upon the recommended bidders’ submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including site visits, insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 It is anticipated that multiple awards will allow employees to keep their vehicles clean, reflecting a positive 

image of the City to the general public and increase the longevity of the vehicle. (Goal 2) 
 
Options 
 City management and the Fleet Division of Public Works department recommend awarding two (2) year 

contracts to four (4) local car wash facilities: Tunnel O Suds, Your Car Wash, Jax Kar Wash and Pro 
Enterprises for exterior wash only (car/mid size SUV, truck/van) and to Jax Kar Wash for interior/exterior 
washes for (car\mid size SUV, truck/van) at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation expiring  
December 31, 2008.  

 
SPL   S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 04.16.07 – SR8 –Vehicle Wash Letter.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



_̂A _̂C_̂B

_̂E_̂D

!ñ

!ñ

CR
OO

KS

CO
OL

ID
GE

HW
Y

CR
OO

KS

JO
HN

R

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

W LONG LAKE

E FOURTEEN MILE

E SQUARE LAKE

E WATTLES

E SOUTH BLVDW SOUTH BLVD

DE
QU

IN
DR

E

AD
AM

S

E MAPLE

LIV
ER

NO
IS

W SQUARE LAKE

ST
EP

HE
NS

ON

W MAPLE

E LONG LAKE

RO
CH

ES
TE

R

W WATTLES

E BIG BEAVER

MA
IN

W BIG BEAVER

§̈¦75

§̈¦75

B - Jax Kar Wash
C - Tunnel O' Suds
D - Pro Car Wash
E - Pro Car Wash

A - Your Car Wash

Car Wash Locations

02/13/2007



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-54
Opening Date -- 1/23/07 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 2/14/07 VEHICLE WASH SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: Tunnel O'Suds *Your Car Wash Pro Enterprise Jax Kar Wash
Car Wash Inc. Inc.

EST SERVICE COST/ COST/ COST/ COST/
ITEM QTY          DESCRIPTION LEVEL UNIT UNIT UNIT UNIT

1. 1,950 Wash Outside of Vehicle A 2.88$              3.75 3.85 3.99$              
(passenger car & mid-size SUV)

2. 400 Complete Car Wash B -$                -$                N/A 6.00$              
  (clean inside/out)

3. 1,600 Pickup Trucks and Vans A 2.98$              3.75 4.30$               3.99$              
  (outside wash)

4. 50 Pickup Trucks and Vans B -$                -$                N/A 6.00$              
  (clean inside/out)

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 10,384.00$     13,312.50$     14,387.50$       16,864.50$     
One Location One Location Two Locations Three Locations

CAR WASH LOCATIONS: 2886 E. Maple, Troy 366 W. Maple, Troy West  Troy/ East Troy Troy/Rochester/Birmingham
Sat 8-7; Sun 9-6 Sun 9AM to 5 PM 7 days/week

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper. 7 AM to 7 PM M-F  7AM to 7 PM 7 AM to 8 PM 8 AM to 6 PM
Phone # 248-642-0638 248-362-9450 248-689-8135 248-280-0490

INSURANCE Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed Yes Yes Yes Yes

SITE VISIT:     Contact Name Randy Hall Trigger Craig Robert Waldron Larry Lucero
    Phone # 248-585-6562 248-362-9450 248-689-8135 248-280-0490
    Facility Address 2886 E.Maple, Troy 366 W.Maple, Troy

3785  & 3688 Rochester 
Rd, Troy 2835 W. Maple, Troy

TERMS: 10 Days Blank Net 20 Monthly Billing
Satisfaction

WARRANTY: Blank Blank Blank Guarantee

EXCEPTIONS: One Lot Pricing All City Car's, SUV's None Blank
Van's will receive 100%
fresh water

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes
* Your Car Wash Inc - included a $100.00 check in bid.  Check was handed to owner (Mr. Craig)
  who attended  the bid opening in Conference Room D.  Check was not required in this bid.

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES RECOMMENDED BIDDERS
ATTEST:
Debra Painter _____________________________
Sam Lamerato Susan Leirstein CPPB
Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G: ITB-COT 06-54 Vehicle Wash Services



Page 1 of 2 

 November 18, 2008 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Uniform Rental Services 
 
Background 
 In August, a combined request for proposal document with Oakland County for two (2) year 

requirements of Uniform Rental Services, with an option to renew for two (2) additional years was 
issued by Oakland County.  The document included individual specifications and pricing 
requirements for both the City of Troy and Oakland County.   

 On September 3, 2008, the requests for proposals (RFP) were received by Oakland County.  Five 
proposals were received from (4) companies.  One company, Unifirst submitted the proposal as 
specified; as well as an alternate proposal based on a uniform change-out program to “Change As 
Needed”, instead of on a scheduled basis every 12 or 24 months..   

 One-hundred and twenty-three (123) vendors were notified via the MITN e-procurement website.   
 Three City of Troy committee members representing the various City facilities independently 

evaluated the proposals for the City considering factors such as experience, employee training 
and services.   

 Based on the evaluations, the City conducted site visits to all four vendors’ processing plants.  The 
committee members evaluated each site considering factors such as garment handling 
procedures, environmental issues, equipment and inventory levels.   

 The City of Troy and Oakland County independently rated their own proposals and based on the 
ratings were able to agree upon a single vendor for both contracts.   

 By partnering with Oakland County, the City of Troy has been able to achieve volume driven cost 
reductions by awarding both contracts to one vendor.  

 Based on the selection criteria established by the City of Troy and Oakland County, City 
management recommends awarding the City’s portion of the contract to the highest rated bidder, 
Unifirst Corporation of Auburn Hills, Michigan under their alternate proposal.  

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds for this program are available in the various departmental operating budgets for Uniforms. 
 Projected savings under the new contract is estimated at $2,500.00 per year. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 Solicitation #000555 was competitively bid and all vendors were given the opportunity to respond 

with their level of interest in providing uniform rental services for various City of Troy facilities and 
Oakland County.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04c



Page 2 of 2 

 
November 18, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Best Value Award – Uniform Rental Services 
 
Legal Considerations - continued 
 The contract award is contingent on the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and 

proposal documents including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.   
 
Policy Considerations 
 By establishing a uniform rental service, the City can maintain the professional and suitable 

appearance that is the required standard for City of Troy employees.   
 
Options 
 City management recommends awarding a two (2) year contract for uniform rental services for 

various City of Troy union employees, with an additional two (2) year option to renew under the 
alternate proposal from Unifirst Corporation of Auburn Hills, Michigan, the highest rated vendor as 
a result of a best value process at unit prices at or below those contained in the tabulation opened 
September 3, 2008, to expire October 31, 2010.  

 
 
G:/Purchasing/Bid Award 08-09 New Format/Best Value SR8 – RFP – Purchasing UniformRentalServices 11.08.doc 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES 
 
 
STATISTICS: 

 
 One-hundred Twenty-three (123) company’s were notified via the MITN e-procurement 

website 
 

 Five (5) proposals were received from four (4) companies 
 

 All Four (4) companies met the pass/fail criteria 
 

 The City’s evaluation team visited all four (4) companies processing locations 
 

 Unifirst Corporation (Alternate Proposal) received the highest score as a result of a best 
value process based on the evaluation of both the City of Troy and Oakland County  

 
The following Four (4) companies received the indicated final scores as a result of 
the proposal, pricing and site visit selection criteria.  Site visits were conducted at 
all four company locations.       
   
Company SCORE 
Unifirst Corporation (Alternate)  166.90 
Cintas 164.74 
Arrow 152.35 
Aramark 141.85 
Unifirst Corporation  136.54 
  
 
 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring Including Proposal, Price, Site Visit Score and Oakland 
County’s Score 

 Evaluation Process 
 Original Tabulation 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING 

UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES 
 

City of Troy Final Score Calculation: 
40% x Price Score 
30% x Site Visit Score 
30% x Proposal Score 
100%              = Final Weighted Score 

 
Oakland County Final Score Calculation: 

25% x Compliance with Qualifications 
25% x Completeness of Proposal  
25% x Correlation of Proposals to needs of County 
25% x Other factors deemed in Agencies best interest 
100%              = Final Weighted Score 

 
In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  Vendors are listed in the order of their summary score for both 
proposal and price, from highest to lowest.  For the site visit score, vendors are listed in the order of their 
score, from highest to lowest.  For the final score and cumulative score the vendors are listed in the order 
of rating from highest to lowest.   
 
Weighted Average Score for Price: 40% 
 Weighted Criteria -

[1-(Proposal Price – Low Price) / low price] x 
available points 

Final Weighted 
Score (x .40) 

Vendors:   
Cintas Corporation {1-(21,533.56–19,866.80)/19,866.80} x 100    =   91.61   91.61 x .40 = 36.64 
Unifirst  Corporation (Alternate) {1-(19,866.80–19,866.80)/19,866.80} x 100    = 100.00 100.00 x .40 = 40.00
Arrow Uniform Rental {1-(20,139.28–19,866.80)/19,866.80} x 100    =   98.62     98.62 x .40 = 39.45 
Aramark {1-(31,465.92–19,866.80)/19,866.80} x 100    =   41.62     41.62 x .40 = 16.65 
Unifirst Corporation {1-(36,038.80–19,866.80)/19,866.80} x 100    =   18.60    18.60 x .40 =  7.44 
 
Weighted Average Score for Proposals: 30%   
Raters: 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score (x .30)
Vendors:    
Cintas Corporation 100.00 93.00 93.00 95.33 28.60 
Unifirst Corporation (Alternate) 80.00 80.00 89.00 83.00 24.90 
Arrow Uniform Rental 97.00 51.00 90.00 79.33 23.80 
Aramark 96.00 63.00 92.00 83.67 25.10 
Unifirst Corporation 100.00 78.00 93.00 90.33 27.10 
 
Summary:   Proposal and Price Scores   
 Price Score Proposal Score Score
Vendors:  
Cintas Corporation 36.64 28.60 65.24 
Unifirst Corporation (Alternate) 40.00 24.90 64.90 
Arrow Uniform Rental  39.45 23.80 63.25 
Aramark 16.65 25.10 41.75 
Unifirst Corporation  7.44 27.10 34.54 
Site visits were conducted at all four company locations.  (Maximum # of points – 30) 
 



 
 
Weighted Average Score for Site Visit:  30% 
RATERS 1 2 3 Average Final Weighted Score (x .30)
Vendors:  
Arrow Uniform Rental  100.00 96.00 97.00 97.67 29.30 
Aramark 99.00 94.00 94.00 95.67 28.70 
Cintas Corporation 94.00 92.00 93.00 93.00 27.90 
Unifirst Corporation 89.00 92.00 89.00 90.00 27.00 
Unifirst Corporation (Alternate) 89.00 92.00 89.00 90.00 27.00 
 

CITY OF TROY FINAL SCORE:  
VENDORS:  Cintas 

Corporation 
Arrow Uniform 

Rental 
Unifirst 

Corporation 
(Alternate) 

Aramark Unifirst 
Corporation 

Proposal Score 28.60 23.80 24.90 25.10 27.10 
Price Score 36.64 39.45 40.00 16.65 7.44 
Site Visit Score 27.90 29.30 27.00 28.70 27.00 
FINAL SCORE 93.14 92.55 91.90 70.45 61.54 
 
OAKLAND COUNTY FINAL SCORE:  
VENDORS:  Unifirst 

Corporation 
(Alternate) 

Unifirst 
Corporation 

Cintas 
Corporation 

Aramark Arrow 
Uniform 
Rental 

Compliance with 
Qualification Criteria 16.60 16.60 16.60 16.60 15.00 
Completeness of 
Proposal 18.40 18.40 16.60 16.60 16.60 
Correlation of proposals 
to needs of the 
County/City 

20.00 20.00 20.00 21.60 16.60 
Other factors that may 
be deemed to be in 
Agencies best interest 

20.00 20.00 18.40 16.60 11.60 

FINAL SCORE 75.00 75.00 71.60 71.40 59.80 
 
FINAL CUMULATIVE SCORE – CITY OF TROY AND OAKLAND COUNTY:  
VENDORS:  Unifirst 

Corporation 
(Alternate) 

Cintas 
Corporation 

Arrow Uniform 
Rental 

Aramark Unifirst 
Corporation 

City of Troy 91.90 93.14 92.55 70.45 61.54 
Oakland County 75.00 71.60 59.80 71.40 75.00 
FINAL SCORE 166.90 164.74 152.35 141.85 136.54 
 
**HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
 
G:/ Bid Award 08-09 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP – Purchasing – Uniform Rental Services – WeightedRatingSummary 10.08.doc 



  
Request for Qualifications and Proposal  
Uniform Rental Services 
 
 

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
A City/County Committee will review the proposals.  The Agencies reserve the right to award this 
proposal to the company considered the most qualified based upon a combination of factors including but 
not limited to the following: 
 

A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Financial strength of the Company 
D. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City/County 
E. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the Agencies best interest 
F. Evaluation Process 

 
Phase 1:  Minimum Qualifications Evaluation 
Companies will be required to meet minimum established criteria in order to go to the second phase of 
the process.   

 
Phase 2: Evaluation of Proposals 
Each Committee member will independently use a weighted score sheet to evaluate the proposals; each 
Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  The scores of the Committee Members will be 
averaged into one score for each firm for this phase of the process.   
 
Phase 3: Site Visit 
The City/County will conduct site visits to the top three (3) rated companies.  If less than three (3) 
companies remain in the process, all will be visited.  Each Committee Member will independently use a 
weighted score sheet to evaluate the site visit; each Committee Member will calculate a weighted score.  
The scores of the Committee Members will be averaged into one score for each company for this phase 
of the process.  Those companies being visited will be supplied with further instructions, date of visit and 
any additional requests prior to the visit.    

 
Phase 4:  Price   
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 

        FORMULA:     {1 – (Proposal Price – Low Price) / low price} x available points 
 

Phase 5:  Final Scoring and Selection 
The company with the highest final weighted score will be recommended for Award.   
 
    40% x Price Score       (100 pt. Base)   
  30% x Site Visit Score (100 pt. Base)  
  30% x Proposal Score (100 pt. Base) 
             100% 
 
Note:   The City/County reserve the right to change the order of the evaluation process if deemed 
in the Agencies’ best interest to do so. 
 
 
 



Compliance 
with 

Qualification 
Criteria

Completeness of 
the proposal

Correlation of the 
proposals submitted to 

the needs of the 
County/City

Other factors which 
mat be deemed to be 
in the Agencies best 

interest 
Totals

Aramark 4 5 5 4
3 2 4 3
3 3 4 3

10 10 13 10 43
Arrow 3 3 3 2

3 4 4 4
3 3 3 1
9 10 10 7 36

Cintas 4 4 4 4
3 3 4 3
3 3 4 4

10 10 12 11 43
Unifirst 4 3 4 4

3 4 4 4
3 4 4 4

10 11 12 12 45

UNIFORM RFP RESULTS - EVENT # 000555



EVALUATION SCORING CRITERIA
0 = proposal fails to meet minimum specification for this element and/or information is missing.     
1 = Proposal meets specification with exception and/or information is unclear.     
2 = proposal meets minimum specification and required information is complete and understandable.     
3 = Proposal somewhat exceeds specification and/or provides a somewhat enhanced 
solution/features/functionality.     
4 = Proposal greatly exceeds specifications and/or provides greatly enhanced 
solution/features/functionality.     
5 = Proposal provides superior solution, technology, functionality, service or operational feature.     
     

Compliance with Qualifications Criteria Score 0-5 Section 
Weight Weighted Total

3.33
TOTAL 3.33 0.25 0.83
Completeness of the proposal Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
3.33

TOTAL 3.33 0.25 0.83
Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the County/City Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
4

TOTAL 4 0.25 1.00
Otherfactors with may be deemed to be in the Agencies best interest Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
3.66 25%

TOTAL 3.66 0.25 0.92
TOTALS Section Totals

0.83
0.83
1.00
0.92

SECTIONS TOTAL SCORE 3.58

Conversation to 100% Scale.  Point value X 20%  71.6
City of Troy Final Score 95
Final combined total 166.6

Event #  555
INTERESTED VENDOR NAME

Cintas



EVALUATION SCORING CRITERIA
0 = proposal fails to meet minimum specification for this element and/or information is missing.     
1 = Proposal meets specification with exception and/or information is unclear.     
2 = proposal meets minimum specification and required information is complete and understandable.     
3 = Proposal somewhat exceeds specification and/or provides a somewhat enhanced 
solution/features/functionality.     
4 = Proposal greatly exceeds specifications and/or provides greatly enhanced 
solution/features/functionality.     
5 = Proposal provides superior solution, technology, functionality, service or operational feature.     
     

Compliance with Qualifications Criteria Score 0-5 Section 
Weight Weighted Total

3 25%
TOTAL 3 0.25 0.75
Completeness of the proposal Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
3.33 25%

TOTAL 3.33 0.25 0.83
Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the County/City Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
3.33 25%

TOTAL 3.33 0.25 0.83
Otherfactors with may be deemed to be in the Agencies best interest Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
2.33 25%

TOTAL 2.33 0.25 0.58
TOTALS Section Totals

0.75
0.83
0.83
0.58

SECTIONS TOTAL SCORE 2.99

Conversation to 100% Scale.  Point value X 20%  59.8
City of Troy Final Score 92
Final combined total 151.8

Event #  555
INTERESTED VENDOR NAME

Arrow



EVALUATION SCORING CRITERIA

0 = proposal fails to meet minimum specification for this element and/or information is missing.     
1 = Proposal meets specification with exception and/or information is unclear.     
2 = proposal meets minimum specification and required information is complete and understandable.     
3 = Proposal somewhat exceeds specification and/or provides a somewhat enhanced 
solution/features/functionality.     
4 = Proposal greatly exceeds specifications and/or provides greatly enhanced 
solution/features/functionality.     
5 = Proposal provides superior solution, technology, functionality, service or operational feature.     
     

Compliance with Qualifications Criteria Score 0-5 Section 
Weight Weighted Total

3.33
TOTAL 3.33 0.25 0.83
Completeness of the proposal Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
3.33

TOTAL 3.33 0.25 0.83
Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the County/City Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
4.33

TOTAL 4.33 0.25 1.08
Otherfactors with may be deemed to be in the Agencies best interest Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
2.33 25%

TOTAL 3.33 0.25 0.83
TOTALS Section Totals

0.83
0.83
1.08
0.83

SECTIONS TOTAL SCORE 3.57

Conversation to 100% Scale. Point Value X 20% 71.4
City of Troy Final Score 72
Combined total 143.4

Event #  555
INTERESTED VENDOR NAME

Aaramark



EVALUATION SCORING CRITERIA
0 = proposal fails to meet minimum specification for this element and/or information is missing.     
1 = Proposal meets specification with exception and/or information is unclear.     
2 = proposal meets minimum specification and required information is complete and understandable.     
3 = Proposal somewhat exceeds specification and/or provides a somewhat enhanced 
solution/features/functionality.     
4 = Proposal greatly exceeds specifications and/or provides greatly enhanced 
solution/features/functionality.     
5 = Proposal provides superior solution, technology, functionality, service or operational feature.     
     

Compliance with Qualifications Criteria Score 0-5 Section 
Weight Weighted Total

3
TOTAL 3 0.25 0.75
Completeness of the proposal Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
3.66

TOTAL 3.66 0.25 0.92
Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the County/City Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
4

TOTAL 4 0.25 1.00
Otherfactors with may be deemed to be in the Agencies best interest Score 0-5 Section 

Weight Weighted Total
4 25%

TOTAL 4 0.25 1.00
TOTALS Section Totals

0.83
0.92
1.00
1.00

SECTIONS TOTAL SCORE 3.75

Conversation to 100% Scale.  Point value X 20%  75
City of Troy Final Score 92
Final combined total 167

Event #  555
INTERESTED VENDOR NAME

Unifirst



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 08-29
Opening Date -- 9/3/08 RFP TABULATION Page 1 of 6
Date Prepared -- 9/9/08 jh/sl UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL LLC
*Alternate Pricing - Change as Needed

EST # OF WASHING REPLACEMENT WASHING REPLACEMENT
ITEM DESCRIPTION EMPLOYEES COST/MAN/WEEK COST COST/MAN/WEEK COST

1 Shirts- Long & Short Sleeve with Pants  (Standard) 10  $                    3.30  $                 8.00  $                     3.60  $               13.00 
 65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend –Exchanged Every 24 Months–  $               10.00  $               14.00 

Optional: 65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend - Exchangd Every 24 
Months - (w/Cell-Phone Pocket)  $                    3.45  $               12.00  N/A  N/A 
 5 Changes/Week
Mix and Match
 Style # 0102, 0202, 1002, 10B6 SP 14/24 & PT20 
 Manufacturer: Unifirst RED KAP

2 Shirts-Long Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 54  $                    4.40  $               10.00  $                     4.50  $               14.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton –Exchanged Every 12 Months–  $               12.00  $               15.00 

Optional: 100% Premium Quality Cotton - Exchanged Every 12 
Months - (w/Tool Pocket)  $                    5.25  $               15.00  N/A  N/A 
 5 Changes/Week
 Style # 0101, 0201, 1001 SC 30/40 & PC 20 
 Manufacturer: Unifirst RED KAP 

3 50/50 Knit Short Sleeve Shirts and Pants (Standard) 6  $                    4.40  Blank  $                     4.84  $               14.00 
Long Sleeve Shirts and Pants (Standard)  Blank  N/A 
65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend –Exchanged Every 24 Months–  $               14.00 
5 Changes/Week  $               15.00 
Mix and Match
Style #
Manufacturer: Unifirst RED KAP 

4 Coveralls and Shop Coats 13  $                    0.80  $               32.00  $                     0.40  $               15.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  $               38.00  $               15.00 
 Mix and Match
 Laundered As Needed

5 White Long Sleeve Shirts with Pants 2  $                    4.40  $               10.00  $                     3.60  $               13.00 
 65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend – Exchanged Every 12 Months-  $               12.00  $               14.00 
 5 Changes/Week 
 Style # 011107, 1122 SP14/24, PT20
 Manufacturer: Unifirst RED KAP

6 Two (2) Shop Coats 6 No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge
  Laundered 4 Times/Year

ADDITIONAL PURCHASE: EST # OF
ITEM DESCRIPTION EMPLOYEES UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Coveralls 100% Premium Quality Cotton 19  $                   32.00  $                   27.00 
Manufacturer:                                 Style #: BLANK RED KAP CC14

2 Shop Coats 100% Premium Quality Cotton 15  $                   38.00  $                   27.00 
Manufacturer:                                 Style #: BLANK UNIVERSAL 

3 Sew-On Additional City owned emblems – patches COST FOR  $                    1.50  $                     2.00 
SUB- TOTAL -      $            17,121.20  $             17,331.28 

 Not every 24 months - As Needed 

 Not every 12 months - As Needed 

02CH, 02CZ, 0268, 1002 SE20 or SE02 or SE52

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

PROPOSAL - Two Year Requirements of Uniform Rental Services with an Option to Renew for Two Additional Years

 Not every 24 months - As Needed 

 Not every 24 months - As Needed 

 Not every 12 months - As Needed 

 Not every 12 months - As Needed 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 08-29
Opening Date -- 9/3/08 RFP TABULATION Page 2 of 6
Date Prepared -- 9/9/08 UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL LLC
*Alternate Pricing - Change as Needed

OPTIONAL SERVICES: EST # OF WASHING REPLACEMENT WASHING REPLACEMENT
ITEM DESCRIPTION EMPLOYEES COST/MAN/WEEK COST COST/MAN/WEEK COST

A. Shirts-Long Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 6  $                    2.64  Blank  $                     2.70  $               14.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  Blank  $               15.00 

Option  100% Premium Quality Cotton - w/tool pocket  $                    3.15  Blank  N/A  N/A 
 3 Changes/Week
 Style # 0101, 0201, 1001 BLANK
 Manufacturer: Unifirst BLANK

B. Shirts-Short Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 6  $                    1.76  Blank  $                     1.80  $               14.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  Blank  $               15.00 

Option  100% Premium Quality Cotton - w/tool pocket  $                    2.10  Blank  N/A  N/A 
 2 Changes/Week
 Style # 0101, 0201, 1001 BLANK
 Manufacturer: Unifirst BLANK

C. Shirts-Short Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 6  $                    4.40  Blank  $                     4.50  $               14.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  Blank  $               15.00 

Option  100% Premium Quality Cotton - w/tool pocket  $                    5.25  Blank  N/A  N/A 
 5 Changes/Week
 Style # 0101, 0201, 1001
 Manufacturer: Unifirst

ESTIMATED ANNUAL GRAND TOTAL: 19,866.80$             20,139.28$             
MANDATORY SITE INSPECTION
 Visited the sites:
 Date: 8/14/2008 8/26/2008
FLOOR PLAN
  Marked as: Titled Locker Floor Plan 
SITE VISIT:
 Contact Name: Ed McNicholas Scott Wakefield 
 Phone # (248) 334-0030 (248) 786-9703
BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE:     Yes or No YES YES

CONTACT INFORMATION: 7am-5pm 8am - 5pm 
 Hours of Operation
 Emergency Phone # (248) 935-4971 (248) 786-9703

INSURANCE:
 Can meet XX XX
 Cannot meet

TERMS: NET 30 BLANK

WARRANTY: N/A BLANK

DATE & TIME - DELIVERY: BLANK BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Yes or No YES YES

NOTE:  RFP opened in Oakland County

G:/Bid Tabs 07-08/RFP-COT 08-29 Uniform Rental Services.xls Susan Leirstein CPPB

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

 Unifirst brand vs Red Kap-Prices per 
terms w/alternate prices 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 08-29
Opening Date -- 9/3/08 RFP TABULATION Page 3 of 6
Date Prepared -- 9/9/08 UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

EST # OF WASHING REPLACEMENT WASHING REPLACEMENT
ITEM DESCRIPTION EMPLOYEES COST/MAN/WEEK COST COST/MAN/WEEK COST

1 Shirts- Long & Short Sleeve with Pants  (Standard) 10  $                      3.64  $                15.00  $                       3.69  $                 16.00 
 65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend –Exchanged Every 24 Months–  $                16.00  $                 16.00 

Optional: 65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend - Exchangd Every 24 
Months - (w/Cell-Phone Pocket)  $                      4.71  $                19.00  $                       4.75  $                 18.00 
 5 Changes/Week
Mix and Match
 Style # 935/945 BLANK
 Manufacturer: Cintas BLANK

2 Shirts-Long Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 54  $                      5.21  $                18.00  $                       7.75  $                 18.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton –Exchanged Every 12 Months–  $                20.00  $                 18.00 

Optional: 100% Premium Quality Cotton - Exchanged Every 12 
Months - (w/Tool Pocket)  $                      6.89  $                23.00  N/A  N/A 
 5 Changes/Week
 Style # 330/340 BLANK
 Manufacturer: Cintas BLANK

3 50/50 Knit Short Sleeve Shirts and Pants (Standard) 6  $                      4.28  $                18.00  $                       4.75  $                 18.00 
Long Sleeve Shirts and Pants (Standard)  $                16.00  Blank 
65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend –Exchanged Every 24 Months–
5 Changes/Week
Mix and Match
Style # 259/945 BLANK
Manufacturer: Cintas BLANK

4 Coveralls and Shop Coats 13  $                      0.50  $                      -    $                       0.50  $                 30.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  $                      -    $                 23.00 
 Mix and Match
 Laundered As Needed

5 White Long Sleeve Shirts with Pants 2  $                      3.64  $                15.00  $                       5.53  $                 20.00 
 65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend – Exchanged Every 12 Months-  $                16.00  $                 18.00 
 5 Changes/Week 
 Style # 935/945 BLANK
 Manufacturer: Cintas BLANK

6 Two (2) Shop Coats 6 No Charge No Charge No Charge No Charge
  Laundered 4 Times/Year

ADDITIONAL PURCHASE: EST # OF
ITEM DESCRIPTION EMPLOYEES UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Coveralls 100% Premium Quality Cotton 19
 $                      0.50  $                     29.00 

Plus 20% non-stnd 
sizes

Manufacturer:                                 Style #: Cintas 910 Blank
2 Shop Coats 100% Premium Quality Cotton 15

 $                      0.50  $                     21.00 
Plus 20% non-stnd 
sizes

Manufacturer:                                 Style #: Cintas 929 Blank
3 Sew-On Additional City owned emblems – patches COST FOR  $                      1.99  $                       0.75 

SUB- TOTAL -      $             18,279.40  $              26,629.92 

CINTAS CORPORATION

PROPOSAL - Two Year Requirements of Uniform Rental Services with an Option to Renew for Two Additional Years

ARAMARK



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 08-29
Opening Date -- 9/3/08 RFP TABULATION Page 4 of 6
Date Prepared -- 9/9/08 UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

OPTIONAL SERVICES: EST # OF WASHING REPLACEMENT WASHING REPLACEMENT
ITEM DESCRIPTION EMPLOYEES COST/MAN/WEEK COST COST/MAN/WEEK COST

A. Shirts-Long Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 6  $                      3.13  $                18.00  $                       4.65  $                 18.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  $                20.00  $                 18.00 

Option  100% Premium Quality Cotton - w/tool pocket  $                      4.13  $                23.00  N/A  N/A 
 3 Changes/Week
 Style # 330/340 BLANK
 Manufacturer: Cintas BLANK

B. Shirts-Short Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 6  $                      2.09  $                18.00  $                       3.10  $                 17.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  $                20.00  $                 18.00 

Option  100% Premium Quality Cotton - w/tool pocket  $                      2.75  $                23.00  N/A  N/A 
 2 Changes/Week
 Style # 330/340 BLANK
 Manufacturer: Cintas BLANK

C. Shirts-Short Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 6  $                      5.21  $                18.00  $                       7.75  $                 17.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  $                20.00  $                 18.00 

Option  100% Premium Quality Cotton - w/tool pocket  $                      6.89  $                23.00  N/A  N/A 
 5 Changes/Week
 Style # 330/340 BLANK
 Manufacturer: Cintas BLANK

ESTIMATED ANNUAL GRAND TOTAL:  $             21,533.56  $              31,465.92 
MANDATORY SITE INSPECTION
 Visited the sites:
 Date: 8/27/2008 8/26/2008
FLOOR PLAN
  Marked as: Locker Floor Plan Floor Plan 
SITE VISIT:
 Contact Name: Kent Butler Michael Ragan 
 Phone # (586) 855-1647 (248) 996-4184
BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE:     Yes or No YES YES

CONTACT INFORMATION: 8am-5pm 8am - 5pm
 Hours of Operation
 Emergency Phone # (586) 677-9900 (866) 624-5136

INSURANCE:
 Can meet XX XX
 Cannot meet

TERMS: STATED NET 30 

WARRANTY: FLEXIBLE 30 days notice to terminate - see bid

DATE & TIME - DELIVERY: FLEXIBLE BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Yes or No YES YES

CINTAS CORPORATION ARAMARK

 Would like to replc garments as needed  but 
will honor timeframe City specified. 



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 08-29
Opening Date -- 9/3/08 RFP TABULATION Page 5 of 6
Date Prepared -- 9/9/08 UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

EST # OF WASHING REPLACEMENT WASHING REPLACEMENT
ITEM DESCRIPTION EMPLOYEES COST/MAN/WEEK COST COST/MAN/WEEK COST

1 Shirts- Long & Short Sleeve with Pants  (Standard) 10  $                      4.75  $                12.00 
 65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend –Exchanged Every 24 Months–  $                15.00 

Optional: 65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend - Exchangd Every 24 
Months - (w/Cell-Phone Pocket)  $                      4.90  $                15.00 
 5 Changes/Week
Mix and Match
 Style # 0102, 0202, 1002, 10B6
 Manufacturer: Unifirst & Dickies

2 Shirts-Long Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 54  $                      8.65  $                12.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton –Exchanged Every 12 Months–  $                15.00 

Optional: 100% Premium Quality Cotton - Exchanged Every 12 
Months - (w/Tool Pocket)  $                      9.50  $                18.00 
 5 Changes/Week Add/Sew on pocket
 Style # 0101, 0201, 1001
 Manufacturer: Unifirst 

3 50/50 Knit Short Sleeve Shirts and Pants (Standard) 6  $                      5.60  $                12.00 
Long Sleeve Shirts and Pants (Standard)  $                15.00 
65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend –Exchanged Every 24 Months–
5 Changes/Week
Mix and Match
Style # 02CH, 02CZ, 0268 1002
Manufacturer: Unifirst

4 Coveralls and Shop Coats 13  $                      0.80  $                32.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  $                38.00 
 Mix and Match
 Laundered As Needed

5 White Long Sleeve Shirts with Pants 2  $                      8.80  $                12.00 
 65/35 Poly/Cotton Blend – Exchanged Every 12 Months-  $                15.00 
 5 Changes/Week 
 Style # 011107, 1122
 Manufacturer: Unifirst

6 Two (2) Shop Coats 6 No Charge No Charge
  Laundered 4 Times/Year

ADDITIONAL PURCHASE: EST # OF
ITEM DESCRIPTION EMPLOYEES UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE

1 Coveralls 100% Premium Quality Cotton 19  $                    32.00 
Manufacturer:                                 Style #: BLANK

2 Shop Coats 100% Premium Quality Cotton 15  $                    38.00 
Manufacturer:                                 Style #: BLANK

3 Sew-On Additional City owned emblems – patches COST FOR  $                      1.50 
SUB- TOTAL -      $             30,641.20 

PROPOSAL - Two Year Requirements of Uniform Rental Services with an Option to Renew for Two Additional Years

UNIFIRST CORPORATION



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 08-29
Opening Date -- 9/3/08 RFP TABULATION Page 6 of 6
Date Prepared -- 9/9/08 UNIFORM RENTAL SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

OPTIONAL SERVICES: EST # OF WASHING REPLACEMENT WASHING REPLACEMENT
ITEM DESCRIPTION EMPLOYEES COST/MAN/WEEK COST COST/MAN/WEEK COST

A. Shirts-Long Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 6  $                      5.19  $                12.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  $                15.00 

Option  100% Premium Quality Cotton - w/tool pocket  $                      5.70  $                18.00 
 3 Changes/Week
 Style # 0101, 0201, 1001
 Manufacturer: Unifirst

B. Shirts-Short Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 6  $                      3.46  $                12.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  $                15.00 

Option  100% Premium Quality Cotton - w/tool pocket  $                      3.80  $                18.00 
 2 Changes/Week
 Style # 0101, 0201, 1001
 Manufacturer: Unifirst

C. Shirts-Short Sleeve with Pants (Standard) 6  $                      8.65  $                12.00 
 100% Premium Quality Cotton  $                15.00 

Option  100% Premium Quality Cotton - w/tool pocket  $                      9.50  $                18.00 
 5 Changes/Week
 Style # 0101, 0201, 1001
 Manufacturer: Unifirst

ESTIMATED ANNUAL GRAND TOTAL:  $             36,038.80 
MANDATORY SITE INSPECTION
 Visited the sites:
 Date: 8/14/2008
FLOOR PLAN
  Marked as: Titled 
SITE VISIT:
 Contact Name: Ed McNicholas 
 Phone # (248) 334-0030
BIDDER QUESTIONNAIRE:     Yes or No YES

CONTACT INFORMATION: 7am-5pm 
 Hours of Operation
 Emergency Phone # (248) 935-4971

INSURANCE:
 Can meet XX
 Cannot meet

TERMS: NET 30 

WARRANTY: N/A

DATE & TIME - DELIVERY: BLANK

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Yes or No YES

UNIFIRST CORPORATION 

 Unifirst brand vs Red Kap-Prices per 
terms w/alternate prices 



Page 1 of 2 
 

   November 18, 2008 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Lawn & 

Garden, Commercial and Agricultural Equipment  
  
Background 

• The State of Michigan MiDEAL Program awarded a contract agreement for commercial equipment 
to the John Deere Company (Contract #071B6200191).  

• The Backhoe being purchased is a replacement Backhoe for one that will be auctioned or traded-
in. 

• Discounts on this equipment are available up to 36% from manufacturer’s suggested retail prices. 
• JDE Equipment Company has agreed to a trade-in allowance of $16,000 for the 1997 JCB backhoe. 

 
Financial Considerations 

• $80,000 has been budgeted for this purchase in the Public Works Fleet Division capital account 
#5657981. 

 
                  UNIT COST     

 (1) John Deere 410J Backhoe                $83,757.00 
 Plus: Additional Options 
 Spare Wheels 
 5year/5,000 hours extended power train/hydraulic warranty  
 Repair Manuals       $  6,585.00 
           
     Less: Trade-In 1997 JCB 215 Backhoe     $(16,000.00)  
                     ESTIMATED TOTAL               $ $74,342.00  
 
TRADE-IN 
 After researching the current market value of our backhoe for trade-in, the City may be able to benefit by 
marketing this backhoe through trade publications and websites, thereby increasing the trade-in value of this 
piece of equipment.  If that fails, JDE Equipment Company would extend their offer to trade-in the equipment at 
$16,000.00 at the time of delivery of the new backhoe. 
 
Legal Considerations 

• There are no legal considerations associated with this item.  
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04d



Page 2 of 2 
 

November 18, 2008 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Commercial Equipment 
 
 
Policy Considerations 

• The purchase of the backhoe would assure the safety and welfare of citizens and businesses, and 
also reduce the liability for the City. (Outcome Statement I). 

• The backhoe is used on a daily basis to assure proper and proactive Water Division maintenance 
and repairs to water and sewer mains (Outcome Statement II).   

 
Options 

• City management and the Public Works Fleet Division recommend awarding a contract to provide 
one (1) 2008 John Deere 410J Backhoe from JDE Equipment Company, New Hudson, MI, through 
the State of Michigan MiDEAL program for $83,757.00, plus additional options (spare wheels, 
repair manuals and 5 year/5,000 hour extended power train/hydraulic warranty) not covered under 
MiDEAL in the amount of $6,585.00, less trade-in of $16,000.00, for an estimated net total cost of 
$74,342.00.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SPL\S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 11.24.08 – SR4- Backhoe State of Michigan MiDEAL Letter 
 













campbellld
Text Box
F-05











campbellld
Text Box
F-06























campbellld
Text Box
F-07





















campbellld
Text Box
F-08





















campbellld
Text Box
F-09

















campbellld
Text Box
F-10



























campbellld
Text Box
F-11





























campbellld
Text Box
F-12



























campbellld
Text Box
F-13





























campbellld
Text Box
F-14



































campbellld
Text Box
F-15



































campbellld
Text Box
F-16







Joint Local Development Finance Authority –Troy Subcommittee  - FINAL MINUTES April 28, 2008 
 
 

 1 

 
 
A meeting of the Joint Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee (LDFA) 
was held on Monday, April 28, 2008 at 3:00 P.M., at City Hall in the Council Board Room.   
Beltramini called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m. 
 
 
PRESENT: Robin Beltramini, Chair 

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
Mike Adamczyk  
Stephanie Bergeron 
Mike Kidder 
Doug Smith (arrived @ 3:12 p.m.) 

  
  
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Miller, Planning Director 

Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 
  

 
 
 
VOTE TO APPROVE OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
Resolution # LD-2008-04-001 

Moved by Murphy  
Seconded by Bergeron 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of May 7, 2007 be approved. 
 
Yes:   All – 5 
No:   None 
Absent: Smith 
 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

 
None 

  

 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
 

A. 2008/09 Budget 
 
The 2008/09 budget was discussed and approved. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



Joint Local Development Finance Authority –Troy Subcommittee  - FINAL MINUTES April 28, 2008 
 
 

 2 

 
Resolution # LD-2008-04-002 
Moved by Adamczyk 
Seconded by Kidder 
 
RESOLVED, That the 2008/09 budget is approved and will be submitted to City Council for final 
approval. 
 
Yeas:  All-5 
No:  None 
Absent: Smith 
 
 

B. Election of Officers 
 
Resolution # LD-2008-04-003 
Moved by Murphy 
Seconded by Adamczyk 
 
RESOLVED, That Robin Beltramini is re-elected as Chair and Mark Miller as Secretary/Treasurer. 
 
Yeas:  All-5 
No:  None 
Absent: Smith 
 
 

C. Planning Update 
 
Mark Miller, Planning Director updated the Board on expanding the boundaries. 
 
 

D. Meeting Time Change 
 
Resolution # LD-2008-04-004 
Moved by Smith 
Seconded by Adamczyk 
 
RESOLVED, That the LDFA meeting time will be changed from 3:00 p.m. to 3:30 p.m. 
 
Yeas:  All-6 
No:  None 
Absent: None 
 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 



Joint Local Development Finance Authority –Troy Subcommittee  - FINAL MINUTES April 28, 2008 
 
 

 3 

 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:28 p.m. 
 
 
Next Meeting:  July 28, 2008 @ 3:30 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Robin Beltramini, Meeting Chair 
 
 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Sept 4, 2008 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Sept. 4 2008 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at 
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Jo Rhoads, Member James Berar, Member   
 Frank Shier, Member David Ogg, Member  
 Bud Black, Member JoAnn Thompson, Member,  
 Betty Coven, Member Pauline Noce, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff 
 
Absent: None 
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Charles Craft, William Huotari, Steve Dearing 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2008-9-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads 
Seconded by David Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of June 5, 2008 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: 9  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed upcoming school district events and news. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Traffic Issues:  The Committee discussed traffic safety issues with Police Chief Charles Craft, 
Traffic Engineer William Huotari and Traffic Consultant Steve Dearing.  They explained what 
they have done about traffic safety and about the state guidelines that they are required to 
follow regarding signs, etc.  Chief Craft asked that committee members call him if they have a 
specific problem about a certain intersection.   
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one suggestion that residents be allowed to 
charge over the phone to save on gas.  70% of our registrations are now taken online, and this 
has been the only request for phone registrations.  Mail-in registration is available.  Additional 
staff is required to handle phone in registration and we do not want to discourage on-line 
registration.  But the situation will be monitored.   

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Sept 4, 2008 

2 

 
Renaming the Senior Program and Lowering the Age to Qualify:  Carla led a discussion 
about lowering the age for senior programs from 55 to 50 and changing the name of the 
program as baby boomers object to the label “senior.”  Committee members felt that there is a 
big difference between 50 years old and 80 years old and there is a need for two types of 
programs - one for 50 Plus and one for Seniors.  The Senior program should not be geared 
toward 50 year olds as many of those activities would not be appropriate for 80 year olds.  
People will sign up for activities that are age appropriate for them and both types of activities 
need to be offered.  They favored leaving the name “Senior Program” as is.   
   
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  No report.  
 
Senior Program:  Over 100 people attended the free outdoor Heritage Band concert on 
August 6 and itt has outgrown its location on the Community Center patio.  Troy had five 
teams playing 50 Plus softball this year in two Northwest Parks and Recreation Association 
leagues.  Pickleball is a sport that is gaining popularity with the seniors.  All four courts are in 
use with people waiting on Friday mornings at the Community Center gym.   There are now 
518 seniors receiving the newsletter via e-mail.   Be sure to check out all of the National 
Senior Center Month activities.   
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they are talking about a gold sale fundraiser.  
 
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that they had a speaker from Beaumont.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report. 
 
Comments 
 
JoAnn Thompson pointed out that the lunchroom volunteer is again opening the donation 
envelopes effecting confidentiality.  The sign on the table also refers to “cost” as opposed to 
“suggested donation.”  The Committee requested that Carol Anderson speak to Emerald Food 
Service about this.  Carla will pass this on to Carol. 
 
Frank Shier announced the upcoming Heart of the Hills performance. 
 
Betty Coven announced that the fall session of Cross Train Your Brain starts on Monday. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:15 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair      Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Matthew Kovacs, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:32 P.M., on Tuesday, September 16, 2008 in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael Bartnik 
    Kenneth Courtney 
    Marcia Gies 
    Matthew Kovacs 
    Dave Lambert 
     
ALSO PRESENT:  Mitch Grusnick, Residential Plan Analyst 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:   Glenn Clark 

Wayne Wright 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Wright from this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yeas:    5 –Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Lambert, Bartnik 
Absent:   2 – Clark, Wright 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR. WRIGHT CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed that the petitioners that they did have the option of postponing 
their requests due to the fact that there are two members missing. 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF AUGUST 19, 2008 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of August 19, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:    4 – Courtney, Kovacs, Lambert, Bartnik 
Absent:   1 – Clark 
Abstain:   1 – Gies 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 - APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH ITEM #6 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
RESOLVED, that Items #3 through #6 are hereby approved in accordance with the 
suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Lambert, Bartnik, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 - Clark 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  HANDLEMAN REAL ESTATE LLC, 500 KIRTS, 
for relief of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the west 606’ of the north 
property line where it abuts residentially zoned land. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief, granted by this 
Board, of the required 6’ high masonry-screening wall along their northern property line 
where it abuts residentially zoned land.  This relief was originally granted in 1984, based 
on the fact that the petitioner would be installing a berm with evergreen and deciduous 
plantings to screen the residential sites.  A portion of the property to the north has been 
rezoned to the C-F zoning classification and therefore the renewal of relief is only 
required for the west 606 feet.  This item last appeared before this Board in September 
2005 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time.  Other than the change of 
adjacent zoning the conditions remain the same and there are no complaints or 
objections on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of Handleman Company, 500 Kirts, a three (3) year 
renewal of their variance for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along 
the west 606 feet of their northern property line where it abuts residentially zoned land. 
 

• A berm with landscape is provided along the property line. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  PB & J INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT, 
6050 LIVERNOIS, for relief to maintain a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of the 6’ high 
masonry screen wall required along the north property line. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by 
Board to maintain a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry-screen wall 
required along the north property line. The Board originally granted this relief in 1989 
when the second building was constructed.  This item last appeared before this Board in 
September 2005 and was granted a three (3)-year renewal at that time.  This property 
has since been sold to different corporations and therefore now requires two (2) 
renewals. We have no objections or complaints on file. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant the request of PB & J International Development 6050 Livernois, a 
three (3) year renewal of relief to maintain a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of the 6’ high 
masonry-screen wall required along the north property line. 
 

• There are no objections or complaints on file. 
• Conditions remain the same. 

 
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  F & A INVESTMENTS, 6054 LIVERNOIS, for 
relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry 
screen wall required along the north property line and also along the east property line 
where the site abuts residentially zoned property. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the Petitioner is requesting renewal of relief to maintain a 6’ 
high wood fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry screen wall required along the north 
property line and relief of the 6’ high masonry screen wall required along the east 
property line where the site abuts residentially zoned property.  The Board originally 
granted this relief in 1989 when the second building was constructed.  This item last 
appeared before this Board in September 2005 and was granted a three (3)-year 
renewal at that time.  This property has since been sold to different corporations and 
therefore now requires two (2) renewals. We have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant F & A Investments, 6054 Livernois a three-year (3) renewal of relief to 
maintain a 6’ high wood fence in lieu of the 6’ high masonry screen wall required along 
the north property line and relief of the 6’ high masonry screen wall required along the 
east property line where the site abuts residentially zoned property. 
 

• There is existing vegetation along the east property line. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #6 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ST. NICHOLAS GREEK ORTHODOX 
CHURCH, 760 W. WATTLES, for relief to maintain a 4’-6” high landscaped berm in lieu 
of the 4’-6” high masonry screen wall required where the parking abuts residential 
zoned property. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board to maintain a 4’-6” high landscaped berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high masonry-screen 
wall required along their parking areas which abut residential zoned property.  This relief 
was originally granted in 1990 based on the fact that one side abuts a cemetery and the 
petitioner would install 4’-6” high landscaped berm.  This item last appeared before this 
Board at the meeting of September 2005 and was granted a three (3)-year renewal at 
that time.  Conditions remain the same and we have no complaints or objections on file. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
MOVED, to grant St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church, 760 W. Wattles, a three (3) year 
renewal of relief to maintain a 4’-6” high landscaped berm in lieu of the 4’-6” high 
masonry-screen wall required along their parking areas which abut residential zoned 
property. 
 

• Conditions remain the same. 
• There are no objections or complaints on file. 

 
ITEM #7 – APPROVAL REQUESTED.  MELISSA & BRIAN VANTONGEREN, 5361 
LIVERNOIS, for approval under Section 43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store 
a commercial vehicle outside on residential property. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioners are requesting approval under Section 
43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on 
residential property.  The Ford F350 Cube Van described in the application does not 
meet the exceptions found in Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Troy City 
Ordinance.  In 2003, the petitioners were granted approval under the previous 
procedures by City Council, to store a cube van outdoors on the property.  In 2006 they 
applied for renewal of that approval but later withdrew that request because they had 
sold the vehicle.  They now have apparently purchased another vehicle and are asking 
for approval to park this vehicle outdoors on the property. 
 
This item first appeared at the meeting of August 19, 2008 and was postponed to allow 
the petitioner the opportunity to present the Board with documentation regarding their 
efforts to meet the criteria in “A” or “B”; and also to allow the petitioners to bring in a 
plan showing the addition of more landscaping. 
 
Mr. & Mrs. Vantongeren were present.  Mrs. Vantongeren presented the Board with 
documentation showing the routes that Mr. Vantongeren takes as well the cost involved 
with storing the vehicle at an outdoor storage lot and presented the Board with a letter 
from the Ace Door Company indicating that their garage could not be modified to 
accommodate this vehicle.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion the different routes that make up Mr. Vantongeren’s 
job make it difficult to store this vehicle at another site.  There are storage units close to 
the home that are in the city.  Mr. Kovacs said that he felt the petitioner met the criteria 
“B” that demonstrates that the existing structure cannot accommodate this vehicle. 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed the petitioner that they needed four (4) votes for approval and if 
they wished they could postpone this request until the meeting of October to allow the 
opportunity of a full Board or they could have the Board vote on this request tonight. 
 
Mr. Lambert stated that before the petitioners decided to request postponement, they 
might allow the Board the opportunity to discuss this item.  Mr. Lambert further stated  
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
that based on the information the petitioners distributed to the Board, he feels that 
approval would be appropriate as they meet criteria “B”. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the petitioner has met the burden that indicates this garage cannot 
be added too. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that in his opinion the petitioners did supply evidence that they cannot 
modify this particular garage.  Mr. Bartnik further stated that he feels the petitioner met 
criteria “B” and provided a letter from a garage door builder indicating that this structure 
could not be made any larger. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that there are a lot of vehicles that cannot be stored in the garages 
that exist.  Mr. Courtney said that he would be inclined to approve this request as long 
as there was a time limit placed on the variance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Courtney if he felt that the petitioner did not meet criteria “B”. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that just because the vehicle cannot fit into a garage, he would not 
want this type of vehicle stored outside next to his home. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that criteria “B” states that that the structure cannot reasonably 
accommodate or be modified in a way that it could store this vehicle.  Mr. Kovacs said 
that he believes Mr. Lambert and Mr. Bartnik feel that this structure could not be 
modified in a reasonable manner to accommodate this truck. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the he agrees but that there are a number of trucks parked 
outside that he would not want parked next to his house.  Mr. Courtney further stated 
that he would agree to approve this request, but not for a long period of time. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that the approval cannot exceed two (2) years, but the Board could 
approve a time frame that would be less than the two (2) years. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would be willing to allow approval for two (2) years, but also 
informed the petitioner that at the end of the two years, other accommodations should 
be made for this vehicle. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #7 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Melissa & Brian Vantongeren, 5361 Livernois, approval under Section 
43.74.01 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance to store a commercial vehicle outside on 
residential property for a period of two (2) years. 
 

• Petitioners have met criteria “B” and “C”. 
• At the end of two years, the petitioners will have to appear before this Board 

again for approval to keep this commercial vehicle on their property. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Lambert, Bartnik, Courtney, Gies 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT APPROVAL FOR TWO (2) YEARS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  WATTLES INVESTMENT CO., 4000 
LIVERNOIS for relief of the 6’ high masonry screen wall along the east side of the 
property as required by Section 39.10.01. 
 
The petitioner had stepped out of Council Chambers and the Chairman postponed the 
hearing of this request. 
 
ITEM #9 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  CHARLES MUNSELLE, 1340 CAMBRIA, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a 528 square foot attached garage and 328 square 
foot storage room, which would result in a total of attached accessory building on this 
property to 1,384 where Section 40.56.01 limits the maximum area of attached 
accessory use buildings to 1,240 square feet.  
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct an addition to the existing home.  The site plan submitted indicates the 
construction of a proposed 528 square foot attached garage and 328 square foot 
storage room.  This dwelling currently has an existing 528 square foot attached garage.  
If approved, this addition would increase the total of attached accessory use buildings 
on this property to 1,384 square feet. 
 
Section 40.56.01 limits the maximum area of attached accessory use buildings to 75% 
of the dwelling’s ground floor living area.  Since the ground floor living area of the 
dwelling is 1,654 square feet, the total of all accessory use buildings cannot exceed 
1,240 square feet. 
 
Mr. Munselle was present and stated that he is asking for an additional 144 square feet.  
This residence is a two-story, four bedroom colonial on a lot that is 120’ x 170’.  There is 
no basement.  The Munselles have an in-ground pool and are experiencing problems 
with the storage of pool equipment as well as landscape equipment.  The present 
garage only has room for one car.  Mr. Munselle had a garden tractor that he stored at 
his neighbor’s home, however, that home was sold and when he lost the ability to store  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
the tractor he sold it.  They would like to purchase bicycles but again have nowhere to 
put them. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the existing garage were attached to the home if it would exceed 
the limit allowed by Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Grusnick said that if the existing garage were converted to living space a variance 
would not be required to add another two-car garage.  Part of the square footage is 
storage and does come under the accessory use.  If the square footage of the storage 
room were deducted the garage would comply. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if any other variances would be required. 
 
Mr. Grusnick stated that the petitioner complies with the Ordinance regarding setbacks 
and lot coverage. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what the allowable square footage for garages was before the 
Ordinance was changed regarding garages. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that there was no maximum as long as it complied with the square 
footage of the house and lot coverage.  If this was a detached garage it could be 
constructed to equal 100% of the ground floor area of the home. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Charles Munselle, 1340 Cambria, relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a 528 square foot attached garage and 328 square foot storage room, which would 
result in a total of attached accessory buildings on this property to 1,384 square feet 
where Section 40.56.01 limits the maximum area of attached accessory use buildings to 
1,240 square feet. 
 

• Variance request is small. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Lambert 
Nays:  1 – Bartnik 
Absent: 1 – Clark 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #9 – con’t. 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #8 (TAKEN OUT OF ORDER) – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  WATTLES 
INVESTMENT CO., 4000 LIVERNOIS for relief of the 6’ high masonry screen wall along 
the east side of the property as required by Section 39.10.01. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Section 39.10.01, which 
requires a 6’ high masonry screen wall along the east property line where this site abuts 
Single Family Residential Zoning.  A variance for this wall was originally granted by the 
Board in 1985 based, in part, that the land to the east was undeveloped.  When this 
item appeared for renewal in 1999, it was granted a one-year renewal and the Board 
indicated that at the end of that year a new public hearing should be scheduled since a 
majority of the adjacent property was then developed with new single family homes.  A 
review of our records, however, does not indicate that the new public hearing was ever 
held.  The current owners of the property are asking for a variance to continue to 
eliminate this required screen wall. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of August 19, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner to contact the surrounding property owners to see if 
there was another solution to add additional screening. 
 
Since the meeting of August 19th, it has been verified that the City owns the 10’ of 
property with the sidewalk to the east. Mr. Grusnick also informed the Board that the 
petitioner had presented a landscape plan to Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst for the City 
and Mr. Hynd has determined that there is not enough space for the petitioner to add 
additional plantings used for screening. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if it was indicated that the wall would be required. 
 
Mr. Grusnick said that it has been determined that the City would not give approval for 
additional plantings as there is not enough space. 
 
Mr. Michael Larco of Wattles Properties was present.  Mr. Larco said that he had 
spoken to Mr. Bhalerao, the homeowner at 30 Crestfield, and they had proposed to add 
55 emerald green arborvitae on the east side of the property.  The homeowner indicated 
that he was in favor of this proposal.  Mr. Stimac informed Mr. Larco that plantings on 
their property were not acceptable by the City because once the plants were matured; 
they could hang over a portion of the sidewalk and create a safety hazard for people 
walking along this area.  Mr. Larco also suggested that he could put arborvitae along 
the property line of 30 Crestfield and along their east property line to the dumpster 
enclosure.  If that is not acceptable Mr. Larco said that he would put in the wall. 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the City has indicated that the arborvitae Mr. Larco is proposing 
would not be allowed due to the lack of space in this area.  Mr. Courtney also asked if 
the petitioner was proposing to put the arborvitae on the property owned by Mr.  
Bhalerao.  The only way that could happen was if the homeowner would allow him to do 
that. 
 
Mr. Larco stated that the homeowner was present and he could let the Board know if he 
would allow that. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Bhalerao to step up to the podium. 
 
Mr. Bhalerao stated that he is the property owner immediately adjacent to 4000 
Livernois and he would allow the petitioner to put the arborvitae on his property.  Since 
Mr. Larco has presented this solution, Mr. Bhalerao said that he would be in favor of 
these plantings.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he did not know if there was any way for the City to regulate these 
arborvitae.  Mr. Kovacs was not sure who would be responsible for the upkeep of this 
landscaping. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that the same question was asked at the last meeting and this Board 
does not have the authority to grant a variance subject to landscaping being placed on 
property that is not owned by the petitioner.  This Board can grant a variance stating 
that he does not have to put a wall up, but it cannot make the petitioner put in 
landscaping on property owned by someone else. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the Board could grant a short term variance and then if the 
petitioner did not put in the extra arborvitae could make him put up the wall. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that this Board could not grant a temporary variance on this property.  
The Board would either have to grant the variance or deny it. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he thought a wall variance had a time limit. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that you could impose a time limit on the substitute for a required 
screen wall but if the Board was to grant a permanent variance that would mean that the 
screen wall would be eliminated. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he can foresee several problems with granting a temporary 
variance based on the planting of more arborvitae.  Other people will be affected by this 
variance and although this neighbor may be happy with that solution, other neighbors 
may not be. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

10 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik questioned the petitioner on the drawings that were submitted and asked 
how high the proposed wall would be. 
 
Mr. Larco stated that the dumpster enclosure is 5’ but the wall could be constructed at a 
height of either 4’ or 6’.  The petitioner submitted this picture so that the Board would 
have an idea of what type of wall they would be erecting. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what type of material would be used for this wall. 
 
Mr. Larco stated it was a concrete wall.  Mr. Larco further stated that the only variance 
he would request regarding this wall, would be that it did not extend all the way to the 
sidewalk at 6’.  Mr. Larco asked if a portion of the wall could be smaller so that traffic 
entering or exiting the driveway would have a clear view of pedestrians or oncoming 
traffic.  Mr. Larco also said that there is a brick wall around the dumpster and he would 
like the concrete wall to stop at the dumpster.  The new screening wall would be 6’ high 
and 175’ long. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the variance could be granted with certain conditions.  Mr. Kovacs 
asked Mr. Grusnick if this proposed wall would meet the requirements for a screening 
wall. 
 
Mr. Grusnick said that it will meet all the requirements. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if this wall would be 5’ or 6’. 
 
Mr. Larco said that in order to keep it in line with the dumpster it would be 5’, but he 
would be willing to put up the 6’ high wall. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Courtney clarified that the wall would be 6’ high. 
 
Mr. Bhalerao stated that he would prefer a 6’ high wall. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said it makes sense to bring the wall back from the sidewalk as it would 
increase safety for both the driveway and sidewalk. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to grant Wattles Investment Co., 4000 Livernois, relief to put up a 6’ high 
masonry screening wall that will run 175’ on the property line. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

11 
 

ITEM #8 – con’t. 
 

• Wall placement will start at the first parking space north of the sidewalk and 
extend approximately 175’ to the dumpster enclosure. 

• Limited amount of space restricts landscaping. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance is permanent. 

 
Yeas:  5 – Lambert, Bartnik, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #10 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. THOMAS SAWYER, 895 
NORWICH, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a garage addition on a legal non-
conforming structure which increases the non-conformity.  
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the existing home has side yard setbacks of 5.3’ and 9.6’, 
which total 14.9 when added together.  Section 30.10.06 requires a 15’ minimum for 
both side yards in the R-1E Zoning District. 
 
The proposed garage addition will further result in a 22.3’ front yard setback where 25’ 
is required and a reduction of the 5.3’ side yard down to a 4.4’ side yard setback, which 
would reduce the side yard setbacks to 14’. 
 
Section 40.50.04 prohibits expansions of non-conforming structures in a way that 
increases the non-conformity. 
 
Mr. Larry Bertollini, the Architect for this project was present as well as Mr. Thomas 
Sawyer and his brother David Sawyer.  A mortgage survey was done on this property 
and Mr. Sawyer met with Mr. Grusnick regarding this project.  Mr. Grusnick suggested 
that in order to conform to the Ordinance the garage should be constructed at an angle 
and to construct a front entrance garage.  Mr. Sawyer did not want to do that so he 
contacted Mr. Bertollini to look at other options.  This property is at a disadvantage as 
his lot is on the curve, the setback increases at the center of the property. 
 
Mr. Bertollini went on to say that Mr. Sawyer wants to improve the flow of the house, 
increase the size of the master bedroom and create a breakfast nook.  The existing 
garage was created from a carport and is too small for two cars.  The proposed garage 
would be 21’-6” wide and 22’ deep.  There are several other homes on Norwich that 
have received variances that have reduced their front setbacks also.  Mr. Bertollini 
passed out pictures of other homes on Norwich that had received variances to construct 
new garages.  Mr. Bertollini addressed each home that had received a variance and 
compared the end result with what they are proposing.  Mr. Bertollini contends that 
these garages were larger than what Mr. Sawyer is asking for. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

12 
 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bertollini said that this is a unique situation because of the way the house sits on the 
lot.  The proposed plan with the addition shows that the wall is 9’-6” from the property 
line at the closest point and at the end of the addition it is 9’-9”.  In designing the 
addition they felt that a 22’ width on the garage was the bare minimum.  The side yard 
tapers 8’ back from the furthest point of the house to the street and when you get to the 
far corner, it is non-conforming by 1’.  This is not an across the board variance, but the 
front corner is approximately 2.7’ and if this space is averaged out the triangular shape 
it would come to approximately 1’-4” all the way across.  The site lines would not be any 
different to the neighbors to the north because of the way the home is on the lot.  A lot 
of time and effort has been put behind this project and they are trying to keep sizes 
down as much as possible.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked why not a 25’ garage width rather than 27’. 
 
Mr. Bertollini stated that the garage width is only 21’-6”.   
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Donna Modras, 905 Norwich was present.  Ms. Modras said that Mr. Sawyer had 
come over with some plans for this construction but never mentioned anything about 
expanding the master bedroom.  Ms. Modras said that she has a number of concerns 
about the garage.  Mr. & Mrs. Modras have small children and live directly north of this 
property and believe that this garage will obstruct her view of the children while they are 
riding their bikes on the sidewalk.  Right now the area is visible from the front porch, but 
once the garage is built the view will be obstructed.  Everybody would like a two car 
garage, but Ms. Modras does not believe that this subdivision allows the space for a two 
car garage.  Ms. Modras also said that she does not want to look out of her front door 
and see the back of someone’s garage.  Ms. Modras believes this will bring property 
values down and will create a hardship for her in keeping an eye on her children.  This 
garage would create an infringement on the enjoyment of her property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed Ms. Modras that a garage could still be constructed without a 
variance.  Essentially the variance would not be next to her property line.  The corner 
that is the closest to Ms. Modras’ home, meets the 25’ setback. 
 
Ms. Modras said that without a variance he couldn’t come out that far. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the corner of his house meets the front setback, the opposite 
corner does not meet the setback and this is the area that will require the variance. 
 
Board members explained to Ms. Modras what the petitioner would be allowed to do 
absent a variance. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

13 
 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Mr. & Mrs. Richard Adams, 926 Norwich were present and stated that they objected to 
this request.  Mr. Adams pointed out that the petitioner is also asking for a variance 
regarding the side yard setback.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the side yard setback must equal 15’ for both sides. Mr. Kovacs 
stated that the Board could ask the petitioner to move the garage over 6”. 
 
Mr. Adams said that he believes this is precedent setting and that Mr. Bertollini said that 
the variance would be less than 1’-4”.  Mr. Adams said that they do not have any 
problem with him adding to the foyer or the breakfast nook and said that the petitioner is 
asking for too large a variance. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that the petitioner is asking for a very small variance. 
 
Mr. Adams said that he not only objects to the front setback variance but also objects to 
the side yard variance. 
 
Ms. Pam Lourim, 904 Norwich was present and stated that she lives directly across the 
street from this property.  Ms. Lourim said that she objects to this request as this curve 
is a very high speed traffic area and does not feel the extension of the garage would be 
safe for the children.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the garage will be 22.5’ from the front setback. 
 
Ms. Lourim said that it will stick out quite a ways on the curve.  A lot of children cross 
the street in this area and the garage will block the visibility. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the petitioner could put up 6’ high shrubs along the front property 
line and this Board would only be able to request that this garage be pushed back 2’. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that if there are a number of speeders on this street, the property 
owners should call the police. 
 
Ms. Lourim said that they have and a stop sign was put in, however, traffic does not 
stop or slow down. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are four (4) written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the petitioner would like to postpone this request until the next 
scheduled meeting to allow for the opportunity of a full Board.  Mr. Bertollini indicated 
that he would like to hear some of the discussion of the Board before making his 
decision. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

14 
 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Gies stated that she understands what the neighbors are saying about the position 
of the garage to the sidewalk, however, believes this is a very small variance request 
and has no problem with it. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he agrees with Ms. Gies. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr.  & Mrs. Thomas Sawyer, 895 Norwich, relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a garage addition on a legal non-conforming structure, which will result in a 
front yard setback of 22.3’ where 25’ is required and a side yard setback of 14’ where 
15’ is required. 
 

• Variance request is minimal. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance does not allow the petitioner full enjoyment 

and permitted use of his residence. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Bartnik, Courtney, Gies, Kovacs, Lambert 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MR. & MRS. CARROLL STRICKLAND, 3852 
MEADOWBROOK, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will 
result with a proposed 33’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ 
minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning district. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a patio enclosure on the rear of an existing home.  The site plan submitted 
indicates the construction of a patio enclosure will result in a proposed 33’ rear yard 
setback.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B 
Zoning District. 
Mr. & Mrs. Strickland were present.  Mrs. Strickland stated that their property backs up 
to a subdivision park and they have a large lot, 91’ wide x 150’ deep.  This sunroom 
would not affect any of their neighbors.  Right now they have a 48’ setback to the rear 
lot line and if they complied with the Ordinance, the sunroom would only be 3’ wide.  
The sunroom will not extend past the existing deck.  Mrs. Strickland said the proposed 
sunroom is the size they need to have full use of the room.  Mr. Strickland has arthritis 
in his spine and stairs are very difficult for him to negotiate.  In addition, their one-year 
old grandson lives with them and this will allow him to have more living space also.   
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

15 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that the Board sympathizes with the physical hardship that the 
petitioners have, however, the Board cannot act based upon any type of physical 
hardship, and a hardship for a variance applies to the land only. 
 
Mr. Steve Gronley, of Tony V’s Sunrooms was present and informed the Board that the 
sunroom would blend in with the house.  The shingling on the sunroom would match the 
shingles on the house and he believes this construction will add to the value of the 
home.  The siding on the sunroom comes with a lifetime warranty against chipping or 
fading. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked why this sunroom couldn’t be put in the side yard.  Mr. Kovacs said 
that he believes there is enough room in the side yard to add this room. 
 
Mr. Grusnick explained that R-1B Zoning requires 25’ for the total for both side yard 
setbacks.   It appears that the north side is close to 10’. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that from the site plan submitted it appears that the petitioner has a 
30.6’ side yard setback to work with and the sunroom could be put in this area without 
requiring a variance. 
 
Mr. Strickland stated that the entrance to the park is on the north side of the house and 
they would not want to put the sunroom on that side. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that it could be put on the south side as they only need 25’ for a total of 
both side yard setbacks.   
 
Mrs. Strickland said that they have a 3’ high fence on that side, which starts at the deck 
and goes back to the rear property line.  This fence would have to be moved. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that in his opinion there is a lot of property that would allow for this 
room to be constructed and a variance would not be required.  Mr. Kovacs also stated 
that this is a large variance request and he did not see a hardship with the land. 
 
Mr. Strickland said there is also a fireplace located in that area.  Mrs. Strickland said 
that they had just redone the area around the fireplace, adding new tile and book 
shelves. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said he understands that construction on the side may not be easy but it is 
something that could be done. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the fireplace and book cases take up 20’. 
 
Mrs. Strickland said she does not think it is 20’, but this work was just done and they 
would not want to take it apart.  There is a laundry room, hallway and then a garage. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

16 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would like the petitioners to take the opportunity to look into 
the possibility of locating the sun room in the side yard. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Kovacs suggested that the petitioner look into other options and postpone this 
request until October.  Mr. Kovacs also stated that they would have the opportunity of a 
full Board. 
 
Mrs. Strickland said that they do not want to tear out the work they have just done and if 
they postpone this project too much longer it will not get done because the weather will 
be changing. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that this is 12’ encroachment into the rear yard setback and there is a 
lot of usable area that does not require a variance.   
 
Mrs. Strickland said that she did not see why this would be a problem as they have a 
large park located behind their property. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that there is a house behind them that would be affected as well as the 
neighbors on either side. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he would like the petitioner to look into the feasibility of using the 
side yard and come back before the Board.  A variance may not be required. 
 
Mr. Lambert asked if any trees would have to be removed if the sun room was 
constructed in the side yard. 
 
Mrs. Strickland said there was a large walnut tree that would have to be removed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he could not approve this request without other reasons showing 
why they need to put this room in this location. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that it appears to him that the tree is where they want to put the room 
and not in the side yard. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he was trying to get an understanding of why the room would not 
work in the side yard.  Mr. Bartnik asked if there were windows or doors in that area. 
 
Mrs. Strickland said that the door to the garage is in that area.  If the sunroom was put 
in the side yard it would be necessary to cut a door. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

17 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if it would be possible to move the sunroom farther to the north and 
that would decrease the size of the variance request. 
 
Mrs. Strickland said that the sunroom would replace the deck.  If they were to move the 
location of the sunroom they would have to cut a hole in the wall. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what else was located on the other side of the house. 
 
Mrs. Strickland said that there was a dining room and kitchen. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they could go through the dining room into the sunroom. 
 
Mrs. Strickland said no and said that she did not want to build on that side of the house 
as it would be more costly. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he was satisfied with the petitioner’s request. 
 
Mr. Bartnik agreed with Mr. Courtney. 
 
Motion by Lambert 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Carroll Strickland, 3852 Meadowbrook, relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a patio enclosure that will result in a 33’ rear yard setback where 
Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in the R-1B Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Bartnik, Courtney, Gies, Lambert 
Nays:  1 – Kovacs 
Absent: 1 – Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. & Mrs. Adams addressed the Board with concern of the approval of Item #10, 895 
Norwich.  Mrs. Adams asked what recourse they would have to appeal that decision. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the next step is the Circuit Court of Appeals. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act governs parties that are 
aggrieved by a decision made by the Board of Zoning Appeals would seek relief though 
the Circuit Court. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                     SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 

18 
 

Mrs. Adams asked what the time limit was for appeal. 
 
Mr. Motzny stated that the time period was 30-days after the decision or 21 days after 
the meeting minutes were approved. 
 
Mr. Courtney informed the petitioner that once construction begin it would be more 
difficult to win their case. 
 
Mrs. Adams asked if Mr. & Mrs. Sawyer had received their Building Permit at this time. 
 
Mr. Grusnick stated that they had applied for the permit, but that it was dependent on 
the decision of this board. 
 
Mrs. Adams asked if construction could begin once the permit was obtained, or if it 
would be delayed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that the Board is done, there is nothing more that this Board can do.   
 
Mrs. Adams asked what the procedure was for filing an appeal. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that their best bet would be to contact an attorney and let him advise 
them of the correct procedure. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that they cannot give Mr. & Mrs. Adams any advice and also suggested 
that they contact an attorney. 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Mr. Courtney 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Clark from tonight’s meeting as he is out of town. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Gies, Kovacs, Lambert, Bartnik, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXUSE MR. CLARK CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:27 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Matthew Kovacs, Chairman 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            OCTOBER 13, 2008  

 Page 1 of 3

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, October 
13, 2008 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    Timothy P. Payne 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Allemon and Payne 
 
Resolution #LC2008-10-026  
Moved by Ogg 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Allemon and Payne at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of October 13, 2008 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0   
Absent: Allemon, Payne 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of September 8, 2008 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2008-10-027 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the September 8, 2008 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            OCTOBER 13, 2008  

 Page 2 of 3

Yes:  5 
No:  0   
Absent: Allemon, Payne 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Hospitality Ventures  Management, LLC (A Delaware Limited Liability 

Company) and RBHV Troy, LLC (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) 
(Co-licensees) request a new SDM License to be held in conjunction with 
2008 B-Hotel licensed business with Dance permit, Official permit (Food), 
Outdoor Service (1 area), and 3 bars, located at 850 Tower, Troy, MI 
48098, Oakland County {MLCC Req 484547} 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was attorney Patrick Howe. 
 
This request is made to allow sale of packaged beer and wine from the hotel 
restaurant and bars for off-premise consumption.  There are currently no plans for 
further renovation of the hotel.  
 
Resolution #LC2008-10-028 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Hall 
 
RESOLVED, that Hospitality Ventures  Management, LLC (A Delaware Limited 
Liability Company) and RBHV Troy, LLC (A Delaware Limited Liability Company) 
(Co-licensees) be granted a new SDM License to be held in conjunction with 2008 
B-Hotel licensed business with Dance permit, Official permit (Food), Outdoor 
Service (1 area), and 3 bars, located at 850 Tower, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland 
County. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0   
Absent: Allemon, Payne 
 
 
 
 
Tabled Items 
 
Sergeant Cantlon had the following update for the Committee on the application by 
M & M Troy, Inc., which is the Clark Gas Station located at John R and Maple 
Roads.   
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL            OCTOBER 13, 2008  

 Page 3 of 3

A building site inspection was performed by Mark Stimac of the Building 
Department, Chuck Riesterer of the Fire Department, and Sergeant Cantlon in an 
attempt to determine if the gas station would be able to support that level of stock.  
The applicant has been advised to send a formal drawing of the building with 
square footage, the location of the proposed stock, and the value of the stock.  A 
response has not been received.  
 
 
 
 
Informational Items 
 
City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm spoke to the Committee and presented each 
member with a “Liquor Advisory Committee Reference Book”.  Ms. Bluhm briefly 
explained the contents of the book.  The Open Meetings Act and Freedom of 
Information Act sections of the Reference Book were explained in more detail. 
 
Concerning the matter of absence from a meeting, it was decided by the 
Committee that a member must make notification of inability to attend a meeting, 
but a reason for the absence will not be required. 
 
Ms. Bluhm spoke in depth to the Committee regarding Chapter 101 of the Troy 
City Ordinance.  She explained that the revisions suggested at the July 14, 2008 
Liquor Advisory Committee Meeting were presented to City Council on July 21, 
2008 as an informational item.  Revisions were presented to City Council on 
August 11, 2008 as an action item.  Chapter 101 was adopted at that time. 
 
Inasmuch as there were limited time constraints which did not allow the final 
revisions to be reviewed by the Liquor Advisory Committee, the members have 
decided that Chapter 101 will be re-addressed at the November 10, 2008 meeting. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:32 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01e





BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Matthew Kovacs, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, October 21, 2008, in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael Bartnik 
    Kenneth Courtney 
    Matthew Kovacs 
    Tom Strat 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ABSENT:   Glenn Clark 
    Marcia Gies 
    David Lambert 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Strat 
 
MOVED, to excuse Glenn Clark, Marcia Gies and David Lambert from this meeting as 
they are currently out of the State. 
 
Yeas:   4 – Bartnik, Courtney, Kovacs, Strat 
Absent:  3 – Clark, Gies, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MEMBERS CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs explained to the audience that since there were only four (4) Board 
members present, the petitioners did have the option to request to postpone their 
requests to allow them the opportunity of a full Board. 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Courtney 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked that corrections be made on page 4, Item #7, lines 5 and 7 to 
substitute “approval” rather than “variance”. 
 
Yeas:    4 – Courtney, Kovacs, Strat, Bartnik 
Absent:  3 – Lambert, Clark, Gies 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2008 WITH 
CORRECTIONS CARRIED 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEMS #3 THROUGH #10 
 
RESOLVED, that Items #3, #4, #6, #7 and #8 are hereby approved in accordance with 
the suggested resolutions printed in the Agenda Explanation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Bartnik  
 
Yeas:  4 – Kovacs, Strat, Bartnik, Courtney 
Absent: 3 – Lambert, Clark, Gies 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  JEREMY PHILLIPS, DETROIT EDISON, 2220 
W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of the 6’ high screening wall required between office and 
residentially zoned property. 
 
MOVED, to grant Jeremy Phillips, 2220 W. Big Beaver, a three (3) year renewal of relief 
for the 6’ high screening wall required between office and residential zoned property. 
 

• The adjacent property is used as a retention pond. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  FIFTH THIRD BANK, 2282 W. BIG BEAVER, 
for relief of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the north property line 
where this site abuts residential zoned property. 
 
MOVED, to grant Fifth Third Bank, 2282 W. Big Beaver, a three (3) year renewal of 
relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the north side of their site 
where it abuts residentially zoned property. 
 

• The adjacent property is used as a retention pond. 
• Conditions remain the same. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect on surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #6 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  WATTLES PROPERTIES, LLC, BROOKFIELD 
ACADEMY, 3950 LIVERNOIS, for relief of the 4’6” high masonry screening wall 
required along the east side of off-street parking. 
 
MOVED, to grant Wattles Properties, LLC, Brookfield Academy, 3950 Livernois, a three 
(3) year renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall adjacent to off-street 
parking. 
 

• Fence to remain in good repair. 
• Conditions remain the same. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 

• There are no complaints or objections on file. 
 
ITEM #7 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  ST. AUGUSTINE EVANGELICAL CHURCH, 
5475 LIVERNOIS, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south and 
west sides of off-street parking. 
 
MOVED, to grant St. Augustine Evangelical Church, 5475 Livernois, a three (3) year 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required along the south and west sides 
of the property, adjacent to the off-street parking. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
ITEM #8 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  MARC DYKES, HOME PROPERTIES, 
CANTERBURY SQUARE APARTMENTS II, N. SIDE OF LOVINGTON, E. OF JOHN 
R., for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the north and east 
sides of off-street parking where these areas abut residentially zoned land. 
 
MOVED, to grant Marc Dykes, Home Properties, Canterbury Square Apartments II, N. 
side of Lovington, E. of John R., a three (3) year renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high 
masonry screening wall required along the north and east sides of off-street parking 
areas where these areas abut residentially zoned land. 
 

• Adjacent property is not developed with single-family residences. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property.  
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Conditions remain the same. 

 
Mr. Strat asked if the Board should offer the petitioners the opportunity to postpone their 
requests until the next scheduled meeting. 
 
Mr. Motzny informed Mr. Strat that a petitioner can ask if they wished to postpone their 
requests, but it is up to the Board to make such a motion.  He also noted that renewals 
do not need four (4) votes to be approved.  A majority of the members present is all that 
is required. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that the Planning Commission offers the petitioners the opportunity to 
postpone before the hearing is started. 
 
Mr. Bartnik questioned the notice requirements regarding renewals.  
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #5, 9, &10 
 
Motion by Bartnik  
 
To postpone action on Items 5, 9, & 10 to allow public notices to be sent to the adjacent 
property owners and to obtain an update regarding the Master Land Use designation of 
the adjacent property from the Planning Director. 
 
That motion failed for the lack of a second. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he would be willing to go over each item with the Board.  Notices 
are not sent out regarding renewals unless a complaint is received regarding the 
property. At that time we would notify that complainant so that they could submit 
something in writing.  Renewals are covered under a different procedure and do not 
require the same original findings as when the variance is originally granted.  A Public 
Hearing is held at the time the original request is made and the Board has the ability to 
continue the variance if there is a finding that conditions remain the same and if there 
are no complaints or objections on file.  The Building Department has not received any 
complaints or objections regarding the three items in question. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that the adjacent neighbors may not be aware that a variance was 
granted and he did not see the harm in notifying neighbors and if there any objections 
they would have the opportunity to present them to the Board.  Mr. Strat is concerned 
about changes in occupancy. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he thought they could be postponed so that surrounding property 
owners could be notified. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that the property owners within 300 feet could certainly be notified that 
there was a renewal pending.  Mr. Stimac cautioned the Board regarding a Public 
Hearing on these items as there is a different procedure in place for Public Hearings.  
Regarding Item #10, 2032 E. Square Lake, it is Mr. Stimac’s opinion that since the area 
surrounding this property is fully developed this Item could be advertised as a Public 
Hearing and a permanent variance considered.  A Public Hearing would be required 
and publication of that fact would have to be made.  Mr. Stimac also stated that there 
have not been any changes in the Master Plan that would affect any of the items on this 
Agenda. 
 
ITEM #10 – (TAKEN OUT OF ORDER) 
 
ITEM #10 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  BLUE HERON INVESTMENTS, LLC, 2032 E. 
SQUARE LAKE, for relief of the 6’ high screen wall required along the east side of the 
property, where commercial zoned property abuts residential zoned property. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Strat 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #10 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Blue Heron Investment, 2032 E. Square Lake for 
relief of the 6’ high screen wall required along the east side of the property, where 
commercial zoned property abuts residential zoned property to the next meeting of 
November 18, 2008. 
 

• To allow Notices to be sent out announcing a Public Hearing, so that the Board 
has the opportunity to consider making this a permanent variance. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Bartnik, Courtney, Kovacs, Strat 
Absent: 3 – Clark, Gies, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL NOVEMBER 18, 2008 CARRIED 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Strat 
 
MOVED, to postpone Items #5, and #9 to the next scheduled meeting of November 18, 
2008. 
 

• To provide notification to surrounding property owners that renewals are pending. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he did not agree and that the variance for the screening wall for 
Item #5 has been granted since 1985 and there are no objections on file. 
 
Mr. Curtis of the Troy Masonic Temple Association was present and stated that they 
had purchased the Building in 1969 and this variance has been granted since 1970. 
They own the adjacent property and they have not had any complaints. 
 
Mr. Kovacs informed the petitioner that Mr. Bartnik is concerned about changes in 
occupancy and notifying neighbors that this variance is in effect.  
 
Mr. Bartnik asked which properties were owned by the Temple and Mr. Curtis indicated 
how much of the property is owned by the Temple and indicated how much of that 
property was vacant.  Mr. Curtis also pointed out that there is a shopping center right 
behind their property. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that he would amend his motion on this property. 
 
Motion by Bartnik 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to amend the motion regarding Item #2 excluding Item #5 for postponement. 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Kovacs, Strat, Bartnik, Courtney 
Absent: 3 – Lambert, Clark, Gies 
 
MOTION TO AMEND MOTION CARRIED  
 
A representative of Life Christian Church International was present and stated that he is 
not sure what the Board is looking for.  Life Christian Church International is the new 
property owner of this site. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he was concerned that since this is a change in ownership of the 
Church, the surrounding neighbors may not be aware that a variance had been granted.  
Mr. Bartnik stated that he would like those neighbors to be notified. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that the property has been cleaned up and commended the petitioner 
on the appearance of the property. 
 
Vote on the motion to postpone item #9 
 
Yeas:  3 – Strat, Bartnik, Courtney 
Nays:  1 - Kovacs 
Absent: 3 – Lambert, Clark, Gies 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he did not agree this postponement was necessary as this 
variance has been in effect for more than 30 years and there are no complaints or 
objections on file. 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18, 
2008 CARRIED 
  
ITEM #5 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  TROY MASONIC TEMPLE ASSOCIATION, 
1032 HARTLAND, for relief of the required 4’-6” high masonry screening wall adjacent 
to off-street parking. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the 4’-6” high masonry-
screening wall adjacent to their parking lot.  This Board originally granted this variance 
in 1970.  This item last appeared before this Board in October 2005 and was granted a 
three (3) year renewal of this request.  Conditions at the site remain the same and we 
have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Bartnik 
 
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Troy Masonic Temple Association, 1032 Hartland, a three (3) year 
renewal of relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required by Section 39.10.01 
adjacent to off-street parking where it abuts residentially zoned property. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• There are no complaints or objections on file. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Bartnik, Courtney, Kovacs, Strat 
Absent: 3 – Clark, Gies, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO GRANT RENEWAL FOR THREE (3) YEARS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #11 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  LISA COURY & JAMES STEWART, 924 
HANNAH, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a two-story gambrel style roofed 
building with a building height of 17’.  Section 40.56.02 limits detached accessory 
buildings to not more than one story and not more than a 14’ maximum building height. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are requesting relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a detached accessory building.  The site plan submitted indicates the 
proposed construction of a two-story detached garage/storage building.  The plans  
further show this gambrel (barn) style roofed building with a building height of 17’ as 
measured by the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Section 40.56.02 limits detached accessory buildings to not more than one story and 
not more than a 14’ maximum building height. 
 
Lisa Coury and James Stewart were present.  Mr. Stewart stated that they are running 
out of room as they have a lot of stuff that includes a cargo trailer with an 8’ height.  
Rather than have their trailers in the front yard, they would be able to put them in this 
building.  They have one child with a second on the way and they do not have any room 
for storage.  Most of their storage is already taken up.  The garage could be made 
longer, but there is a tree behind it and in front of it and also a telephone easement is 
located on the property.   Mr. Stewart said that most of the lots in this area are very 
large and there are other garages that are larger than normal. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how large the lot was and Ms. Coury stated it was 105’ x 230’. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked why the garage would be on the side closest to the neighbor rather 
than the front. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that there are telephone lines in this area and they can’t put anything in 
this area.  The garage would still be as close to the neighbor because of this easement. 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

8 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked why a second floor was needed as they were planning to use the 
building for storage of trailers. 
 
Ms. Coury said that their house is approximately 950 square feet and due to the fact 
that another child is on the way, more storage will be required.  The trailers will take up 
most of the first floor and this is the reason, they require a second floor.  They would 
move some of the things they have in the basement to the loft in this building. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they were planning to make the attached garage living space. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that is their plan. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that they could shorten the height of the garage and not have a 
second level.  Instead of going 20 feet high, just go as far as needed to cover the door. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that one of his trailers is 8’ high and they would need a ceiling height in 
the lower level of at least that much to stand in the garage.  There is a tree in front of  
the proposed garage and one also in back of the proposed garage that would make it 
difficult to make the garage longer.  The cost of the pad alone to make the garage 
longer is prohibitive.   
 
Mr. Strat asked what the height limitations of garage doors were. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the height limitation only applies to an attached garage and is 
10’. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how high the garage door was proposed to be. 
 
Mr. Stewart stated that it would be 8’. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that he had a problem with this request as he does not believe the 
petitioner has demonstrated a hardship that runs with the land.  The petitioner is asking 
for a variance to store recreational vehicles. 
 
Mr. Strat said that one of the approvals received regarding this request is from a 
neighbor that has the same barn.  Mr. Strat also stated that the Board had received two 
(2) objections to this request and one is from the neighbor that is directly behind this 
property.  Recreational vehicles can be stored off-site.  A variance needs to be granted 
with a hardship. 
 
Mr. Stewart asked if Mr. Strat was only objecting to the height of the building. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if a one and one-half story building could be constructed and comply 
with the height. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

9 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the board that there are accessory buildings in the City that do 
have storage areas that meet the 14’ height requirement.  
 
Mr. Stewart said that there are four (4) houses on his street and he does not believe 
they meet the height requirement. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he does not agree with the Board, but is trying to see what could 
be done. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that he could put up a long garage and in his opinion it would look 
worse than what he is proposing. 
 
Mr. Kovacs agreed with the petitioner and said that he felt this proposed building would 
look much nicer than a long building. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that the petitioner could have a second story but it would not be 7’ high. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he could have a garage that is 24’ wide and have storage that is 4’ 
high and would comply with the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the petitioner wished to postpone this request in order for the 
petitioner to work with the City to bring down the height of this building. 
 
Mr. Stewart said it is either that or he will build a garage that is super-wide and would 
not look as nice. Mr. Stewart said that he would rather have something that fits the 
neighborhood and he could build a garage that was 14’ tall and very wide, which would 
comply with the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he believes you are limited to the square footage of an accessory 
structure. 
 
Mr. Strat said that the petitioner should look at the letters from the people that objected 
to this request and possibly speak to those neighbors.   
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that the objections are from 951 and 976 Deetta 
 
Mr. Stewart said that the yards are 225’ deep. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that we are required by law to inform property owners within 300’ 
of this property that the petitioner is requesting a variance.  Testimony can be taken 
from anyone in the City regarding a request. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that if this request is postponed he would like the petitioner to 
submit what the maximum height of this building needs to be. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

10 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that he could put up a building that is 20’ to the peak and it would 
comply with the guidelines. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he could build a 28’ high A-frame garage but that is not what the 
petitioner is asking for.   
 
Mr. Kovacs asked what would be different if this was an attached garage. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if this garage was attached it could be two and one-half stories and 
could be 25’ high. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that would look much worse than what he is proposing. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Michael Fischer, 914 Hannah, was present and stated that he feels this barn would fit in 
very well with this neighborhood.  There are other gambrel style roofs in the area and 
the height would not create a problem.  Mr. Fischer stated that he would like to see this 
request approved. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed.  
 
There are four (4) written approvals on file.  There are two (2) written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner wished to postpone this request. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that if was not approved he would have to wait longer to put up the 
building. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the petitioner is taking a chance that his request will be denied.  
Mr. Kovacs also stated that he feels the petitioner has a case for a variance however, 
he would need all four members to agree and Mr. Kovacs did not feel that all the 
members would vote in favor of this request. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that he guesses he could cut down one of the trees and put in a longer 
building. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that there has to be a hardship that runs with the land. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he did not believe it would be fair to the petitioner to consider the 
request this evening as there is not a full Board present. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Bartnik 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

11 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
To postpone action on this request and continue the public hearing at the next meeting. 
 
Mr. Bartnik said that the petitioner keeps stating that there is a tree in the way however, 
Mr. Bartnik does not see any evidence indicating that there are trees in this area.  
Furthermore, the petitioner keeps indicating that there are other gambrel style buildings 
in this area however they do not back up to other properties.  Most of the houses in this 
area are one story and this request is for a two-story building.  This home is a very nice 
bungalow.  There are only one or two other two-story homes in the neighborhood.  Mr. 
Bartnik also said that he believes this variance will have a detrimental effect to other 
homes in the area. 
 
Mr. Strat said that he agrees with the comments Mr. Bartnik made.  One of the homes 
adjacent to this property is for sale and they would have a clear view of this building as 
this garage is proposed to be constructed very close to the rear property line.  Mr. Strat 
said that they have taken this request very seriously and the storage of a recreational 
vehicle is not a hardship.  The garage that was built down the street has no bearing on 
this request.  Variances should not be granted lightly. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that he understands, but he was looking at the maximum square 
footage that he could use without taking up most of his back yard.  If this variance is not 
granted, the new garage will be longer and wider. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that if the postponement passes, it is up to the petitioner to come back 
before the Board and show proof that what would be allowed would be detrimental to 
surrounding property rather than what could be put up with a variance. 
 
Mr. Stewart asked what would happen if only four Board members were present again. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that this was a very rare occurrence and he did not believe this 
situation would happen again. 
 
Mr. Strat told the petitioner to indicate the exact location of the trees on his property that 
would prohibit him from making this garage longer.  If a footing is put in, these trees 
may also be destroyed. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what the elevation was from the back of the house to the back of 
the lot. 
 
Mr. Stewart said he believes this is one of the original farmhouses in this area.  The 
neighbors behind them have a small ditch and his property slopes down from the house. 
 
Mr. Strat said that the petitioner would need to be very careful where the floor of the 
building is due to the water problems.   
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

12 
 

ITEM #11 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Bartnik stated that he only had a picture of the mortgage survey and stated that it 
appears there is a lot of room on the other side of the property. 
 
Mr. Stewart said that there is an Edison easement on that side of the property.  
 
Ms. Coury asked the date of the next meeting and informed the Board that she is 
scheduled for a caesarian section on that day and they would not be able to attend that 
meeting. 
 
Mr. Courtney suggested the petitioner turn in the necessary paper work before the 
meeting and it may not be necessary for them to appear. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that there are three other members that have not had this case 
presented to them at all. 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of Lisa Coury and James Stewart, 924 Hannah, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct a two-story gambrel style roofed building with a 
building height of 17’ where Section 40.56.02 limits detached accessory buildings to not 
more than one-story and not more than a 14’ maximum height until the next meeting. 
 

• To allow the petitioner the opportunity of a full Board. 
• To allow the petitioner the opportunity to bring in documents indicating a hardship 

that would support this request. 
 
Yeas:  4 – Bartnik, Courtney, Kovacs, Strat 
Absent: 3 – Clark, Gies, Lambert 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE NEXT MEETING CARRIED 
 
ITEM #12 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DAVID DONNELLON, 1477 JOHN R., for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct an outdoor dining area to within 10’ of the front 
property line along John R.  In 2002 the Board of Zoning Appeals granted a variance 
that would allow the enclosure of the outdoor dining area to within 14’ of the front 
property line. 
 
 Furthermore, the petitioners are proposing to install a new fabric awning over a portion 
of the dining area on front of the structure extending out to within 24’ of the front 
property line.  Section 30.20.06 required a minimum 40’ front yard setback in the B-3 
(General Business) Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to alter an 
outdoor dining facility.  In 2002 the Board of Zoning Appeals granted a variance that 
would allow the enclosure of the outdoor dining area to within 14’ of the front property 
line.  The site plan submitted indicates a proposed new raised “deck area”.  The  



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

13 
 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
enclosure of this deck area is proposed to be within approximately 10’ of the front 
property line along John R (when measured to the 75’ right of way line). 
 
Furthermore, the petitioners are proposing to install a new fabric awning over a portion 
of the dining area on the front of the structure extending out to within 24’ of the front 
property line.  This property is located in the B-3 (General Business) Zoning District.  
Section 30.20.06 requires a minimum 40’ front yard setback. 
 
Mr. Donnellon was present and stated that conditions have changed because the owner 
did not construct the structure originally granted a variance.  This restaurant has had 
open dining for the last several years and the owner wants to create an area that will let 
people sit outside and enjoy the weather.  There has been some Karaoke done at the 
restaurant and some people seem to like it.  The reason for awning is to protect diners 
from the elements.  The economy is tough and on that side of town, things can be a little 
more difficult.  Mr. Donnellon questioned Mr. Stimac regarding the setback lines.  Mr. 
Donnellon said that the existing right of way line is much farther out than 10’.  The 
dining is much farther back from the existing right of way line. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the distance is measured from the proposed right of way line.  
The sidewalk takes a rather significant jog as it gets to this property from the south 
because the future right of way line of John R is not in place.  The Ordinance says that 
the setbacks have to be measured from the Master Thoroughfare Plan as set by the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Mr. Donnellon also pointed out that the building to the north is much closer to John R. 
than this building is. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he was present for the original variance request and he is not 
aware of any complaints from the surrounding neighbors.   
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the new awning would cover more seating than what was 
originally proposed. 
 
Mr. Donnellon said that the awning will protect more tables than what was previously 
proposed. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that this proposal is in keeping with what the Planning Commission is 
trying to accomplish.  The height of the wall prevents people from seeing what is going 
on at the restaurant. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS DRAFT                                           OCTOBER 21, 2008 

14 
 

ITEM #12 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Donnellon stated that they had to put the wall in. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that large trees would be ideal for this situation. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Strat 
 
MOVED, to grant David Donnellon, 1477 John R., relief of the Ordinance to construct an 
outdoor dining area to within 10’ of the front property line along John R.; and to install a 
new fabric awning over a portion of the dining area on front of the structure extending 
out to within 24’ of the front property line.  Section 30.20.06 requires a minimum 40’ 
front yard setback in the B-3 (General Business) Zoning District. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Variance is in keeping with what the Planning Commission is trying to achieve. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Kovacs, Strat, Bartnik, Courtney 
Absent: 3 – Gies, Lambert, Clark 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs expressed concern over the fact that Ms. Coury and Mr. Stewart may not be 
able to make the November 18th meeting and encouraged Mr. Stimac to try and set up a 
special meeting so that their petition could be heard. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that we have to post a notice indicating a Special Meeting would be 
held within seventy-two hours of the meeting date.  Mr. Stimac stated that Building 
Department Staff would take a poll to see if we would have enough members present 
for a special meeting and inform the Board and the petitioners of our findings. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:00 P.M. 
 
 
              
       Matthew Kovacs, Chairman 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



Troy Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee     FINAL                     October 27, 2008 
 
 

 1 

A meeting of the Troy Local Development Finance Authority – Troy Subcommittee (LDFA) 
was held on Monday, October 27, 2008 at 3:30 P.M., at City Hall in the Council Board Room.   
 
 
 
PRESENT: Robin Beltramini, Chair 
 Brian Murphy,  Assistant City Manager/Economic  Development Services 

Stephanie Bergeron 
  
  
ABSENT: Mike Adamczyk 
 Michael Kidder 

Doug Smith 
  
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Miller, Planning Director 

Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 
 

 
  
 
Let the record reflect that because there was no quorum, the October 27, 2008 LDFA Meeting was 
not held. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Robin Beltramini, Meeting Chair 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 28, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson  Wayne Wright 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Mark J. Vleck 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-122 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes:  All (8) 
Absent:  Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-123 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted.  
 
Yes:  All (8) 
Absent:  Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-124 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 14, 2008 Regular meeting, as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All (8) 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat presented the BZA Report. 
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Miller presented the DDA Report. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Planning and Zoning Report. 
 
Mr. Miller announced that Mr. Wright submitted his resignation from the Planning 
Commission in writing to the Mayor. 

 
 

SITE PLAN 
 
8. CONSENT JUDGMENT AMENDMENT AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

APPROVAL – McDonald’s Restaurant with Drive-up Facilities, Northwest corner of 
Big Beaver and Rochester Road, Section 22, B-2 (Community Business) and B-3 
(General Business) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the item. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Stuart Frankel, Troy Commons LLC, the owner of the subject parcel, introduced the 
project team. 
 
Otis Carter, McDonald’s USA, 1021 Karl Greimel Drive, Brighton, briefly described 
the project. 
 
Michael Kazarian, McDonald’s USA, 1021 Karl Greimel Drive, Brighton, stated they 
expect approximately 140 vehicles during the lunch rush, between the hours of 
11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Strat suggested the applicant eliminate the three handicap parking spaces on 
the east side of the building and provide an outdoor seating area in this location. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor to the public for comment. 
 
There was no one who wished to speak. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-125 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the 
proposed Amendment to Consent Judgment and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as 
requested for the proposed McDonald’s Restaurant with drive-up facilities, located 
on the northwest corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Roads, located in Section 22, 
within the B-2 and B-3 zoning districts, be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. The current area noted as handicap parking will be converted to outdoor patio 

space. 
2. The handicap parking spaces will be moved to a convenient location which will 

result in loss of approximately five (5) parking spaces. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann, Vleck 
No: Maxwell 
Absent:  Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained he did not support the resolution because he has concerns 
with traffic volumes and the lack of inconsistency with the Big Beaver Road Corridor 
Study. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 10) – Proposed Big 

Beaver and Kilmer Planned Unit Development, Northeast Corner of Big Beaver and 
Kilmer, Section 22, Currently Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E (One Family 
Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the item. 
 
Mr. Branigan summarized the report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
The report generally supports the concept with the exception of two issues, flex 
space and vehicular access.  The application included some flex space, including 
space called out as potential office or retail.  The report prepared by Orchard Hiltz & 
McCliment (OHM) indicates there are issues with site access, including location of 
the curb cut on Big Beaver and the location of the southernmost drive on Kilmer. 
 
Ryan Marsh of Landus Development, the applicant, stated only residents of the 
condominium would use the flex space.  There would be no retail development in 
any of the condominium units.  He indicated there might be a common area but only 
residents of the condominium would use it. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following residents spoke: 

 Kirsten Sonneville, 3131 Kilmer 

 Rhonda Salazar, 3109 Kilmer 

 Theresa Ivan, 3101 Kilmer 

 Greg Turzak, 3075 Kilmer 
 
Issues raised during public comment included the following: 

 Possibility of extending the proposed sidewalk on the east side of Kilmer, north 
to Hartland. 

 Cut-through traffic. 

 On-street parking and snow removal. 

 On-street parking and adding to the difficulty of exiting driveways. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-10-   [no vote on the motion] 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for a 
Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Landus 
Development for the BBK Mixed-Use Development Planned Unit Development (PUD 
10), located on the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, located in Section 22, 
within the O-1 and R-1E zoning districts, being approximately 2.546 acres in size; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Article 
35.30.00; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for BBK Mixed-Use Development Planned 
Unit Development be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. That the proposed condominium bylaws limit the flex units to being used only by 

the residents of the condominiums. 
2. The office space proposed for units 11 and 12 be used as a common element 

for residents of the condominium association. 
3. Provide a deceleration lane on Big Beaver Road.  
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Tagle asked how important the southernmost drive was to the success of the 
project.  
 
Cary Gitre of Landus Development stated the traffic circulation as proposed is 
critical to the development. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-126 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission postpone this item to provide the applicant 
an opportunity to work with staff to resolve the problems identified in the OHM report 
and discussed by the Planning Commission this evening. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Maxwell, Schultz, Tagle, Ullmann, Vleck 
No: Sanzica, Strat 
Absent:  Wright 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Chair Schultz called for a break at 9:50 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 10:00 p.m. 

 
 

STUDY ITEM 
 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION REFERENCE BOOKS – Presentation by Lori Grigg Bluhm, 

City Attorney 
 
Ms. Bluhm presented the Planning Commission Reference Book which the City 
Attorney’s Office prepared for each Planning Commission member. 

 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Michael J. Chaffee, Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities, expressed 
concern with the elimination of three handicap parking spaces from the east side of the 
proposed McDonald’s building and replacing them with outdoor seating. 

 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
There was general Planning Commission discussion.  

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:40 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2008 PC Minutes\Draft\10-28-08 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on October 28, 2008 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson  Wayne Wright 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Mark J. Vleck 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Zak Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-122 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes:  All (8) 
Absent:  Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-123 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as submitted.  
 
Yes:  All (8) 
Absent:  Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-124 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 14, 2008 Regular meeting, as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All (8) 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Strat presented the BZA Report. 
 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Miller presented the DDA Report. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller presented the Planning and Zoning Report. 
 
Mr. Miller announced that Mr. Wright submitted his resignation from the Planning 
Commission in writing to the Mayor. 

 
 

SITE PLAN 
 
8. CONSENT JUDGMENT AMENDMENT AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 

APPROVAL – McDonald’s Restaurant with Drive-up Facilities, Northwest corner of 
Big Beaver and Rochester Road, Section 22, B-2 (Community Business) and B-3 
(General Business) Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the item. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Stuart Frankel, Troy Commons LLC, the owner of the subject parcel, introduced the 
project team. 
 
Otis Carter, McDonald’s USA, 1021 Karl Greimel Drive, Brighton, briefly described 
the project. 
 
Michael Kazarian, McDonald’s USA, 1021 Karl Greimel Drive, Brighton, stated they 
expect approximately 140 vehicles during the lunch rush, between the hours of 
11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
 
Mr. Strat suggested the applicant eliminate the three handicap parking spaces on 
the east side of the building and provide an outdoor seating area in this location. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor to the public for comment. 
 
There was no one who wished to speak. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-125 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the 
proposed Amendment to Consent Judgment and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as 
requested for the proposed McDonald’s Restaurant with drive-up facilities, located 
on the northwest corner of Big Beaver and Rochester Roads, located in Section 22, 
within the B-2 and B-3 zoning districts, be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. The current area noted as handicap parking will be converted to outdoor patio 

space. 
2. The handicap parking spaces will be moved to a convenient location which will 

result in loss of approximately five (5) parking spaces. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Sanzica, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Ullmann, Vleck 
No: Maxwell 
Absent:  Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Maxwell explained he did not support the resolution because he has concerns 
with traffic volumes and the lack of inconsistency with the Big Beaver Road Corridor 
Study. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 4 - 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
9. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 10) – Proposed Big 

Beaver and Kilmer Planned Unit Development, Northeast Corner of Big Beaver and 
Kilmer, Section 22, Currently Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) and R-1E (One Family 
Residential) Districts 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the item. 
 
Mr. Branigan summarized the report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 
The report generally supports the concept with the exception of two issues, flex 
space and vehicular access.  The application included some flex space, including 
space called out as potential office or retail.  The report prepared by Orchard Hiltz & 
McCliment (OHM) indicates there are issues with site access, including location of 
the curb cut on Big Beaver and the location of the southernmost drive on Kilmer. 
 
Ryan Marsh of Landus Development, the applicant, stated only residents of the 
condominium would use the flex space.  There would be no retail development in 
any of the condominium units.  He indicated there might be a common area but only 
residents of the condominium would use it. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following residents spoke: 

 Kirsten Sonneville, 3131 Kilmer 

 Rhonda Salazar, 3109 Kilmer 

 Theresa Ivan, 3101 Kilmer 

 Greg Turzak, 3075 Kilmer 
 
Issues raised during public comment included the following: 

 Possibility of extending the proposed sidewalk on the east side of Kilmer, north 
to Hartland. 

 Cut-through traffic. 

 On-street parking and snow removal. 

 On-street parking and adding to the difficulty of exiting driveways. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
General discussion followed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL OCTOBER 28, 2008 
  

 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2008-10-   [no vote on the motion] 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed a Concept Development Plan for a 
Planned Unit Development, pursuant to Article 35.50.01, as requested by Landus 
Development for the BBK Mixed-Use Development Planned Unit Development (PUD 
10), located on the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, located in Section 22, 
within the O-1 and R-1E zoning districts, being approximately 2.546 acres in size; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Standards for Approval set forth in Article 
35.30.00; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Planning Commission recommends that 
Concept Development Plan Approval for BBK Mixed-Use Development Planned 
Unit Development be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. That the proposed condominium bylaws limit the flex units to being used only by 

the residents of the condominiums. 
2. The office space proposed for units 11 and 12 be used as a common element 

for residents of the condominium association. 
3. Provide a deceleration lane on Big Beaver Road.  
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Tagle asked how important the southernmost drive was to the success of the 
project.  
 
Cary Gitre of Landus Development stated the traffic circulation as proposed is 
critical to the development. 
 
Resolution # PC-2008-10-126 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission postpone this item to provide the applicant 
an opportunity to work with staff to resolve the problems identified in the OHM report 
and discussed by the Planning Commission this evening. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Maxwell, Schultz, Tagle, Ullmann, Vleck 
No: Sanzica, Strat 
Absent:  Wright 





TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  October 28, 2008 

CALL TO ORDER              
 
A meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, 
October 28, 2008 at the Troy Community Center at 7:04 pm.  

 
ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present:  Jeff Stewart 

Mike Gonda 
Sandy Macknis 
Bob Berk 
Jeff Super 
Alison Miller 

     Bob Preston 
    Sarah Wunderlich, student 

Dan O’Brien 
 
Absent:   Jim Hattan  

     
City Staff Present:  Cindy Stewart 

    Jeff Biegler 
    Tonya Perry 
    Mike Lyczkowski 
    Russ Hardin 
    Wayne Lepola 

 
Others:    Doris Schuchter 
    Poncho Massaini 
    Diana McKay 

     
 
Approval of Minutes  
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2008-10-27 
Motion by:  Jeff Super 
Seconded by:  Jeff Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of August 26, 2008 are approved with corrections 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2008-10-28 
Motion by:  Mike Gonda 
Seconded by:  Sandy Macknis 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of September 3, 2008 are approved as submitted. 
MOTION CARRIED  

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  October 28, 2008 

 
Introduction of Russ Harden 
 
Sergeant Russ Harden was introduced as Bob Kowalski’s replacement in 
Community Services Operation. 
 
New Business 
 
a. Recommendation to Council for P&R Representative –  
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2008-10-29 
Motion by:  Mike Gonda 
Seconded by:  Jeff Super 
 
RESOLVED, that Jeff Stewart is nominated as the Troy Daze Representative on 
the Parks & Recreation Board.  
MOTION APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY  
 
b. Suggestions for 2009 Festival –  
 

• Turn Arounds and Drop Offs 
o Need more info publicized about “drop-off” area.  
o Need to meet in June to finalize issue to have enough time to 

publicize in brochure.  
o Sandy only has 12-15 volunteers at any given time working  

4-hour shifts. McManus would provide less distance to walk and 
report to volunteer tent. 

o Engage discussion in spring with police operations team and 
volunteer coordinators. 

o Include as an agenda item for April meeting to set date for 
volunteer drop –off issue meeting. 

• Don’t need registration tent 
• Storage trailer—reduce size 
• Deadline for electrical service (Winiarski) requirements due before festival 
• Verify food vendor wiring requirement 
• Verify power with vendors (Jeff W ends up with too many surprises) 
• Produce brochures with time of festival, parking fee, etc and distribute 

early to school students, etc. 
• Eliminate 4x8 sign boards, all entertainment on one 3x4 laminated, approx  

8 copies 
• Exit sign at handicap area—right arrow 
• Laminated sheets not to exceed 34” – IT Dept. Plotter 
• Put a laminated map and vendor list at vendor entrance for operations 
• Need pictures of all snow fencing for Ed Carpus 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  October 28, 2008 

• Review layout of outdoor booths around sand court for expansion – more 
space between west side, could possibly do double row 

• Copy of tent layout given to tent supplier 
• Paint and flag all layouts 
• Bright yellow paint—need three boxes 
• Flags—400, 12 rolls caution tape, 12 rolls orange streamers 
• Put mulch on parking lot entrances or (asphalt)?  Parks will check it out 
• Discuss turnarounds and drop-offs 
• Install round-about approx 15’ circle at Northfield dumpster entrance 
• Should we install turnaround at Crooks Rd – worked in 2008 
• Snow fence—main parking, new pavilion 25x300 feet, around service 

vehicles and Troy Daze trailer. Also completely around Car Show 
• 2 scissor lifts to replace light towers, install 5 (1500 W) on each lift – check 

price on scissor vs. towers 
• All electric vehicles including police (4) under new pavilion 
• Need 5 more operations carts if supplier does not provide extras 
• Need 14 carts (2 seaters)  
• All committee chairs responsible for set up, tear down and storage for their 

event 
• Put ramp behind stage in Entertainment Tent 
• Do not put Ethnicity flags around stage for swearing in ceremony – only 

US Flag 
• Diana McKay - Need Marshalls @ Boulan to guide participants for Parade 
• Heavy duty shelving needed for storage trailer 
• Locate new tent company for large tents 
• Emergency plan for rainstorms – meet with DPW 
• Need exit sign at Boulan after parade ends for people leaving 
• Arnold must provide layout of rides ahead of time 
• Snow fencing completely around car show 
• Arnold must provide layout for carnival rides & games ahead of time. 
• Minimize Costs wherever possible 

o Office supplies can go through City for less cost and no tax 
o Miss Troy Pageant look for ways to cut costs – move to a week 

night instead of Saturday (Cindy and Danielle will research 
locations) 

 
c.  Appointment of Co-chairs for 2009 Advisory Committee: 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2008-10-30 



TROY DAZE MEETING MINUTES DRAFT  October 28, 2008 

Motion by:  Sandy Macknis 
Seconded by:  Jeff Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, that Bob Berk and Mike Gonda are nominated to be the 2009 Co-
Chairs for the Troy Daze Advisory Committee.   
MOTION APPROVED UNANIMOUSLY  
 
Member Comment 
 

• Student drop-off is a huge issue. 
• Fire trucks at front of parade create awful fumes. 
• Should we skip Miss Troy in ‘09 since girls didn’t get much of a reign? No 
• Identify Diana McKay better as parade coordinator for people to find her. 

Police will try to get a megaphone for her. 
 
Adjourn 
 
RESOLUTION # TD-2008-10-31 
Moved by: Jeff Super 
Seconded by:  Alison Miller  
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting is adjourned. 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:26 pm. 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Bob Berk, Co-Chairperson 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES – ROUGH –  
NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

 1 

 
 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities was 
scheduled Wednesday, November 5, 2008, in the lower level Conference Room at City 
Hall.  Due to lack of quorum, the meeting was cancelled.                                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

1 
 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M., on Wednesday, November 5, 2008 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Rick Kessler 
    Bill Nelson 
    Tim Richnak 
    Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor   
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF OCTOBER 1, 2008 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of October 1, 2008 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  RALPH GARABEDIAN, 2644-2648 
LOVINGTON, for relief of the dwelling unit separation wall in the attic of a two family 
dwelling required by Section 317.1 of the Michigan Residential Code.  The petitioner is 
the owner of a two-family dwelling originally constructed in 1969.  Recently the home 
was inspected as part of a property maintenance issues at the property.  It was 
discovered that the fire resistance rated wall separating the two dwelling units did not 
extend through the attic of the units.  Section 317.1 of the Michigan Residential Code 
requires that this wall extend to the underside of the roof sheathing.  Upon being cited 
for this deficiency, the petitioner filled application for appeal of this item. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 1, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow Building Department Staff to contact Mr. Garabedian regarding his 
intentions on this property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that Mr. Garabedian installed the required separation wall at the 
same time he replaced the roof.  The Building Department inspected the property and it 
is in compliance.  The petitioner has not officially withdrawn his request, and Mr. Stimac 
stated that because this request still appears on the Agenda, the Board has to take 
action on it. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

2 
 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Ralph Garabedian, 2644-2648 Lovington, for relief of 
the dwelling unit separation wall in the attic of a two family dwelling required by Section 
317.1 of the Michigan Residential Code. 
 

• Petitioner has installed the required separation wall therefore there is no 
justification for the variance. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DALE B. SCHMIDT, 6768 MERRICK DR., for 
relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” high aluminum fence. 
 
The petitioner was not present and this Item was moved to the end of the Agenda, Item 
#6, to allow the petitioner the opportunity to be present. 
 
ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  STANLEY FRANKEL, REPRESENTING 
SOMERSET PLACE LLC, 2301 W. BIG BEAVER, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 2nd 
wall sign, 177 square feet in area on an existing building. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Sign Ordinance to 
erect a 2nd wall sign, 177 square feet in area.  Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (3) allows one wall 
sign for each building not to exceed 10% of the area of the front of the structure to a 
maximum size of 200 square feet in area in the office zoned districts.  Currently there is 
an existing wall sign on the building measuring 134 square feet in area. 
 
Mark Greenstone was present representing Stanley Frankel, Jim Dunn Counsel for 
North Private Bank, and Larry Lavanway of Levanway signs were also present. 
 
Mr. Kessler informed the petitioner that this Board can grant a variance if the petitioner 
were to prove a hardship. 
 
Mr. Dunn stated that this building does not have a monument sign and there is a great 
deal of mature foliage in front of the building.  Recently they held a Board of Directors 
meeting, and one of the Board members had difficulty finding this location.  Clients 
approaching the bank will have difficulty trying to find the location.  This office has 
moved from Bloomfield to Troy and the plans are for this to become their corporate 
office. They are hoping to expand and lease another floor in this building.  Mr. Dunn 
also stated that they do not have plans to erect a monument sign.  The proposed sign 
will be offset and will be very similar to the existing sign. This proposed sign will balance 
the building and would be aesthetically pleasing. There is a need to make their 
presence known as there are a large number of existing banks located along Big 
Beaver. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

3 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked how much space was leased by North Private and how much 
space by UBS. 
 
Mr. Greenstone stated that North Private has 16,000 square feet of space and UBS has 
24,000 square feet.  Mr. Greenstone also stated that the proposed sign will be 6/10 of 
1% of the square footage of the north elevation of the building. 
 
Mr. Zuazo stated that he believes the proposed sign looks like a camouflage color and 
asked if a contrasting color may work better. 
 
Mr. Greenstone stated that the sign is on glass panels and the UBS sign is also in white 
and seems to show up very well against the blue glass. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if a monument sign could be erected. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that this property was originally established as part of a consent 
judgment, and believes ground signs were addressed in that document.   
 
Mr. Richnak stated that the petitioner indicated that they would not request a ground 
sign in the future and Mr. Greenstone confirmed that was correct. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
A discussion began regarding the possible verbiage of the consent judgment and how it 
would relate to a ground sign. 
 
Mr. Greenstone stated that the petitioner is willing to commit to not requesting a 
monument sign in the future. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Stanley Frankel, representing Somerset Place LLC, 2301 W. Big 
Beaver, relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 2nd wall sign, 177 square feet in area on an 
existing building. 
 

• The property owner would be restricted from applying for an additional ground 
sign. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• The sign area will result in a small percentage of the overall building elevation. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

4 
 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  BEAUMONT SERVICES, 44201 DEQUINDRE, 
for relief of Chapter 85 to erect nine (9) 24” x 60” banners on light poles. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect nine 
(9) 24” x 60” banners on light poles around the property at Beaumont Hospital.  Chapter 
85.02.05 (C) (2) allows a maximum of two signs for this development.  Currently this site 
has more than two signs as based upon previous variances granted by the Building 
Code Board of Appeals. 
 
Mr. John Rogers of Beaumont Services was present.  Mr. Rogers explained that they 
are asking for these banners due to the construction that is ongoing at this property.  
Mr. Rogers stated that they feel that patients and visitors are over whelmed because of 
the construction and they are trying to show patients that patient care is the most 
important factor.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the petitioner would have to come back before this Board if the 
variance was only granted for a certain time frame. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that a variance very similar to this one was granted for a period of 
time as those banners were announcing a special event.  This Board does have the 
option of making this a permanent variance so that the petitioner would not have to 
come before the Board again. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the petitioner was looking for a specific time period. 
 
Mr. Rogers said that these banners are made of a material that would need to be 
replaced within eighteen months and furthermore thinks that the construction will last 
between one and two years from now. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the petitioner was planning to put up different banners in the 
future. 
 
Mr. Rogers said that he did not believe so but could not say with 100% certainty.  If 
another variance was required, Mr. Rogers said that he would be more than willing to 
come back before this Board. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked if these banners would be replaced with banners that were the same 
size. 
 
Mr. Rogers said that was correct. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

5 
 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Mr. Stimac cautioned the Board as the Sign Ordinance does not address the copy on a 
sign.  Officially this Board cannot approve the message that is on a sign. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he would be concerned if there was advertising on the sign. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he believes these banners would be good for this campus as 
the construction creates a hardship and the campus is being expanded. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked what would happen if someone put up a banner and then incorporated 
advertising into it. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the Sign Ordinance is silent with regards to content.  A 200 
square foot sign at an office building can include advertisement.   
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 
MOVED, to grant Beaumont Services, 44201 Dequindre relief of Chapter 85 to erect 
nine (9) 24” x 60” banners on light poles. 
 

• Banners may be in place for a period of eighteen (18) months. 
• 18 month time frame is due to the temporary nature of the material of the 

banners. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR A PERIOD OF EIGHTEEN (18) MONTHS 
CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 (ITEM #3) – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  DALE B. SCHMIDT, 6768 MERRICK 
DR., for relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” high aluminum fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to install a 
48” high fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  It has a 40’ minimum front 
yard setback along both Merrick and Kimberly.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in 
front setbacks to a maximum height of 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates this 4’ 
high fence setback 30’ from the property line along Kimberly.  
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

6 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
This item last appeared before this Board at the meeting of October 1, 2008 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner to re-submit a more detailed site plan; and, also to 
allow the petitioner the opportunity to stake out the property showing both the proposed 
location of the fence, and the location of the fence that would comply with the 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Schmidt provided Board members with nineteen (19) pictures of this property, 
indicating where he would like to put the fence and also showing where the fence would 
be placed in order to comply with the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked what was behind the evergreen trees. 
 
Mr. Schmidt stated that his air conditioning unit was in this location and asked what the 
proper distance was from the house to the air conditioning unit. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the distance is addressed in the manufacturer’s installation 
instructions. 
 
A discussion began between Board members and Mr. Schmidt regarding the pictures 
he provided.  Mr. Schmidt believes he originally asked for 9’ or 10’ from the pavers. 
 
Mr. Kessler suggested cutting the pavers back to make them the same size as a 
standard walkway, which would be both functional as well as aesthetically pleasing. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that some of the shrubs in the air conditioning area may need to be 
removed and the pavers moved back into that area.  Because the shrubs are so close 
to the air conditioner there may not be enough air flow around the unit to allow it to 
operate efficiently.  If the shrubs were moved, the walkway could be moved and the 
variance request would not be as large. 
 
Mr. Schmidt did not think that the type of fencing he wants to put in would screen the air 
conditioner from people going by the area. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he could put shrubs on the outside of the fence that would help 
to screen the air conditioner. 
 
Mr. Schmidt asked for an explanation regarding fences and corner lots. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that because Mr. Schmidt’s house is on a corner it shares a front 
yard with the neighbor behind him.  Mr. Stimac also stated that Mr. Schmidt could put 
up a 30” high picket fence along his property line and that would comply with the 
Ordinance. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                         NOVEMBER 5, 2008 

7 
 

ITEM #6 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that this is a newer upscale neighborhood of Troy and believes that 
screening of the air conditioner unit would be important to neighbors.  Mr. Kessler also  
stated that he would like to grant a minimum variance to this property.  A 4’ wide 
walkway is more than sufficient and he would like the petitioner to supply the Building 
Department with the exact measurement from the edge of the walkway to the house. 
 
Mr. Dziurman reminded Board members that there are two (2) written approvals in file 
and there are four (4) written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Dale Schmidt, 6768 Merrick Dr. relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” 
high aluminum fence. 
 

• Modify location of fence such that it is not located farther south than the existing 
pavers around the air conditioning unit. 

• Petitioner is encouraged to put landscaping along the outside of the fence. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that he will go out to this site and determine how far the fence will be 
from the house. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:28 A.M. 
 
 
             
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
             
       Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 10, 2008  

 Page 1 of 3

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, 
November 10, 2008 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: None 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of October 13, 2008 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2008-11-029 
Moved by Hall 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the October 13, 2008 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. Granite City Restaurant Operations, Inc. (a Minnesota Corporation) 

requests to transfer ownership of 2008 Resort Class C licensed business 
(MCL 436.1531(2) and SDM License in conjunction with Official Permit 
(Food), located in escrow at 7586 S US-31, Alanson, MI 49706, Emmet 
County, from Lester’s Inc.; transfer location (Governmental Unit) to 699 W. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 10, 2008  

 Page 2 of 3

Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; and requests a new Brewpub 
License to held in conjunction. {MLCC Req #474714}  

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Scott Edwards, attorney for 
Granite City Restaurant Operations, Inc. 
 
Granite City Restaurant Operations, Inc. is a publicly traded, midwest company 
that was established in 1999.  There are currently 36 locations, with this being the 
first in Michigan.  It has a casual, upscale, family dining atmosphere with a 
brewpub on site.  There will be 177 seats.  This new construction will be a free-
standing building with ground breaking expected for Spring 2009.  Management 
and trainers will come from other locations.   
 
Sergeant Cantlon stated that his investigation located no disqualifying factors. 
 
Resolution #LC2008-11-030 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, that Granite City Restaurant Operations, Inc. (a Minnesota 
Corporation) be allowed to transfer ownership of 2008 Resort Class C licensed 
business (MCL 436.1531(2) and SDM License in conjunction with Official Permit 
(Food), located in escrow at 7586 S US-31, Alanson, MI 49706, Emmet County, 
from Lester’s Inc. to 699 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; and be 
granted a new Brewpub License to held in conjunction. 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
 
2. Woodward Detroit CVS, L.L.C. requests to transfer ownership of 2008 

SDD and SDM licensed business from Arbor Drugs, Inc. at 125 E. Long 
Lake, 2045 W. South Blvd, 1980 E. Big Beaver, and ADI Realty, 4963 John 
R. {MLCC Req # 484079, 484381, 484108, 487196}  

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Elaine Pohl, attorney for 
Woodward Detroit CVS, L.L.C. 
 
This is an internal merger transaction to consolidate all licenses into one entity.  
Since the name of the licensee is changing, the MLCC considers this a transfer 
which requires local approval.  There will be no changes in corporate officers, 
management, or personnel. 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             NOVEMBER 10, 2008  

 Page 3 of 3

Resolution #LC2008-11-031 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that Woodward Detroit CVS, L.L.C. be allowed to transfer ownership 
of 2008 SDD and SDM licensed business from Arbor Drugs, Inc. at 125 E. Long 
Lake, 2045 W. South Blvd, 1980 E. Big Beaver, and ADI Realty, 4963 John R. 
 
 
Yes:  7 
No:  0 
Absent: None 
 
 
 
 
3. Discussion – Chapter 101 
 
Assistant City Attorney Susan Lancaster made a presentation to the Committee 
regarding new City Ordinance Chapter 101, with a page-by-page explanation of 
what was adopted by City Council in comparison to the Committee’s 
recommendations.  Ms. Lancaster answered several questions posed by the 
Committee as to the procedure followed when ordinances are drafted for review 
and adoption by the Council.  She explained that all ordinances are “living 
documents” and revisions can be suggested at any time. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



DATE:         November 3, 2008
TO:              Phil Nelson, City Manager
FROM:         Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued during the Month of October 2008

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 2 $580,000.00 $6,030.00

Sub Total 2 $580,000.00 $6,030.00

COMMERCIAL
Fnd. New 1 $225,900.00 $2,375.00
Add/Alter 17 $1,331,771.00 $15,005.00
Kiosk 2 $0.00 $71.00

Sub Total 20 $1,557,671.00 $17,451.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 3 $531,841.00 $5,685.00
Add/Alter 28 $592,956.00 $8,140.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 6 $40,761.00 $820.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 2 $105,000.00 $1,280.00
Repair 2 $7,200.00 $190.00
Fire Repair 1 $47,852.00 $595.00
Wreck 5 $0.00 $260.00

Sub Total 47 $1,325,610.00 $16,970.00

MULTIPLE
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $2,921.00 $75.00

Sub Total 1 $2,921.00 $75.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 1 $35,000.00 $465.00

Sub Total 1 $35,000.00 $465.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 4 $208,950.00 $2,360.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $50,000.00 $615.00
Sub Total 5 $258,950.00 $2,975.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 26 $0.00 $2,508.50
Fences 12 $0.00 $190.00

Sub Total 38 $0.00 $2,698.50

TOTAL 114 $3,760,152.00 $46,664.50
PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2008

NO. PERMIT FEE
Mul. Dwel. Insp. 98 $980.00
Cert. of Occupancy 22 $1,459.75
Plan Review 64 $2,447.00
Microfilm 25 $200.00
Building Permits 114 $46,664.50
Electrical Permits 189 $11,910.00
Heating Permits 135 $5,660.00
Air Cond. Permits 49 $1,955.00
Plumbing Permits 72 $4,351.00
Storm Sewer Permits 6 $343.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 8 $242.00
Sewer Taps 8 $1,704.00

TOTAL 790 $77,916.25
LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2008

NO. LICENSE FEE
Mech. Contr.-Reg. 63 $315.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 21 $315.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 21 $105.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 1 $10.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 3 $30.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 20 $200.00

TOTAL 129 $975.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2007 2007 2008 2008
JANUARY 119 $7,595,008.00 71 $4,678,432.00

FEBRUARY 101 $8,056,092.00 81 $5,464,681.00
MARCH 135 $9,204,932.00 107 $3,480,525.00

APRIL 140 $4,844,929.00 141 $10,518,298.00

MAY 170 $11,201,261.00 161 $4,357,036.00

JUNE 183 $6,057,272.00 161 $8,178,329.00

JULY 134 $5,755,737.00 160 $10,497,107.00

AUGUST 149 $10,867,085.00 122 $15,981,779.00

SEPTEMBER 151 $15,498,043.00 134 $13,136,548.00

OCTOBER 194 $13,663,761.00 114 $3,760,152.00

NOVEMBER 136 $16,386,272.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 102 $4,572,214.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1714 $113,702,606.00 1252 $80,052,887.00



2004 2004

9 7 720
30
40
50
60 SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2008

3 4 9 7 4 2 7 3
0

10

Ja
nu

ary
Fe

br
ua

ry
Ma

rch Ap
ril

Ma
y

Ju
ne Ju
ly

Au
gu

st
Se

pte
mb

er
Oc

tob
er

No
ve

mb
er

De
ce

mb
er

0 0



Nov 4, 2008 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF OCTOBER 2008Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter OSPREY CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPME 2800 LIVERNOIS 300  567,101
Commercial, Add/Alter MILTON-ROBERTS CO INC 4555 INVESTMENT 304  133,350

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  700,451

Commercial, Foundation New RAMCO GERSHENSON INC 730 E BIG BEAVER 738  225,900
Commercial, Foundation NewTotal  225,900

Industrial, Add/Alter CAMPBELL/MANIX INC 1850 W MAPLE  550,000
Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  550,000

Religious, Add/Alter REWOLD, FRANK & SON 1825 E SQUARE LAKE  200,000
Religious, Add/AlterTotal  200,000

Total Valuation:  1,676,351Records  6



campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL EXPENSE REPORT
Month of November, 2008

Council Person Expense  Date Purpose Amount Totals

Beltramini, Robin 11/21/2008 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 123.72$           
October, November & December 2008

123.72$             
Broomfield, Cristina 11/21/2008 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 194.85$           

October, November & December 2008

194.85$             
Wade Fleming 11/21/2008 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 215.70$           

October, November & December 2008

215.70$             
Howrylak, Martin F. -$                 

0.00
Kerwin, Mary 11/21/2008 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 212.85$           

October, November & December 2008

212.85$             
Schilling, Louise E. 11/21/2008 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 117.90$           

October, November & December 2008

117.90$             
Eisenbacher, David -$                 

-$                  
Total for Month 865.02$           

NOTE: This report is presented in compliance with Rules of Procedure for the City Council,
            Item 18. Miscellaneous Expenses

Date Prepared: 11/14/2008
Final Preparation By: J. Nash

S://Finance/Template - City Council monthly expense report.xls

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



 

 

 

 

 
 

SOCRRA  3910 W. Webster Road  Royal Oak  Michigan  48073  Phone 248.288.5150  Fax 248.435.0310  Email socrra@socrra.org 

www.socrra.org 

Printed on Post Consumer Recycled Content Paper 

Berkley  Beverly Hills  Birmingham  Clawson  Ferndale  Hazel Park  Huntington Woods  Lathrup Village  Oak Park  Pleasant Ridge  Royal Oak  Troy 

QUARTERLY REPORT 
OCTOBER 2008 

 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

  

Representative Municipality 

J. Bais-DiSessa City of Berkley 

C. Wilson Village of Beverly Hills 

T. M. Markus City of Birmingham 

R. Haberman City of Clawson 

B. A. Photiades City of Ferndale 

A. LeCureaux City of Hazel Park 

A. R. Allie City of Huntington Woods 

J. Mueller City of Lathrup Village 

K. Yee City of Oak Park 

S. W. Ball City of Pleasant Ridge 

G. Rassel City of Royal Oak 

B. P. Murphy City of Troy 

 

 

OFFICERS 

  

Chair: B. P. Murphy 

Vice Chair: S. W. Ball 

Secretary: B. A. Photiades 

Advisory Committee: A. R. Allie 

B. P. Murphy 

A. LeCureaux 

S. W. Ball 

 
 

J. A. McKeen General Manager 

M. A. Czuprenski Operations Director 

J. Schandevel Authority Engineer 

T. Dean Superintendent 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



 II 

               October 2008 

 

 

Board of Trustees 

SOCRRA 

 

Subject:  Quarterly Report - October 2008 

 

Board Members: 

 

Attached is a copy of SOCRRA's Quarterly Report covering the first three months operation of 

the fiscal year 2008/09.  The report contains a financial statement of the Authority's operation 

and an outline of projects in progress or completed during the quarter.  The report also contains 

statistical information and other information of general interest to the members of this Authority. 

                           

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

The governing body of the Authority is a Board of Trustees, consisting of one representative 

from each constituent municipality.  The Board held its Organization Meeting on July 9, 2008, 

and members were elected to serve as Officers for the fiscal year beginning July 2008.  

Following is a list of the current officers: 

 

 Chair:                B. P. Murphy 

 Vice Chair:   S. W. Ball 

      Secretary:               B. Photiades 

                                 

Representatives on the Board are entitled to one vote for each 3,000 tons, or fraction thereof, of 

material delivered to the Authority during the preceding fiscal year.  The number of votes of 

each constituent member for the fiscal year, beginning July 2008, is as follows: 

 

Municipality Votes 

Berkley 3 

Beverly Hills 3 

Birmingham 6 

Clawson 3 

Ferndale 5 

Hazel Park 4 

Huntington Woods 2 

Lathrup Village 2 

Oak Park 5 

Pleasant Ridge 1 

Royal Oak 14 

Troy 16 

  

Total: 64 

 

The Board meets in regular session once each month for the purpose of conducting all business 

coming before the Board. 



 III 

                             

The Authority is responsible for collecting recyclables, refuse and yard waste from the member 

communities and then recycling, disposing, or composting these materials.  The Authority has 

entered into contracts with the individual members for a period extending to July 1, 2027.  These 

contracts obligate the Authority to handle this material, charging rates sufficient to pay the 

operating costs and capital improvements.  

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

The total net income for the first 3 months of 2008/09 was $283,179, before depreciation.  This 

is a substantial improvement over the loss of $152,000 that was recorded for the first 3 months of 

2007/08.   

               Actual                       Compared to Budget 

                     Revenue           $4,715,081              + $12,216 

 

                     Expenses          $4,431,902    - $ 117,269 

 

                     Net Income        $ 283,179         + $129,485 

 

The increase in revenue was due primarily to the higher than planned proceeds from the sale of 

recycled material (+$28,000) and increased member revenue (+$26,000), partially offset by 

decreases in other revenue (-$32,000) and in non-member refuse and yard waste (-$10,000). 

Actual revenue was within 1% of the budgeted revenue.  The sale of recycled material generated 

$561,000, which is a 22% increase over the amount generated for the first quarter of 2007/08.  

However, the prices that we receive for our recycled plastic and metal materials have begun to 

decrease since the end of the first quarter.      

 

Expenses were below budget primarily due to non-labor Administrative and General expenses 

(-$167,000), which are largely an issue of timing, partially offset by higher than budgeted costs 

for collection contracts (+$33,000) and labor (+$21,000).  Additional financial detail is attached. 

 

MATERIAL HANDLED 

 

SOCRRA processed 45,296 tons of refuse, yard waste and recyclables during the first three 

months of the current fiscal year.  This represents an increase of 1.4% or 671 total tons compared 

to the same period last year.  This is the first year out of the last five for which we have seen an 

increase in the total tonnage handled from the previous year.  We are continuing to observe a 

decrease in the amount of refuse tonnage delivered by the member communities, although the 

rate of decline is lower than in previous years.  The amount of member refuse decreased by 2.7% 

compared to the previous fiscal year.  For this quarter, the decline in member refuse tonnage was 

offset by a 10.8% increase in member yard waste and an 8.3% increase in recycling tonnage.  

Non-member tonnage increased by 15.4%.  

Our recent history of tonnage handled is displayed in the table below: 

 

 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 

Member Refuse 37,534 34,972 32,604 30,765 29,938 

Non-Member Refuse 2,898 2,798 2,872 2,006 2,256 

Recycling 4,324 4,030 4,013 3,925 4,196 

Yard Waste 5,496 5,741 5,879 7,929 8,905 

TOTAL 50,252 47,541 45,368 44,625 45,296 



 IV 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES  

 

Capital expenditures totaled $22,000 for the first quarter.  The major purchases were a new 

forklift for the MRF ($14,000) and the replacement of a portion of the driveway for the Troy 

Transfer Station ($8,000). 

 

MAJOR PROJECTS 

 

EXPANSION OF RECYCLING PROGRAMS 

 

As of July 1, 2008, we added several new items to our list of materials that can be recycled 

through SOCRRA’s curbside recycling program.  The new items are: 

 

1. Green glass and blue glass bottles 

2. Milk cartons, juice boxes, paperboard food and beverage containers, and paper cups 

 

Adding these materials to our curbside recycling program should help to increase the amount of 

material being recycled.  Our inability to recycle green glass bottles has been the major source of 

dissatisfaction for the people that use our curbside recycling program.  These changes to our 

curbside recycling program were included in our 2008/09 Curbside Recycling Guidelines, which 

is available on our website, www.SOCRRA.org. 

  

We are continuing our effort to expand our recycling programs in order to get more material 

processed by our MRF and to return more revenue to the member communities.  We have started 

recycling programs at a number of schools within the SOCRRA communities with the start of 

the new school year.  We currently have over 50 schools in the SOCRRA communities with 

recycling programs.  If you receive any inquiries about recycling in businesses, schools or 

churches, please forward them to the SOCRRA office.       

      

LONG TERM PLANNING PROCESS 
 

SOCRRA staff has begun a long term planning process for SOCRRA’s operations and facilities.  

As part of this process, the Board approved hiring RRS from Ann Arbor to develop a financial 

model that can be used to evaluate the costs and benefits of alternative versions of SOCRRA’s 

future.  We will be working on this planning process for the remainder of this fiscal year.   

 

COMPOST OPERATIONS 

 

SOCRRA staff has implemented a major change to our compost operations.  We have begun 

using a large horizontal grinder as our primary method of producing compost.  We previously 

used 2 SCARAB compost turners, which have been maintenance problems and are reaching the 

end of their useful lives.  The grinder is being used to grind all incoming material and would also 

be used to aerate the compost piles as they age.  It appears as if the use of a grinder would 

simplify our operations, make us more efficient and also allow us to compost branches larger 

than those currently collected as yard waste.   

   

CHANGE OF AUDITORS 

 

The Board approved the selection of Plante & Moran to perform the annual audits of SOCRRA 

for a three year period.  Representatives of Plante & Moran were in our office for about 2 weeks 

http://www.socrra.org/


 V 

during August performing their audit of our accounting records.  The final audit is being 

reviewed with the SOCRRA Audit Committee during October, 2008 and will be reviewed by the 

SOCRRA Board at their November, 2008 meeting 

 

RECYCLING COMMITTEE 

 

Bob Fox, of Birmingham, has agreed to chair the Recycling Committee for the 2008/09 fiscal 

year.  We will be rotating the chair of the Committee among the member communities on an 

annual basis.  Vicki Richardson, of Troy, was recognized by the Committee for her service as 

Chair of the Committee during 2007/08.  The Committee meets on the third Wednesday of every 

month at 9:30 at the MRF Education Center to discuss recycling issues and to address any 

collection issues that occur.         

 

            Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

           Jeffrey A. McKeen, P.E. 

           General Manager 

 



SOCRRA

STATEMENT OF INCOME

JULY 1,2008 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30,2008

REVENUES ESTIMATED ACTUAL VARIANCES

   

MEMBER SERVICES $3,918,540.00 $3,945,031.95 $26,491.95

  

NON-MEMBER REFUSE 180,000.00 161,564.72 (18,435.28)

   

NON MEMBER YARD WASTE 8,000.00 16,750.80 8,750.80

   

RECYCLING  

NEWSPAPERS $300,000.00 $280,931.55 ($19,068.45)

PLASTICS 129,000.00 121,062.05 (7,937.95)

CARDBOARD 30,000.00 32,401.70 2,401.70

TIN CANS 24,000.00 47,767.86 23,767.86

SCRAP METAL 33,000.00 64,402.96 31,402.96

NON FERROUS METAL 12,000.00 6,510.00 (5,490.00)

GLASS 4,500.00 6,972.85 2,472.85

BATTERIES 1,125.00 1,429.26 304.26

$533,625.00 $561,478.23 $27,853.23

OTHER

REVENUES-COMPOST $17,000.00 $6,416.00 ($10,584.00)

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 12,000.00 4,260.34 (7,739.66)

RENTAL INCOME 23,700.00 19,175.00 (4,525.00)

GRANTS 0.00 0.00 0.00

MISC. INCOME 10,000.00 404.06 (9,595.94)

 62,700.00 30,255.40 (32,444.60)

 

TOTAL REVENUES $4,702,865.00 $4,715,081.10 $12,216.10

BUDGET ACTUAL  

EXPENSES APPROPRIATIONS EXPENDITURES VARIANCES

MADISON HEIGHTS FACILITY $25,369.00 $3,226.93 ($22,142.07)

TROY TRANSFER FACILITY 337,201.00 348,798.98 11,597.98

MATERIAL RECOVERY FACILITY 198,172.00 208,361.37 10,189.37

HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE 42,880.00 56,758.28 13,878.28

COMPOST/LANDFILL FACILITY 103,538.00 104,517.99 979.99

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 366,591.00 201,838.95 (164,752.05)

COLLECTION  FEES 1,764,245.00 1,874,166.35 109,921.35

COLLECTION  & DISPOSAL FEES IN TRANSIT 1,711,175.00 1,634,233.35 (76,941.65)

$4,549,171.00 $4,431,902.20 ($117,268.80)  

REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $153,694.00 $283,178.90 $129,484.90

 

NET INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION $153,694.00 $283,178.90 $129,484.90

 

 

-1-

 



SOCRRA

STATEMENT OF INCOME 

JULY 1,2008 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30,2008

 

 TOTAL

REVENUE TONS AMOUNT

   

MEMBER SERVICES 29,938.40 $3,945,031.95

NON-MEMBER REFUSE 2,256.47 161,564.72

YARD WASTE   

MEMBERS 8,682.12 0.00

OTHERS 222.57 16,750.80

RECYCLABLES   

MEMBERS 4,111.99 0.00

OTHERS 84.23 0.00

45,295.78 $4,123,347.47

RECYCLING   

  

NEWSPAPERS $280,931.55

PLASTICS 121,062.05

CARDBOARD 32,401.70

TIN CANS 47,767.86

SCRAP METAL 64,402.96

NON FERROUS METAL 6,510.00

GLASS 6,972.85

BATTERIES 1,429.26

$561,478.23

 

OTHER  

 

COMPOST SALES $6,416.00

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 4,260.34

RENTAL INCOME 19,175.00

GRANTS 0.00

MISC. INCOME 404.06

30,255.40

TOTAL REVENUE $4,715,081.10

EXPENSES

MADISON HEIGHTS FACILITY $3,226.93

TROY TRANSFER FACILITY 348,798.98

MATERIAL RECOVERY FACILITY 208,361.37

HOUSEHALD HAZARDOUS WASTE 56,758.28

COMPOST/LANDFILL FACILITY 104,517.99

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 201,838.95

COLLECTION  CONTRACT EXPENSES 1,874,166.35

COLLECTION  & DISPOSAL FEES IN TRANSIT 1,634,233.35

$4,431,902.20

 

NET INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION $283,178.90

 

DEPRECIATION 106,323.00  

 

NET INCOME $176,855.90

  

 -2-  



 

SOCRRA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

COMPARED WITH TOTAL BUDGET

JULY 1,2008 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30,2008

TOTAL

BUDGET ACTUAL

REVENUES 2008/09 3 MONTHS BALANCE

 

MEMBERS SERVICES $15,674,149.00 $3,945,031.95 $11,729,117.05 25%

NON-MEMBER REFUSE 620,000.00 161,564.72 458,435.28 26%

 

YARD WASTE

NON-MEMBERS 57,000.00 16,750.80 40,249.20 29%

RECYCLABLES

NEWSPAPERS $1,173,548.00 $280,931.55 $892,616.45 24%

PLASTICS 499,520.00 121,062.05 378,457.95 24%

CARDBOARD 111,000.00 32,401.70 78,598.30 29%

TIN CANS 89,457.00 47,767.86 41,689.14 53%

SCRAP METAL 125,000.00 64,402.96 60,597.04 52%

NON FERROUS METAL 45,000.00 6,510.00 38,490.00 14%

GLASS 17,500.00 6,972.85 10,527.15 40%

BATTERIES 4,500.00 1,429.26 3,070.74 32%

$2,065,525.00 $561,478.23 $1,504,046.77 27%

OTHER 

COMPOST SALES $40,000.00 $6,416.00 $33,584.00 16%

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 60,000.00 4,260.34 55,739.66 7%

RENTAL OF HOMES 95,000.00 19,175.00 75,825.00 20%

GRANTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

MISC. INCOME 25,000.00 404.06 24,595.94 2%

$220,000.00 $30,255.40 $189,744.60 14%

TOTAL REVENUES $18,636,674.00 $4,715,081.10 $13,921,592.90 25%

 

-3-  

 



SOCRRA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES  

COMPARED WITH TOTAL BUDGET

JULY 1,2008 THROUGH SEPTEMBER  30,2008

TOTAL BUDGET ACTUAL

EXPENSES 2008/09 3 MONTHS BALANCE

MADISON HEIGHTS FACILITY $101,000.00 $3,226.93 $97,773.07 3%

TROY TRANSFER FACILITY 2,980,000.00 348,798.98 2,631,201.02 12%

MATERIAL RECOVERY FACILITY 837,000.00 208,361.37 628,638.63 25%

HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE 171,000.00 56,758.28 114,241.72 33%

COMPOST/LANDFILL FACILITY 425,600.00 104,517.99 321,082.01 25%

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 1,466,730.00 201,838.95 1,264,891.05 14%

COLLECTION  & DISPOSAL FEES 11,655,982.00 1,874,166.35 9,781,815.65 16%

COLLECTION  & DISPOSAL FEES IN TRANSIT 0.00 1,634,233.35 (1,634,233.35) 0%

$17,637,312.00 $4,431,902.20 $13,205,409.80  

 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $17,637,312.00 $4,431,902.20 $13,205,409.80 25%

 

 

 

NET INCOME $999,362.00 $283,178.90 $716,183.10 28%

    

    

  

 

 

    

    

 

 

 

-4-

 



S O C R R A

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT

JULY 1,2008 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30,2008

2008/09 2007/08 VARIANCES

REVENUES

MEMBER SERVICES $3,945,031.95 $3,788,525.61 $156,506.34

NON MEMBER REFUSE 161,564.72 158,149.78 3,414.94

YARD WASTE

MEMBERS 0.00 0.00 0.00

OTHERS 16,750.80 6,925.60 9,825.20

 

RECYCLABLES

NEWSPAPERS $280,931.55 $283,254.48 ($2,322.93)

PLASTICS 121,062.05 100,825.82 20,236.23

CARDBOARD 32,401.70 16,230.81 16,170.89

TIN CANS 47,767.86 14,259.12 33,508.74

SCRAP METAL 64,402.96 38,128.43 26,274.53

NON FERROUS METAL 6,510.00 11,111.83 (4,601.83)

GLASS 6,972.85 5,641.92 1,330.93

BATTERIES 1,429.26 460.00 969.26

$561,478.23 $469,912.41 $91,565.82

OTHER

COMPOST SALES $6,416.00 $12,712.76 ($6,296.76)

INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 4,260.34 8,051.05 (3,790.71)

RENTAL OF HOMES 19,175.00 18,725.00 450.00

GRANTS 0.00 0.00 0.00

MISC. INCOME 404.06 12,501.42 (12,097.36)

$30,255.40 $51,990.23 $161,396.81

TOTAL REVENUES $4,715,081.10 $4,475,503.63 $422,709.11

OPERATING EXPENSES $4,431,902.20 $4,627,757.09 ($195,854.89)

EXCESS $283,178.90 ($152,253.46) $618,564.00

 

 

 

 

 

 

-5-



SOCRRA

TOTAL SERVICE CHARGES

JULY 1,2008 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30,2008

SERVICE

MUNICIPALITY TOTAL TONS CHARGES

BERKLEY 2,138 $201,716.00

  

BEVERLY HILLS 1,879 143,196.00

  

BIRMINGHAM 3,469 321,979.30

 

CLAWSON 2,415 166,884.00

 

FERNDALE 3,566 374,678.40

 

HAZEL PARK 2,443 249,424.00

 

HUNTINGTON WOODS 1,106 81,180.00

 

LATHRUP VILLAGE 646 63,270.00

 

OAK PARK 3,562 356,501.70

 

PLEASANT RIDGE 540 40,244.00

 

ROYAL OAK 9,398 1,017,981.99

  

TROY 11,570 927,976.56

 

SUB-TOTAL 42,733 $3,945,031.95  

 

OTHER CUSTOMERS 2,483 $178,315.52  

DROP OFF CENTERS 80 0.00

 

TOTAL 45,296 $4,123,347.47

  

 

 

 

-6-  



SOCRRA

IMPROVEMENT FUND

JULY 1,2008  THROUGH  SEPTEMBER 30,2008

  

  

  

   

 

 

EXPENDITURES   

 

   

          TS Driveway Replacement      $8,126.32

          MRF Equipment 13,484.95

  

TOTAL $21,611.27

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

   

-7-   

 



campbellld
Text Box
J-06





 
November 19, 2008                             
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  Preliminary Discussion No. 2 of the 2009/10 Budget 
   Authorization for City Management to Implement Items from the  
   Deficit Reduction Survey 
 
City management wishes to continue the dialogue with Council regarding upcoming budgetary 
matters. The following two areas will be discussed:   
 
City Council Deficit Reduction Survey 
 
Staff would like to thank Council for the timely return of the “Deficit Reduction Survey”. 
 
Attachment 1, Deficit Reduction Survey – City Council Ratings, is a compilation of the results 
returned to us by Council members. 
 
The second attachment, which is labeled New Revenue Sources and Expenditure Savings – 
Selected for Implementation, lists the items that the majority of Council indicated they will consider for 
implementation.  City Management requests Council approval to implement these items. 
 
Finally, a third attachment is included and that is labeled, New Revenue Sources and Expenditure 
Savings – Possible Implementation.  Listed on these pages are items that the majority of Council 
indicated they either a) Will consider for implementation; or b) Take a neutral position on.  City 
Management requests Council’s direction on whether or not to incorporate the items with neutral 
rating for implementation. 
 
Please note that the early incentive retirement savings has not been added to our budget at this time.  
We will have a better handle on this number in the next few months once eligible employees have a 
chance to review their situation and make a decision. 
 
Preliminary Budget Projections 
 
Staff has provided an updated summary of General Fund revenues and a projection of expenditures 
for discussion with Council. 
 
If there are any questions, please feel free to contact us. 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA\2008\11.24.08 – Preliminary Discussion of the 2009/10 Budget  - No. 2 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



 

1 

 

DEFICIT REDUCTION SURVEY 
CITY COUNCIL RATINGS 

 

Attachment 1 

 
   

√ APPROPRIATE COLUMN TO RANK IDEAS   

Item 
# 

 
POTENTIAL NEW REVENUES 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

Do Not 
Consider 

Need 
More Info 

1. Transfer excess Special Assessment funds 
 $1,000,000 7     

2. Increase DDA charge for services 
 175,000 5 2    

3. Implement Police arrest booking fee 
 158,600 5 2    

4. Implement property damage auto crash recovery fee 
*One Council Member didn’t respond on this item 135,200 3 1 1 1  

5. $1.00 service charge on all parks and recreation 
transactions 100,000 4 2 1   

6. Charge seniors the full cost of all programs 
 100,000 2 3  2  

7. Implement business occupancy permit and annual 
renewal fee 75,000 2 1 3 1  

8. Raise building permit fees by 5% 
 70,000 3 2 1 1  

9. Implement auto injury accident cost recovery fee   
 61,500 2 3 1 1  

10. Charge non-profit groups for use of Community Center 
meeting rooms 30,000 3 1  3  

11. Implement structure fire response fee 
 25,000 2 4 1   

12. Implement a single-family residential rental inspection 
program 25,000 1 2 1 3  

13. Implement fire re-inspection and revised plan review fee 
 18,750 2 5    

14. Implement suspicious fire response and investigation fee 
 12,500 1 3 1 1 1 



 

2 

 

DEFICIT REDUCTION SURVEY 
CITY COUNCIL RATINGS 

 

Attachment 1 

 
 

   

√ APPROPRIATE COLUMN TO RANK IDEAS   

Item 
# 

 
POTENTIAL NEW REVENUES, CONTINUED 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

Do Not 
Consider 

Need 
More Info 

15. Implement downed wire fire response fee (electric 
company pays) 10,000 5 2    

16. Charge youth groups full cost for field usage 
 10,000 1 2 1 3  

17. Increase shelter fees 
 10,000 3 3 1   

18. Charge admission to museum grounds (currently a 
donation is requested) 

 
4 2 1   

19. Charge non-resident fee for Internet usage at Library 
 

20,000 
4 2  1  

20. Implement a fuel surcharge on traffic tickets 
 

 
2 4  1  

 TOTAL POTENTIAL NEW REVENUES $2,036,550      
 
 

   

√ APPROPRIATE COLUMN TO RANK IDEAS   

Item 
# 

 
POTENTIAL EXPENDITURE SAVINGS 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

Do Not 
Consider 

Need 
More Info 

1. Freeze positions through retirement incentives 
(2009/10) 1,300,000 6 1    

2. Eliminate community agency contributions: 
  Troy Youth Assistance -                 $40,000 
  Troy Community Coalition -             97,000 
  The Haven -                                      4,370 
  Troy Boys/Girls Club -                     76,320 $217,690  3 1 3  



 

3 

 

DEFICIT REDUCTION SURVEY 
CITY COUNCIL RATINGS 

 

Attachment 1 

 
   

√ APPROPRIATE COLUMN TO RANK IDEAS   

Item 
# 

 
POTENTIAL EXPENDITURE SAVINGS, CONTINUED 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

Do Not 
Consider 

Need 
More Info 

3. Return maintenance of all county roads back to county 
 170,000 3  1 3  

4. Close the Library on Fridays 
 100,000 2 1  4  

5. Eliminate all irrigation except athletic fields, DDA and 
City Hall 100,000 3 2  2  

6. No snow removal on overtime (City property) 
 100,000 1 3 1 2  

7. Reduce part-time staff in the parks by 25% 
 85,000 3 2 1 1  

8. Reduce number of right-of-way mowing from 6 to 3 
cuttings per year 39,000 3 1 1 2  

9. Eliminate City calendar 
 35,000 4 1 1 1  

10. Limit the snow plowing of subdivisions to straight time, 
with minimal overtime 30,000 2 2  3  

11. Reduce Civic Center maintenance levels 
 30,000 2 4  1  

12. Eliminate employee tuition reimbursement 
 25,000 2 3 1 1  

13. Eliminate the annual volunteer firefighters banquet 
 21,500  1 1 5  

14. Hold bi-annual Troy Daze festivals 
 20,000  1 2 3 1 

15. Eliminate the annual boards and committees 
appreciation banquet 15,000 1 3 1 2  

16. Reduce mowing in parks/public grounds 
 15,000 2 2 2 1  



 

4 

 

DEFICIT REDUCTION SURVEY 
CITY COUNCIL RATINGS 

 

Attachment 1 

 
   

√ APPROPRIATE COLUMN TO RANK IDEAS   

Item 
# 

 
POTENTIAL EXPENDITURE SAVINGS, 

CONTINUED 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

Do Not 
Consider 

Need 
More Info 

17. Eliminate annual plantings, mulch, street island 
maintenance except DDA and Civic Center 8,000 3 3 1   

18. Eliminate family festival 
 6,800 1 4  2  

19. Eliminate the Citizens Academy 
 3,000 2 1 1 3  

20. Operate City Hall on a four-ten hour day schedule, 
closing one day a week   3 2 1 1 

21. Negotiate hiring part-time personnel in lieu of full-time 
  2 3  1 1 

 
TOTAL POTENTIAL EXPENDITURE 
SAVINGS 

$2,320,990      

 
   

√ APPROPRIATE COLUMN TO RANK IDEAS   

Item 
# 

 
OTHER IDEAS 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

Do Not 
Consider 

Need 
More Info 

1. Direct city manager and department directors to 
eliminate lowest priority services  

 
5 2    

2. Re-evaluate Troy Daze event (in totality) - including 
size, location, duration, purpose, etc 

 
2 2 2 1  

3. Consider the benefits of alternative fuel vehicles (i.e. 
liquid propane, natural gas, hybrids, etc) 

 
6 1    

4. Develop and promote energy saving policy 
 

 
6 1    



 

5 

 

DEFICIT REDUCTION SURVEY 
CITY COUNCIL RATINGS 

 

Attachment 1 

 
 

   

√ APPROPRIATE COLUMN TO RANK IDEAS   

Item 
# 

 
OTHER IDEAS, CONTINUED 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

Do Not 
Consider 

Need 
More Info 

5. Buy distressed property in Troy and use to rebuild for 
the future 

 
2 2 2 1  

6. Promote Troy to the film industry - reap the benefits 
 

 
5 2    

7. Privatize City Attorney’s Office 
 

 
 2 3 1 1 

8. City Income Tax 
 

 
  1 6  

9. Operate the Nature Center as a park 
 

300,000 
2 2 2 1  

10. Levy up to 1 mill for Parks and Recreation operations 
   2 1 4  

11. Levy up to 1 mill for Museum and Library operations 
   2 1 4  

 TOTAL POTENTIAL SAVINGS OF 
OTHER IDEAS $300,000      

 
 



 

1 

 

NEW REVENUE SOURCES AND EXPENDITURE SAVINGS - 

SELECTED FOR IMPLEMENTATION 

Attachment 2 

 
 

Below are items from the DEFICIT REDUCTION SURVEY that the majority of Council indicated they want to 
consider.  City Management requests Council approval to implement these items: 

 
Item 

# 
 

POTENTIAL NEW REVENUES 
Estimated 

Dollars 
Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

1. Transfer excess Special Assessment funds 
 $1,000,000 7  

2. Increase DDA charge for services 
 175,000 5 2 

3. Implement Police arrest booking fee 
 158,600 5 2 

4. Implement property damage auto crash recovery fee 
*One Council Member didn’t respond on this item 135,200 3 1 

5. $1.00 service charge on all parks and recreation transactions 
 100,000 4 2 

6. Charge seniors the full cost of all programs 
 100,000 2 3 

8. Raise building permit fees by 5% 
 70,000 3 2 

9. Implement auto injury accident cost recovery fee   
 61,500 2 3 

10. Charge non-profit groups for use of Community Center meeting rooms 
 30,000 3 1 

11. Implement structure fire response fee 
 25,000 2 4 

13. Implement fire re-inspection and revised plan review fee 
 18,750 2 5 

14. Implement suspicious fire response and investigation fee 
 12,500 1 3 

15. Implement downed wire fire response fee (electric company pays) 
 10,000 5 2 



 

2 

 

NEW REVENUE SOURCES AND EXPENDITURE SAVINGS - 

SELECTED FOR IMPLEMENTATION 

Attachment 2 

 
Item 

# 
 

POTENTIAL NEW REVENUES, CONTINUED 
Estimated 

Dollars 
Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

17. Increase shelter fees 
 10,000 3 3 

18. Charge admission to museum grounds (currently a donation is requested) 
 

 
4 2 

19. Charge non-resident fee for Internet usage  at Library 
 

20,000 
4 2 

20. Implement a fuel surcharge on traffic tickets 
 

 
2 4 

 
 
ESTIMATED NEW REVENUES $1,926,550   

 
 

Item 
# 

 
POTENTIAL EXPENDITURE SAVINGS 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

1. Freeze positions through retirement incentives (2009/10) 
 1,300,000 6 1 

5. Eliminate all irrigation except athletic fields, DDA and City Hall 
 100,000 3 2 

6. No snow removal on overtime (City property) 
 100,000 1 3 

7. Reduce part-time staff in the parks by 25% 
 85,000 3 2 

8. Reduce number of right-of-way mowing from 6 to 3 cuttings per year 
 39,000 3 1 

9. Eliminate City calendar 
 35,000 4 1 

10. Limit the snow plowing of subdivisions to straight time, with minimal overtime 
 30,000 2 2 

11. Reduce Civic Center maintenance levels 
 30,000 2 4 



 

3 

 

NEW REVENUE SOURCES AND EXPENDITURE SAVINGS - 

SELECTED FOR IMPLEMENTATION 

Attachment 2 

 
 
 

Item 
# 

 
POTENTIAL EXPENDITURE SAVINGS 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

12. Eliminate employee tuition reimbursement 
 25,000 2 3 

15. Eliminate the annual boards and committees appreciation banquet 
 15,000 1 3 

16. Reduce mowing in parks/public grounds 
 15,000 2 2 

17. Eliminate annual plantings, mulch, street island maintenance except DDA and 
Civic Center 8,000 3 3 

18. Eliminate family festival 
 6,800 1 4 

21. Negotiate hiring part-time personnel in lieu of full-time 
  2 3 

 
 
ESTIMATED EXPENDITURE SAVINGS $1,788,800   

 
 

Item 
# 

 
OTHER IDEAS 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

1. Direct city manager and department directors to eliminate lowest priority services 
  

 
5 2 

2. Re-evaluate Troy Daze event (in totality) - including size, location, duration, 
purpose, etc 

 
2 2 

3. Consider the benefits of alternative fuel vehicles (i.e. liquid propane, natural gas, 
hybrids, etc) 

 
6 1 

4. Develop and promote energy saving policy 
 

 
6 1 

5. Buy distressed property in Troy and use to rebuild for the future 
 

 
2 2 



 

4 

 

NEW REVENUE SOURCES AND EXPENDITURE SAVINGS - 

SELECTED FOR IMPLEMENTATION 

Attachment 2 

 
 
 

Item 
# 

 
OTHER IDEAS, CONTINUED 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

6. Promote Troy to the film industry - reap the benefits 
 

 
5 2 

9. Operate the Nature Center as a park 
 300,000 2 2 

  
ESTIMATED SAVINGS OF OTHER IDEAS $300,000   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

1 

 

NEW REVENUE SOURCES AND EXPENDITURE SAVINGS - 

POSSIBLE IMPLEMENTATION 

Attachment 3 

 
 
Below are items from the DEFICIT REDUCTION SURVEY that the majority of Council either a) Indicated they want 
to consider; or b) Indicated a “neutral” rating. City Management requests Council’s direction on whether or not 
to implement these items. 

 
Item 

# 
 

POTENTIAL NEW REVENUES 
Estimated 

Dollars 
Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

1. Transfer excess Special Assessment funds 
 $1,000,000 7   

2. Increase DDA charge for services 
 175,000 5 2  

3. Implement Police arrest booking fee 
 158,600 5 2  

4. Implement property damage auto crash recovery fee 
*One Council Member didn’t respond on this item 135,200 3 1 1 

5. $1.00 service charge on all parks and recreation transactions 
 100,000 4 2 1 

6. Charge seniors the full cost of all programs 
 100,000 2 3  

7. Implement business occupancy permit and annual renewal fee 
 75,000 2 1 3 

8. Raise building permit fees by 5% 
 70,000 3 2 1 

9. Implement auto injury accident cost recovery fee   
 61,500 2 3 1 

10. Charge non-profit groups for use of Community Center meeting 
rooms 30,000 3 1  

11. Implement structure fire response fee 
 25,000 2 4 1 

12. Implement a single-family residential rental inspection program 
 25,000 1 2 1 



 

2 

 

NEW REVENUE SOURCES AND EXPENDITURE SAVINGS - 

POSSIBLE IMPLEMENTATION 

Attachment 3 

 
Item 

# 
 

POTENTIAL NEW REVENUES, CONTINUED 
Estimated 

Dollars 
Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

13. Implement fire re-inspection and revised plan review fee 
 18,750 2 5  

14. Implement suspicious fire response and investigation fee 
 12,500 1 3 1 

15. Implement downed wire fire response fee (electric company 
pays) 10,000 5 2  

16. Charge youth groups full cost for field usage 
 10,000 1 2 1 

17. Increase shelter fees 
 10,000 3 3 1 

18. Charge admission to museum grounds (currently a donation is 
requested) 

 
4 2 1 

19. Charge non-resident fee for Internet usage at Library 
 

20,000 
4 2  

20. Implement a fuel surcharge on traffic tickets 
 

 
2 4  

 
 
ESTIMATED NEW REVENUES 

 
$2,036,550 

   

 
Item 

# 
 

POTENTIAL EXPENDITURE SAVINGS 
Estimated 

Dollars 
Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

1. Freeze positions through retirement incentives (2009/10) 
 1,300,000 6 1  

2. Eliminate community agency contributions: 
  Troy Youth Assistance -                 $40,000 
  Troy Community Coalition -             97,000 
  The Haven -                                      4,370 
  Troy Boys/Girls Club -                     76,320 $217,690  3 1 

3. Return maintenance of all county roads back to county 
 170,000 3  1 



 

3 

 

NEW REVENUE SOURCES AND EXPENDITURE SAVINGS - 

POSSIBLE IMPLEMENTATION 

Attachment 3 

 
 

Item 
# 

 
POTENTIAL EXPENDITURE SAVINGS 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

5. Eliminate all irrigation except athletic fields, DDA and City Hall 
 100,000 3 2  

6. No snow removal on overtime (City property) 
 100,000 1 3 1 

7. Reduce part-time staff in the parks by 25% 
 85,000 3 2 1 

8. Reduce number of right-of-way mowing from 6 to 3 cuttings per 
year 39,000 3 1 1 

9. Eliminate City calendar 
 35,000 4 1 1 

10. Limit the snow plowing of subdivisions to straight time, with 
minimal overtime 30,000 2 2  

11. Reduce Civic Center maintenance levels 
 30,000 2 4  

12. Eliminate employee tuition reimbursement 
 25,000 2 3 1 

15. Eliminate the annual boards and committees appreciation 
banquet 15,000 1 3 1 

16. Reduce mowing in parks/public grounds 
 15,000 2 2 2 

17. Eliminate annual plantings, mulch, street island maintenance 
except DDA and Civic Center 8,000 3 3 1 

18. Eliminate family festival 
 6,800 1 4  

19. Eliminate the Citizens Academy 
 3,000 2 1 1 

 
 
 



 

4 

 

NEW REVENUE SOURCES AND EXPENDITURE SAVINGS - 

POSSIBLE IMPLEMENTATION 

Attachment 3 

 
 

Item 
# 

 
POTENTIAL EXPENDITURE SAVINGS 

Estimated 
Dollars 

Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

20. Operate City Hall on a four-ten hour day schedule, closing one 
day a week   3 2 

21. Negotiate hiring part-time personnel in lieu of full-time 
  2 3  

 
 
ESTIMATED EXPENDITURE SAVINGS 

 
$2,179,490 

   

 
Item 

# 
 

OTHER IDEAS 
Estimated 

Dollars 
Strongly 
Consider 

 
Consider 

 
Neutral 

1. Direct city manager and department directors to eliminate lowest 
priority services  

 
5 2  

2. Re-evaluate Troy Daze event (in totality) - including size, 
location, duration, purpose, etc 

 
2 2 2 

3. Consider the benefits of alternative fuel vehicles (i.e. liquid 
propane, natural gas, hybrids, etc) 

 
6 1  

4. Develop and promote energy saving policy 
 

 
6 1  

5. Buy distressed property in Troy and use to rebuild for the future 
 

 
2 2 2 

6. Promote Troy to the film industry - reap the benefits 
 

 
5 2  

7. Privatize City Attorney’s Office 
 

 
 2 3 

9. Operate the Nature Center as a park 
 

300,000 
2 2 2 

  
ESTIMATED SAVINGS OF OTHER IDEAS $300,000    

 




	AGENDA: November 24, 2008
	OUTCOME STATEMENTS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Citizens Academy Class XII Graduation/Presentation of Certificates to Mary Lou Banat, Nancy Bradley, Barbara Coffer, Joe Coffer, Bette Gay, Jim Howell, Pat Howell, Margaret Julian, Josh Keagle, Richard Kucejko, Dorothy Pietron, Marshall Rennick, Rhond...


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	E-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments:  Downtown Development Authority b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities and Parks & Recreation Board
	E-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: (a) Mayoral Nominations: Planning Commission (b) City Council Nominations: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Board of Zoning Appeals; and Historic District Study Committee
	E-3 NLC Prescription Discount Card Program
	E-4 Amended Consent Order and Judgment – Proposed Parking Lot Expansion and Building Addition, Existing Heartland of Oakland Skilled Nursing Facility, Southeast Corner of South Boulevard and Livernois, Section 3 – O-1 and R-1B (File Number SP-883 C)
	E-5 Amended Consent Order and Judgment – Proposed McDonald’s Restaurant with Drive-Up Facilities, Northwest Corner of Rochester Road and Big Beaver Road, Section 22 – B-2 and B-3 (File Number SU-361)
	E-6 Temporary Merchant Business Ordinance
	E-7 Transit Center Cost Sharing Agreement

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	F-1a Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	F-1b  Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public
	F-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted
	F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Breathing Air Compressor
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Options – Vehicle Wash Services
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Uniform Rental Services
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – State of Michigan MiDEAL Program – Lawn & Garden, Commercial and Agricultural Equipment

	F-5 Request for Acceptance of Regrading and Temporary Construction Permit Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #21 – Sidwell #88-20-14-351-008 – BS&G Management Company/George and Maria Zivan
	F-6 Application to Transfer a Resort Class C and Brewpub License to Granite City
	F-7 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading & Temporary Construction Permit – Rochester Road Improvements, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5 – Parcel #43 – Sidwell #88-20-22-2...
	F-8 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement and Regrading & Temporary Construction Permit – Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #18 – Sidwell #88-20-2...
	F-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement and Acceptance of Permanent Public Utility Easement – Wattles Road Improvements, Bristol to Worthington – Project No. 01.106.5 – Parcel #15 – Sidwell #88-20-23-100-078 – Harmony Christian Care & Learning ...
	F-10 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 125 E. Long Lake Road
	F-11 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 1980 E. Big Beaver Road
	F-12 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 2045 South Boulevard
	F-13 Application to Transfer SDD and SDM License to Woodward Detroit CVS, LLC – 4963 John R Road
	F-14 Second Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement – Wattles Road, 1,000’ East and West of Rochester Road – Project No. 01.106.5
	F-15 Second Amendment to Preliminary Engineering Agreement – Rochester Road, Torpey to Barclay – Project No. 99.203.5
	F-16 Request for Acceptance of a Water Main Easement – Troy-Rochester Properties, LLC – Sidwell #88-20-22-426-057

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	G-2 Memorandums: None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for Placement on the Agenda
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Joint Local Development Finance Authority/Final – April 28, 2008
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – September 4, 2008
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – September 16, 2008
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – October 13, 2008
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – October 15, 2008
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – October 21, 2008
	Local Development Finance Authority/Final – October 27, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – October 28, 2008
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – October 28, 2008
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – October 28, 2008
	Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities/Draft – November 5, 2008
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – November 5, 2008
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – November 10, 2008

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of October 2008
	Council Member Robin Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – MML 110th Annual Conference on October 1-5, 2008
	City Council Expense Report – November, 2008

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks from Kathryn Brodt Regarding the Medical Equipment Loan Closet
	Letter to Chief Nelson from Senator John Pappageorge Regarding the Troy Fire Department Earning a Life Safety Achievement Award from the Residential Fire Safety Institute
	Letter from St. Alan’s Church Commending the Precinct Workers at Precincts 19 and 28

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	J-5  Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) – Quarterly Report – October 2008
	J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of the Detroit Edison Company – Case No. U-15677

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Preliminary Discussion No. 2 of the 2009/10 Budget – Authorization for City Management to Implement Items from the Deficit Reduction Survey

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



